WATSONVILLE -

‘COMMUNITY HOSPITAL PVHCDHC

PAJARO VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT HOSPITAL CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Hybrid

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/93443061917
Or One tap mobile :

US: +16694449171,,93443061917#

January 25, 2023
5:00 p.m.

Pursuant to PVHCDHC Resolutions adopted monthly, Assembly Bill 361, and guidance from the Santa Cruz County
Health Department in response to concerns regarding COVID-19, Board Members of PVHCDHC are permitted to
participate in this duly noticed public meeting via teleconference and certain requirements of The Brown Act are
suspended.

TRANSLATION SERVICES/SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION
Spanish language translation is available on an as needed basis. Please make advance arrangements at least three
business days before the meeting at by calling at 831.763.6040 or by emailing at info@pvhcd.org

Las sesiones de la Mesa Directiva pueden ser traducidas del inglés al espariol y del espariol al inglés. Por favor lfame
por lo menos tres dias habiles antes de la junta al 831.763.6040 o envie un correo electronico a info@.orgpara solicitar
interpretacion.

ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
The Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation does not discriminate on the basis of disability, and no
person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a
person with a disability and wish to participate in the meeting and require special assistance in order to participate,
please call 831.763.6040 or email info@pvhcd.org at least three business days in advance of the meeting to make
arrangements. Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternative format.

For Public Participation Guidelines, see last page(s) of the agenda.



1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING THE CLOSED SESSION AGENDA WILL ONLY BE
ACCEPTED BY THE BOARD AT THIS TIME.

3. CLOSED SESSION
The Board will recess to Closed Session to discuss the matters that follow:

a) Hearings/Reports, Code 1461, 32155
1. Report of Medical Executive Committee
2. Report of Medical Staff Credentials Committee
3. Report of Medical Staff Interdisciplinary Practice Committee
4. Quality Dashboard — staff report
(Executive Sponsor: Dr. Angel, COS)

b) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION (Government Code Section 54957(b)(1))
Title: CEO Metrics Assessment Update

6:00 p.m. (Estimated Time)
5. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION

6. CONSIDERATION OF LATE ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

=~

. PUBLIC COMMENT
This time is set aside for members of the general public to address the Board on any item not on
the Board Agenda (not to exceed two minutes), which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of
the Board. No action or discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Board
Member may respond to statements made or questions asked or may ask questions for
clarification. All matters of an administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to
Board will be noted in the minutes and may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or
referred to staff for clarification and report.

8. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

9. REPORT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER SALYER
10. REPORT FROM CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PETERSON
11.INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A) PRESENTATION BY STRATEGIC PLANNING PARTNER -
THE CHARTIS GROUP

12.CONSENT AGENDA
Consent items include routine business that does not call for discussion. One roll call vote is

taken for all items. Only a Board Member may pull items from Consent to Regular agenda.
3



Members of the public must request that a Board Member pull an item from the Consent Agenda
prior to the start of the meeting.

ACTION ON CONSENT AGENDA

a) Board questions to staff

b) Public Comment

c) Motion to approve Consent Agenda
d) Action by Board/Roll Call Vote

A. RESOLUTION MAKING FINDINGS AND ORDERING THE USE OF
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DUE TO COVID-
19, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361: AND DIRECT
STAFF TO RETURN WITHIN 30 DAYS WITH A NEW RESOLUTION ADDRESSING
THE NEED TO CONTINUE HOLDING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS CONSISTENT
WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361

B. MOTION APPROVING MINUTES OF DECEMBER 28, 2022

C. MOTION APPROVING QUALITY DASHBOARD - January 2023

D. MOTION APPROVING AGENDA FORMAT - January 2023

E. MOTION APPROVING POLICIES - Policy Summary, January 2023
13. REGULAR AGENDA

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS
1) Oral Report
2) Board questions to staff
3) Public Comment
4) Nomination of Chair
5) Motion electing Chair
6) Nomination of Vice Chair
7) Election of Vice Chair
8) Nomination of Secretary
9) Motion electing Secretary
10) Nomination of Treasurer
11) Motion Electing Treasurer

B. REPORT ON BEHALF OF MEDICAL COMMITTEES ON THE FOLLOWING
REPORTS — CREDENTIALS, IDP, JAN 2023
1) Board questions to staff
2) Public Comment
3) Motion approving MEC Report, Credentials Report of January 2023 &
Interdisciplinary Practice Credentials Report of January 2023



C. CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT WITH GROUP
PURCHASING ORGANIZATION, VIZIENT INC.
1) Oral Report by COO Vranjes
2) Board questions to staff
3) Public Comment
4) Motion approving staff recommendation to execute Agreement with Vizient,
Inc.

D. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
HOSPITAL CORPORATION
1) Oral Report by CEO Salyer
2) Board questions to staff
3) Public Comment
4) Motion approving amended restated bylaws

E. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH
THE CHARTIS GROUP - STRATEGIC PLANNING
5) Discussion following Chartis Presentation
6) Board questions to staff
7) Public Comment
8) Motion approving proposed Engagement Agreement

14. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda documents are available for review in person at Watsonville Community Hospital,
75 Nielson Street, Hospital Main Lobby-Visitors Desk; and electronically on the Pajaro Valley
Healthcare District's website, at: PYHCHC.ORG

To view online, visit the Board’s website at: PVHCHC.ORG and select the meeting date to
view the agenda and supporting documents.

This agenda was posted in accordance with the California Brown Act. Any materials related to an
item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet will be made
available to the public in accordance with Government Section 549857.5.

RELATED CORRESPONDENCE -

Written comments on agenda items may also be submitted to the Board by email or US
Mail

Email: info@pvhed.org

e Emailed documents may take up to 24 hours to be posted
¢ Please include the agenda item number

U.S. Mail:
PVHCD Board of Directors
75 Nielson Street



Watsonville, CA 95076

Comments received after 4 p.m. the day of the meeting and before the end of the meeting will
be included with the minutes record.

For additional information, call 831.763.6040 or email info@pvhcd.org

Public Participation Guidelines

PUBLIC COMMENT

Participating in Person:

The meeting space is open with limited capacity. Face coverings are highly recommended
in the meeting space, regardless of vaccination status. To address the Board, please line
up at the podium when the Board Chair calls for general public comment or calls for public
comment on the regular agenda item to which you would like to speak. Please state your
name clearly for the record before making your comment and limit your remarks to the
allotted time.

Participating by Phone:

To address the Board, dial the telephone number provided and you will be prompted to enter the
meeting ID number. After that, you will be able to listen to the meeting and speak during public
comment as announced by the Chair. The Clerk will call on people by the last four digits of their phone
number.

The following commands can be entered via DTMF tones using your phone's dial pad while in a Zoom
meeting:

e *6 - Toggle mute/unmute

¢ *9 - Raise hand

Participating online via Zoom:

You may download the Zoom client or connect to the meeting in-browser. If using your browser, make
sure you are using a current, up-to-date browser: Chrome 30+, Firefox 27+, Microsoft Edge 12+,
Safari 7+. Certain functionality may be disabled in older browsers including Internet Explorer.

You will be asked to enter an email address and name. Please identify yourself by any name you
choose (you are not required to state your real name to participate) as this appears online and is how
we notify you when it is your turn to speak.

When the Board Chair calls for the item on which you wish to speak, click on "raise hand." The Clerk
will activate and unmute speakers in turn. Speakers will be notified shortly before they are called to
speak.

When called, please limit your remarks to the time allotted.



Watsonville Community Hospital
Consolidated Income Statement
For The Month of December 31, 2022

Item 10A

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Sep-Dec YTD Dec v PM

Inpatient Revenue 32,985,779 30,531,597 27,355,169 32,334,156 123,206,701 4,978,987

Outpatient Revenue 51,111,993 52,131,349 52,238,996 49,439,769 204,922,107 {2,799,227)

QAF 1,686,268 1,686,268 1,686,268 1,686,268 6,745,070 -

Disproportionate Share DSH 108,462 108,462 108,462 108,462 433,847 -
Total Revenue 85,892,501 84,457,675 81,388,894 83,568,654 335,307,726 2,179,760
Deductions From Revenue:

Contractual Allowances 73,961,016 71,101,042 70,788,379 72,878,907 288,729,346 2,090,528
Total Deductions From Rev 73,961,016 71,101,042 70,788,379 72,878,907 288,729,346 2,090,528
Net Revenue 11,931,485 13,356,633 10,600,515 10,689,747 46,578,380 89,232
Provision for Bad Debts 428,003 635,356 262,067 (211,708) 1,113,718 (473,775)
Collectible Patient Revenue 11,503,482 12,721,277 10,338,448 10,901,455 45,464,662 563,007
Other Revenue 115,757 91,107 61,210 96,831 364,905 35,621
Total Net Operational Revenue 11,619,239 12,812,384 10,399,658 10,998,286 45,829,567 598,628

Salaries & Wages 5,223,977 5,516,333 5,532,471 6,044,081 22,316,862 511,610

Employee Benefits 2,263,894 2,284,473 891,434 652,817 6,092,618 (238,617)

Registry 754,158 677,821 432,443 550,193 2,414,615 117,750

Labor Subtotal 8,242,029 8,478,627 6,856,348 7,247,001 30,824,095 390,743

Professional Fees Medical 737,060 765,919 654,876 718,204 2,876,059 63,328

Supplies 870,221 835,981 989,187 988,489 3,683,878 (698)

Repairs & Maintenance 89,300 45,704 105,305 74,932 315,241 {30,373)

Utilities 156,873 163,596 198,151 194,124 712,744 {4,027)

Purchased Services 1,247,768 1,274,674 1,676,050 1,361,661 5,560,153 (314,389)

Lease Cost and Rent 95,396 95,762 87,951 111,816 391,925 23,865

Property Taxes & Insurance 187,979 308,378 208,263 27,201 731,821 {181,062)

Other Expenses 633,703 625,548 636,707 663,295 2,559,253 26,588

Management Fees 57,139 75,000 75,000 75,000 282,139 -
Total Operating Exp 12,317,468 12,670,189 11,487,838 11,461,813 47,937,308 (26,025)
EBITDA . 698,229 142,195 1,088,180 463,527) 2,107,741} 624,653
Depreciation & Amortization 96,239 96,248 96,182 96,117 384,786 (65)
Interest/ Grants 393,144 399,529 353,391 393,391 1,579,455 -
Total Other Expenses 489,383 495,777 489,573 489,508 1,964,241 (65)
Net Income/Loss from Operations (1,187,612) (353,582) (1,577,753) (953,035) (4,071,982) 624,718



Item 12.A

WATSONVILLE P—

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Board Memo

Executive Sponsor: Steven Salyer, CEO
Agenda ltem: AB 361 Resolution Authorizing Teleconference Meetings

Meeting Date: January 25, 2023

Recommended Actions:

Resolution authorizing making findings and ordering the use of
teleconference meetings of the Board of Directors due to COVID-19,
pursuant to the requirements of Assembly Bill 361; and Direct Staff to
return within 30 days with a new resolution addressing the need to
continue holding teleconference meetings consistent with the
requirements of Assembly Bill 361.

Executive Summary

As a result of the continuing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, many local
agencies have been holding teleconference meetings under the modified
rules authorized under Assembly Bill 361. This item asks the Board to adopt
a resolution ordering the use of teleconference meetings under the modified
rules. This will allow Hospital Board members to appear at meetings remotely
if they choose to do so.

Background

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of
Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic pursuant to
Government Code section 8550 et seq., which remains in effect.

Assembly Bill 361 (“AB 361”) allows legislative bodies to hold teleconference
meetings during declared emergencies as long as they follow designated
rules, and the legislative body routinely reviews the need to continue holding
such teleconference meetings.

On September 30, 2021, Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer Dr. Gail
Newel issued a strong recommendation that legislative bodies in Santa
Cruz County continue to engage in physical/social distancing by meeting
via teleconference as allowed by AB 361 and confirmed that she will
regularly review and reconsider this recommendation and notify the public
when it is no longer recommended. Dr. Newel’'s recommendation remains
in effect.

Page 1 of 2



Item 12.A

Analysis

Many local legisiative bodies have recognized that COVID-19 presents a
continuing threat to the Santa Cruz County community and that there is an
important governmental interest in protecting the health, safety, and welfare
of those who participate in public meetings. Requiring all members of
legislative bodies to appear in-person at meetings presents greater risk to the
health and safety of meeting participants, including reduced social distancing
among people of different communities, increased exposure for those who
are immunocompromised or unvaccinated, and challenges associated with
fully ascertaining and ensuring compliance with vaccination, face coverings,
and other safety measures at such public meetings.

Pursuant to AB 361, a legislative body can hold teleconference meetings
under the modified AB 361 teleconferencing rules if a state of emergency
remains active, or local officials have recommended measures to promote
social distancing, as long as the legislative body reconsiders the
circumstances of the state of emergency and determines either that the state
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet
safely in person or that local officials continue to recommend measures to
promote social distancing.

The Governor's emergency proclamation has not been lifted and Dr. Newel's
social distancing recommendation remains in effect. The dangers presented
by returning to non-emergency meeting protocols remain. Staff recommends
that the Board adopt the draft resolution accompanying this item, which
contains the findings necessary to hold teleconference meetings under the
modified Brown Act rules.

Financial Impact
There is no financial impact associated with this item.

Attachment(s)
1. Resolution AB361

Page 2 of 2



Item 12A

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE PAJARO VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT HOSPITAL CORPORATION

RESOLUTION NO.

On the motion of Director
Duly seconded by Director
The following resolution is adopted.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER ASSEMBLY
BILL 361 AS A RESULT OF THE CONTINUING COVID-19 PANDEMIC STATE OF
EMERGENCY AND HEALTH OFFICER RECOMMENDATION FOR SOCIAL
DISTANCING

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of
State of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic pursuant to California
Government Code section 8550 et seq., which remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-
29-20 that suspended the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open
Meeting law, known as the Ralph M. Brown Act, and codified in California Government
Code section 54950 et seq., provided that certain requirements were met and followed:
and

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-
21 which further extended the suspension of the teleconferencing rules set forth in the
Brown Act and clarified that the provisions issued in N-29-20 would remain in effect
through September 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill
361 ("AB 361"), which amended Government Code section 54953 to permit legislative
bodies subject to the Brown Act to continue to meet under modified teleconferencing
rules provided that they comply with specific requirements set forth in the statute; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361, a legislative body may hold an initial
teleconference meeting under the modified teleconferencing rules during a proclaimed
state of emergency where local officials have imposed or recommended measures to
promote social distancing; and

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer
Dr. Gail Newel strongly recommended that legislative bodies in Santa Cruz County
continue to engage in physical/social distancing by meeting via teleconference as
allowed by AB 361 and confirmed that she will regularly review and reconsider this

recommendation and notify the public when it is no longer recommended; and
Page 1 of 3



WHEREAS, after its initial AB 361 teleconference meeting, a legislative body can
continue to hold such teleconference meetings if a state of emergency remains active,
or local officials have recommended measures to promote social distancing, if the
legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and
determined either that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of
the members to meet safely in person or that local officials continue to recommend
measures to promote social distancing; and

WHEREAS, the findings set forth in the paragraph immediately above must be
made within 30 days of the date the legislative body first held a teleconferenced
meeting pursuant to AB 361, and every 30 days thereafter, for as long as the legislative
body wishes to hold such teleconference meetings; and

WHEREAS, the Hospital has an important governmental interest in protecting the
health, safety, and welfare of those who participate in meetings of the Hospital Board of
Directors; and

WHEREAS, this Board finds that there is a continuing threat of COVID-19 to the
community and finds that requiring all Board members to appear in-person at meetings
presents greater risk to the health and safety of meeting participants stemming from
reduced social distancing among people of different communities, increased exposure
for those who are immunocompromised or unvaccinated, and challenges associated
with fully ascertaining and ensuring compliance with vaccination, face coverings, and
other safety measures at such public meetings; and

WHEREAS, this Board meets in-person in a facility where other functions take
place, such that increasing the number of people present may impair the safety of
participants and members of the public; and

WHEREAS, as required by AB 361, this Board has considered the
circumstances of the current state of emergency and finds that the COVID-19 pandemic
continues to directly impact the ability of Board members to meet safely in person and
further finds that the Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer continues to recommend
measures to promote social distancing; and

WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, due to the emergency
caused by the spread of COVID-19 the Board of Directors deems it necessary to utilize
the modified teleconferencing rules set forth in AB 361.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PAJARO
VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT HOSPITAL CORPORATION HEREBY
RESOLVES AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are adopted as findings of the Board of Directors
as set forth within the body of this Resolution.

Page 2 of 3

Item 12A



ltem 12A

Section 2. Effective immediately, for the next 30 days the Board of Directors will
meet using the modified teleconference rules authorized under AB 361 and
Government Code section 54953(e)(3).

Section 3. Staff is directed to return no later than thirty (30) days after the adoption
of this Resolution with an item requesting the Board to reconsider the circumstances
of the COVID-19 state of emergency and, if necessary, consider adoption of a
subsequent Resolution to continue using the modified teleconference rules for
meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3).

Section 4. Staff is authorized and directed to take all such other necessary or
appropriate actions to implement the intent and purposes of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Pajaro Valley Health
Care District Hospital Corporation this day of , 2022, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PVHCDHC Counsel

Page 3 of 3



ltem 12B

WATSONV ILLE |

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

PAJARO VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT HOSPITAL CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
December 28, 2022
5:01 p.m.
Meeting was held in virtual format

ZOOM LINK hitps://zoom.us/j/93443061917

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Directors Gallagher, Pimentel, and Chair Friel were present.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING THE CLOSED SESSION-None

3. CLOSED SESSION

Directors Gabriel-Cox and Nufez arrived for Closed Session.
The Board recessed to Closed Session at 5:04 p.m. to discuss the matters that follow:

a) Hearings/Reports, Code 1461, 32155
1. Report of Patient Safety and Quality Committee
2. Report of Medical Staff Credentials Committee
3. Report of Medical Staff Interdisciplinary Practice Committee
4. Quality Dashboard — staff report
(Executive Sponsor: Dr. Angel, COS)

6:03 p.m.
4. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION
Chair Friel reported that the Board received reports.
5. CONSIDERATION OF LATE ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA-None
6. PUBLIC COMMENT-None

7. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS-None

Page 10of 3



8.

9.

ltem 12B

REPORT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER SALYER
CEO introduced Julie Peterson, new CFO for WCH. CEO Salyer gave an
operational update of hospital activities.

June Ponce, Dir of Marketing, Growth & Outreach, gave a report on activities and
events for Hospital staff.

CFO Peterson provided financial report and presented Income Statement for Sept —
Nov 2022.

CONSENT AGENDA

ACTION ON CONSENT AGENDA

a) Board questions to staff
b) Public Comment-None
c) MOTION: Director Pimentel made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda,
seconded by Director Gabriel-Cox, and carried by the following vote:
d) Action by Board/Roll Call Vote
AYES: Gabriel-Cox, Gallagher, Nufiez, Pimentel, Friel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

D.

E.

RESOLUTION NO. 17-2022

RESOLUTION MAKING FINDINGS AND ORDERING THE USE OF TELECONFERENCE
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DUE TO COVID-19, PURSUANT TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361: AND DIRECT STAFF TO RETURN WITHIN
30 DAYS WITH A NEW RESOLUTION ADDRESSING THE NEED TO CONTINUE
HOLDING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS CONSISTENT WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361

MOTION APPROVING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2022

RESOLUTION APPROVING RESTATED & AMENDED 401(A) PLAN TO INCLUDE
PHARMACISTS AND NURSING SUPERVISORS IN THE EMPLOYER
CONTRIBUTION

MOTION APPROVING OF QUALITY DASHBOARD — December 2022

MOTION APPROVING POLICIES — Policy Summary, December 2022

10.REGULAR AGENDA

Page 2 0of 3



Item 12B

A. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF REPORT ON BEHALF OF MEDICAL
COMMITTEES ON THE FOLLOWING REPORTS
1) Oral Report
2) Board questions to staff
3) Public Comment
4) Motion approving MEC Report, Credentials Report of December 2022 &
Interdisciplinary Practice Credentials Report of December 2022

MOTION: Director Nufiez made a motion to approve the Interdisciplinary Practice
Credentials Report and Credentials Report of December 2022. The motion was
seconded by Director Gabriel-Cox and carried by the following vote:

AYES: Gabriel-Cox, Gallagher, Nufiez, Pimentel, Friel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

B. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF 2023 BUDGET
1) Report by Julie Peterson, CFO
2) Board questions to staff
3) Public Comment
4) Motion to approve 2023 Budget
5) Action by Board/Roll Call Vote

MOTION: Director Nufiez made a motion to approve the Interdisciplinary Practice
Credentials Report and Credentials Report of November 2022. The motion was
seconded by Director Gabriel-Cox and carried by the following vote:

AYES:  Gabriel-Cox, Gallagher, Nuiiez, Pimentel, Friel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

11.ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 6:46 p.m.

Approved:

John Friel, Chair
Attest:

Beatriz Vazquez Flores, Clerk of the Board

Page 3 of 3



TVIISOH A.LINNWWOD

dTIIANOSIVM
Ajoyes Juayeq puE yspy ‘Gyend jo 103.1q
OHID DI-LOW NI S ueqey-[re1], £3eay,

€z0¢ Arenuef

Moday Ayenp
Ayuow
JeudsoH
Alunwwo)
9)lIAuoSIe

JCT W3y



TVLIASOH ALINNWWOD

dTIIANOSIVM

€20C ‘ST __LQ< suado Mopuim >w>._3m geq Jfl e

s3ulpulj ou= 67 JOQWBAON MIIAI SaLIN[ul

paie[a1 33IA9p IdVH MIIADI 110d3J-}[9S G/ 80800V HAAD «
2202 ‘6T 49qwadaQ paia|dwod \</OIU In_h_U o

AnYy Aroje)nsay



T DAY v Jupg
: == ==qven
QuaPed (&1 PAN PUR UDIPIN 48] P SIS SWD 193N05
™,
133 "\
, ..Rlulf, .Enm.f. \
Bl TR ¥ = 5 E e =
P T - o N = =3 WA L
T €T TR £ T BT T ETR T Eoh TS " e’ \ / Vv \ /
snie| || oz | e | e | st | vz | e | socr | e[ e V v
- «|w|o|a (= [a|m
weiSaid UoRANPAY UO|SS|WIPE: dsoH
05T o ety 011 d pay uoissiupEsY |EYdSOH dYHH

yauow T
Juaund

]aund

Jauenb |
yiuow ¢
yuow 9

049 03 49jeQ
ejep 1dag Jo aAnos|al
HodaJ Jaqo}oQ Syuow |

XE9'ST=190D
%EL GT={6T0Z]auyaseg

Jwpeay asne) || Aep-0€

woday Ausueny uag Auafiaug

(£20Z 1O Yyoune|) YO/l HOM

a3 HOM

(zeoz 2a@ buniodal uibeq) 1dep Ysiy/NVO HOM
Jdap sy VO HOM

sAanuns Juaied Asuec) ssald
(eep swiejo [eQ-1pajy/aie0Ipa|N) OYSH
(e1ep swiepo [eQ-1pa|y/aIe0pely) OYSH

(3soHpaN) suodal NN 18 HOM

SudI8AY pueH ‘s|yH pJeoqyseqd di
sami1 a3

sAep 1d/T1 Jad 9184 |dVH

shep 3d/yT Jad 21e4 |1E4

e1eQ uonaejsies Juaned
(SdHVDH) swa3sAS pue s1apiaold
24e3Y1[eaH JO JUBWISSISSY JAWNSUO)) [e3idso

Ajjeriow Aep-gg asned ||y

suolssiwpeal Aep-Qg asnea ||y

(SOwSn ‘dX) €z0z ver uigaq Suiuodal elep
SUl| 921AIDS °|[B4aA0 (A ‘PouUBLIeA ‘SOTIND
‘SOTY ‘sasieyasip ‘SHWPLR)SIIBA JoAey

TVLIdSOH ALINNWWOD

HTIIANOSIVM

uoday Aanenp Ajyauow dIHAd



Item 12D

WATSONVILLE B PVHCDHC

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Board Memo

Executive Sponsor: Steven Salyer, CEO
Agenda ltem: Revised Agenda Format
Meeting Date: January 23, 2023

Recommended Actions

a) Approve the use of the attached branding for documents related to the Pajaro Valley Health
Care District Hospital Corporation.

b) Approve the use of the attached updated Agenda format for PVHCDHC board and
subcommittee meetings, including the use of a Consent Agenda for non-controversial items
that do not require individual staff presentations.

c) Approve the use of a separate Agenda for Closed Session.

d) Authorize the Chief Executive Officer in consultation with the Chair of the Board to change
the agenda format if it is determined that a certain agenda requires a different order of
business.

Executive Summary

Staff recommends that the Board approve the use of the revised attached PVYHCDHC branding
and Agenda format for PVHCDHC Board and Subcommittee meetings. The Board will retain
discretion to change the format to suit its needs over time.

Background/Analysis

The Board has discretion on how it conducts business and organizes its agendas. The proposed
agenda is based on industry best practices for meeting management and sound records
management.

Listed below are the main revisions:
1. Revised branding to distinguish boards and help with clarity.
2. Action format agenda distinguishes activity requested and executive contact or sponsor,
owner.
3. Using clear phraseology provides the board, staff and the public with consistency and
transparent access to public information.

Financial Impact
There is no financial impact associated with this item.

Attachment
A. Branding
B. Agenda Format SAMPLE



‘Qii ltem 12D

i)

PAJARO VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
HOSPITAL CORPORATION

Board Members
= John Friel (Chair) = Jose A. (Tony) Nuiiez
* Dr. Katherine (Katie) Gabriel-Cox = Marcus Pimentel
= Dr. Joe Gallagher

Regular Meeting Agenda
Day, February XX, 2023
5:00 pm
Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/93443061917
Phone: +1 669 900 9128 WEBINAR ID: 934 4306 1917
Meeting Address

Pursuant to Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation (PVHCDHC) Resolutions adopted monthly, Assembly
Bill 361, and guidance from the Santa Cruz County Health Department in response to concerns regarding COVID-19,
Board Members of PVHCDHC are permitted to participate in this duly noticed public meeting via teleconference and
certain requirements of The Brown Act are suspended.

TRANSLATION SERVICES/SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION
Spanish language translation is available on an as needed basis. Piease make advance arrangements at least three
business days before the meeting at by calling at (831) 763.6040 or by emailing at info@pvhcd.org

Las sesiones de la Mesa Directiva pueden ser traducidas del inglés al espaiiol y del espariol al inglés. Por favor llame por
lo menos tres dias habiles antes de la junta al (831) 763.6040 o envie un correo electrénico a info@pvhcd.orgpara
solicitar interpretacion.

ACCONMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

The Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation does not discriminate on the basis of disability, and no person
shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a person with a
disability and wish to participate in the meeting and require special assistance in order to participate, please call
(831)763-6040 or email info@pvhcd.org at least three business days in advance of the meeting to make arrangements.
Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternative format.

Agenda documents are available for review in person at Watsonville Community Hospital, 75 Nielson Street, Hospital Main
Lobby-Visitors Desk; and electronically on the Pajaro Valley Healthcare District's website, at: PYHCHC.ORG.
To view online, visit the Board’s website at: PVHCHC.ORG and select the meeting date to view the agenda and supporting
documents. Written comments on agenda items may also be submitted to the Board by email or US Mail. Comments received
after 4 p.m. the day of the meeting and before the end of the meeting will be included with the minutes record.

Email: info@pvhcd.org U.S. Mail:
¢ Emailed documents may take up to PVHCD Board of Directors
24 hours to be posted 75 Nielson Street
¢ Please include the agenda item Watsonville, CA 95076
number

For additional information, call 831.763.6040 or email info@pvhcd.org

Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation (PVHCDHC)



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation
Regular Meeting Agenda- Day, February XX, 2023

Call to Order/Roll Call
Closed Session Report
Agenda Modification Consideration

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda
Time is set aside for members of the public to address the Board on any item not on the Board Agenda (not to
exceed two minutes), which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

Comments regarding items included on the Agenda will be heard before the item is discussed by the Board.

No action or discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Board Member may respond to
statements made or questions asked or may ask questions for clarification. All matters of an administrative nature
will be referred to staff. All matters relating to Board will be noted in the minutes and may be scheduled for
discussion at a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification and report.

Comments From Chief Executive Officer Steven Salyer

Comments from Board Members

Consent Agenda

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered and acted upon by one Motion. Members of the
public must request that a Board Member pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion prior to the
start of the meeting.

1. Assembly Bill 361 Approving the Use of Teleconference Meetings for Board of
Directors
Recommendation: Pass a Resolution making findings and ordering the use of Teleconference
Meetings of the Board of Directors due to Covid-19, pursuant to the requirements of Assembly Bill 36.
Contact: Dawn Bullwinkel, Interim Board Clerk, dbullwinkel@watsonvillehospital.com

2. Minute Approval: November 30, 2022
Recommendation: Pass a Motion approving the minutes of the November 30, 2022.
Contact: Dawn Bullwinkel, Interim Board Clerk, dbullwinkel@watsonvillehospital.com

3. Restated & Amended 401(a) Plan
Recommendation: Pass a Resolution approving the restated and amended 401 (a) Plan
to include pharmacists and nursing supervisor in the Employer Contribution.
Contact: Allyson Hauck, CHRO

Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation (PVHCDHC)



4. Watsonville Community Hospital Monthly Quality Report December 2022
Recommendation: Pass a Resolution approving the Watsonville Community Hospital Monthly
Quality for December 2022.

Contact: Tracy Trail-Mahan MS RN PMGT-BC CPHQ, Director of Quality, Risk and Patient Safety

5. Policy Updates: December 28,2022
Recommendation: Pass a Motion approving policy updates for December 28, 2022 as required
under Title, 22, CMS and the Joint Commission (TJC).
Contact: Tracy Trail-Mahan MS RN PMGT-BC CPHQ Director of Quality, Risk and Patient safety

Discussion Agenda

6. Medical Committees Reports Report December 2022
Recommendation: Pass a Motion approving the MEC Report, the Credentials Report and the
Interdisciplinary Practice Credentials Report of December 2022.
Contact: Clay Angel, M.D., Chief of Staff Chair, Medical Executive Committee

7. 2023 Budget to the Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation.
Recommendation: Pass a Motion approving the 2023 Budget to the Pajaro Valley Health Care
District Hospital Corporation.

Contact: Julie Peterson, CFO

Adjournment

This agenda was posted in accordance with the California Brown Act. Any materials related to an item on this Agenda
submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet will be made available to the public in accordance with
Government Section 54957.5.

Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation (PVHCDHC)



The Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation
Branding

-

PAIARO VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
HOSPITAL CORPORATION

NV

Item 12D



0TJ01

€20¢ Aenuep

£zoz/oz/1

1108

V/N D3N

€202/LT/10
‘03)/19pesT us/dA
zeoz/it:

Joyauig Ajoed Lioyiny

M1 paINpayas Alenday

31111984 03 suoiesadQ Jue|d ‘saSueyd Joujw ‘are|dwa) maN

01010d

fojjod
s1sanbay asinas 13 Jieday Juawdinby

104

V/N D3N

€20Z/L1/10
‘030/18peaTus/dA
zT0T/TT:

Jopal|g Ayjioey oyiny

M3IA3J pajnpayds AuenSay

so8ueyo op ‘@jejdwal man

600T0d

Adjjod Aed |[eD 13 BwRIBAQ

108

V/N D3W

£20Z/01/10
‘030/43peaTis/dA
TT0C-T1+ TTOZ/TT:
4032341Q >u___umu_ Jdoyiny

M3)AB1 pa|npayos AlejnSay

saBueyo o ‘aiejdwa) man

900T0d

foljod apo) ssaug

108

V/N D3N

£zoz/ot/10
:03D/13peaT IS /dA
eoz/1t

40133lI1Q >“_.___umn_ M| oyiny

M3jAal pajnpayas Asejnday

sasueyo oN ‘alejdwa) man

S0010d

Adljod aunpalolg
Ul-||eD ssaulpie) pue wslaajuasqy

-108

V/N D3N

£20Z/01/10
:03D/1epeaTis/dA
TTOT/TT T2OT/TT
Joma.iq Ajfjioed tioyiny

MB3IARI PaNpPaYas AlejnSay

sa8ueyd Jouiw Ajup
“Juawedaq ul JUa4inI S) Se SPUIY3BaM UO J14 T O} puUayaam

¥00TOd

Adljod Buyjers

_ ST L

uo 314  WwoJj uipiom pasduey? ‘pajepdn ajejdwa}

(ovd) Aupoe

‘leacadde unoA 3sanbau jeyy sadueyd
30 Azewwins yum sapijod pasinbai Asorensai Jo 1sij e mojaq puy aseajd (I, 1) UOISSIWILWIO) JUIOf YL PUB SIAD ‘TZ ‘@)L Japun pasinbai sy

€20z Aenuer :polidd Suipoday

$1019341 JO pJeog :333WWo)

130434 AYVYWININS TYAOUddV ADIT0d

TY¥LiafoH ALTNNENA 0

jeadsol AJlunwiwio) 3|[IAUOSIEAN

ATTIANOSIYM ™

BT —

3¢1 way




oT4joc

€20t AMenuer

€202/02/1

1108

V/N 23N

€20Z/LT/10
03)/42pesTIS/dA
e0z/TT:

Jopaliq Ayed sioyiny

M3iA3I pajnpayas Aejnday

40393.17 sanljioed
0} J019341Q suonesadQ jue|d paSueyd ‘ajejdwat maN

20020d Ad1jod ue|d Jooj4

1104

V/NDIW

€20T/L1/10
:030/1apeatis/dA
220T/1T:

4032311 >u___umu_ Joyyny

M3JA3I panpayds Ale|nSay

"80UaJ9J3) NI DL Se ||am se "sdO Jue|d
10 101094)Q W04} 1019811 san|ioed pajepdn "aiejdwa) MaN

10020d Adijod ueld suonesadp Auadiawgy

108

V/N 223N

€20Z/L1/10
:030/48peaTiS/dA
zeoz/IT:

40129113 >u___umu_ loyyny

MalABI pajnpayas Atejngay

wa3sAg 12pIQ
YoM 03 SIAID 88ueyd ‘Jodallg sanjired 01 'sdQ jued jo
Jo1241Qg @3ueyd ‘Suipiom wody SH) arowals ‘aiejdwal maN

91070d hayj0d sppe1u0) BdIAIES

109

V/N 223N

€202/L1/10
1030/18peaTIS/dA
zoz/itn:

1012841 >u___umu_ oyiny

MmaiaRl pajnpayds Aueinday

sdQ 1ue|d jo Jopaug
woly JopauiQg sani|oe4 o3 Suipiom padueyo ‘arejdwa) man

ST0TOd Ad1j0d s3pIyaA [BUSOH 4o 3sn

itoq

V/N 2D3W

£202Z/L1/T0
‘030/19peaTus/dA
zeoz/it:

Jopauag Alljiaed Lioyiny

M3iABJ panpayas Aenday

19suns asea|d ‘quepunpal
s Adjjod siya 3 suoiesadQ jueld jo J033211Q Jo peaisu)
Jo3raliq sai|ioed pea. 03 Suipiom pajepdn ‘ajejdwa) MaN

Z10T0d Ao)jod s|je) auoyd |euosiaqg

‘lenoidde anoA jsenbau jey3 saSueyd

jo Arewwins yum sapijod pasinbai Asojeinsai jo 1sij e mojaq puy aseajd ‘(. 1) UOISSIWIWIO) JUIOf YL PUe SIAD ‘ZZ ‘2311 Japun pasinbai sy

€Z0z Aenuer :pouad Sunuoday

$1033341Q JO pieog :933UIWo)

140d3d AHVININNS TYAOYUddV ADITOd

TYLASOH L LTINS

|eydsoH Ajunwiwo) 3||IAucsIe M

ATTIANGSLY M ™

R




0T4dog

€20z Aenuer

£20z/0z/1

109
V/N D3N
€20z/L1/T0
:030/1apesTis/dA
TTOZ/TTws TLOT/TT: waysAg Ayages pue Suiusem
1032341 AR tloyiny M3IABL pajnpayds Aenday saduey) op ‘aje|dwal maN 010Z0d 3J14 uoipadsu| pue asueuajulelp
108
v/N D3N
£20¢/L1/10
‘030/12peaTis/dA
TT0T/TT s CTOT/IT: B3y [E2UBYIDN
J01IRIIG E.___umn_ -loyiny MaIABI pajnpayds Em_smm”_ mwmcm_._u ON .wum_nEwF MBN 80020d IDUBUIJUIBIA] |eIUBWIUOIIALT
109
V/N D3N
£20¢/11/10
‘030/13peaTis/dA
TTOT/TT 4 TLOT/TT: eaJy aJe) Juaied
1030=41Q >u___umu_ Joyiny Mmalaad pa|npayds Ew_:mwm_ mwmcmzu ON .wum_a_.:m._. MoN 9002¢0d UON 2JUBUIjUielA] jeauawiuodiAug
-109
V/N 223N
£20Z/41/10
:030/18peaTus/dA
TZO0Z/ZTws TLOT/TT:
J10303.1q AM1oed HloyIny MaiAL pajnpayos AlejnSay sadueyd |eapewwess Joujw ‘srejdwa) maN S00Z0d Ad)|0d @3uBUBIUIBIA |EIUSWIUOIIAUY
104
V/N 23In
£202/L1/10
:032/i2peatis/dA
TC0T/TT 4 TTOT/TT:
J01811q Ayded Loyiny M3JA8l1 pa|npayas AsejnSay pajepdn aSeiqJaa Joujw ‘arejdwa)] maN uawaleuely ssa30y pue A3y
‘lenoadde 1noA 3sanbau jeyy seBueyd
jo Aewiwins yum sapjjod pasinbai Asoje|nsad Jo 1s1| e mojaq puy aseajd ‘(3rL) uoissiwwo) juof 8y pue SN ‘zz ‘Ol 13pun paainbaa sy
€20z Aenuer :pouad Suipoday
$101J3lI( JO pJeog :933HWIWO)
140d34 AYYINININS TYAOYddY AJINOd TYLAEOH , .__w.: ,_,,a,ﬁ,.ém w2
[e3dsoH Ajunwiwio) 3jjIAuosiem ATTIANOSDY
I _ LTy




Otioy

€20z Arenuep

£€202/02/T

:104

V/N D3N

£20Z/L1/10
‘030/13peaTIS/dA
ZT0C/TT4s TTOL/TT:
Joyauig Ayjpey oyiny

M3JA2l pajnpayds Aen8ay

saelpdn Joujw ‘ajejdwat MaN

ST0Z0d

Wa)sAS Wea)s
J9|log uonaadsu| pue aJueUIUIE

1089

V/N 223N

€20Z/L1/10
:030/45peaT IS/dA
€T0Z/TT 44 TTOT/TT:
Jopaug Aljoed Joyiny

MB3JA3I pajhpayas Alejngay

sa8ueyd Jou) ‘are|dwiay maN

¥1020d

wiasAs Suiquinid pue uolNgLIsIa
J3)eA UOIDAdSU| pUB AJUBUIIUIRIA

108

V/N 3w

€20Z/L1/10
:030/1apesTis/dA
TT0T/TT 44 TTOZ/TT:
101324130 >u___umu_ Joyiny

M3lABI pa|npayas Alejn8ay

sajepdn Joujw ‘aie|dwa) man

€1020d

wa)sAg
JVAH 40 uoljdadsul pue 33ueu3UIEIA

1104

V/NDIN

€20Z/L1/10
‘030/13peaTis/dA
T202/TT 42 TTOT/TT:
J0192.11Q A|ided tioyany

MaJAal pajnpayds AlejnSay

's13quwnu
a2uaJajal o pajepdn ‘sadueyd Joujw ‘eleidws) man

C1020d

Sunse ) peot Jojelauan Aouadiawg

108

V/N D3N

£207/L1/10
1030/18peaTis/dA
TTOZ/TT +4 TTOT/TT:
10303117 >u___umu_ Joyiny

M3IAal pajnpayds AlenSay

saguey) op -alejdwal maN

110Z0d

‘lenoldde anoA 3sonbau jeyy saSueyd

Joleiauan
Asuagiawig pue walsAs uonnquisig
|eati30a3 uorradsu| pue adueuUIRIN

0 Arewwns yum sapdijod pasinbai AsojejnSai jo isi| e mojaq puy asesjd ‘(JrL) uoissiwwor o 3yl pue SAID ‘2z ‘@31l 49pun padinbal sy
|

€20Z Aenuer :polsad Sunuoday

51039311 JO pJeog :931HWWOo)

LY0d3Y AYVININNS TYAOY¥ddY ADITOd

THOASOH ALTRINwINCIs

[eudsol Ayiunwiwio) ajjiAuosIepn

ATTIANOSIYM

LTy




0tjos

€207 Aenuer

£202/02/1

:108
/N D3N

€20Z/LT/10
030/19pesTIS/dA
Z202/TT 44 TTOT/TT:
1033al1Q >u___umu_ "._or_u:<

MBaIARI pa|npayas Alejnday

Aaijod jo Apoq
U] 33 @Jualayel Buipnpu) apew satepdn awos ‘aje|dway manN

Aoyjod uonoadsu)
0Z0Z0d pue Asojuanu| yuawdinbl man

‘109

V/N:DIN

€20Z/L1/10
:030/19peaTus/dA
TTOT/CT s TZOT/TT:
410123l1Q >u___umn_ Joyiny

M31A3I pajnpayas AejnSay

so8ueyd Jouiw ‘aejdwa] maN

6T0Z0d| ®dueuajule Juawdinbl pajnpayass

1109

V/N 223

€20Z/L1/10
‘033/18peatus/dA
TTOZ/TT 4 TTOZ/TT:
J0yaai1qg Ayjdey Loyainy

Majnal pajnpayds Alejnsay

sagueyp oN ‘a1e|dwa] man

8T0Z0d alnjesadwa) 1ajepn oi3sawoqg

109

V/N 2Dan

€20Z/L1/10
1030/19peatis/dA
TT0Z/TT 4 TEOTZ/TT:
1010841 A3|IoB4 loyIny

MalAdJ pajnpayos Aleinday

sa8ueyd Joujw ‘@1e|dwa] map

WIA)SAS WNhdeA pue Jry |eiing
LT0Z0d| [edipay uondadsul pue 3JueusulE)y

V/N D3N

£20zZ/LT/10
:030/1epeatiS/dA
Te0T/eT 24 TLOZ/TT:
Jolaug Ayjoed [ioyiny

jo Alewwns yum sapjjod palinbai Asoie|n8ai jo 1si| & Mojaq puyy asead ‘(Dr1) uolssiwwio) uior 9yt pue SN ‘2T ‘G111 J3pun pannbai sy

M3JAI pajnpayas Ale|nday

sasueydo oN ‘alejdwa) man

wa)sAs sen
9T0Z0d| [ed1paN uondadsuj pue saueuajuie|n

*|leaosdde unoA jsenbau jey3 saSueyd

€20z Atenuef :polad Suiioday

$10133.1( JO pJeog :321WWo)

140434 AYVWINNS TYAOUddY AJINOd

THLUASIH A LTedN3 0

|endsoH Ajjunwiwo) 3jjiIAuosiem

ATTIANCOSIYM ™

G —




0Tjo9 £20¢ Aenuer gzoe/oz/t

:109
v/N 33N

€e0e/L1/10
:030/19peatis/dA
T202/CT s TLOT/TT:
Joypauig Aljlaey loyiny MIIA3L pajnpayas Azen8ay Joujw ‘@ejdwa) maN §2070d|34njiuing pue juswdinb3 jo uonelo|ay

104

V/NDIW

€202/LT/T0
‘030/13peaTis/dA
Z202/CT 44 TTOT/IT:
Joauig Ayped sioyny M3JARl pajnpayds AenSay sagdueys Joujw ‘e[dwa) mapn tZ0z0od fa1jod Bupjows uonaNISUO)
1109

V/N 23N

£€20¢/L1/10
:030/49peaTis/dA
TTOT/TT 4+ TTOT/TT:
Jopauig Aped Loyiny M3IA3J pajnpayds AJejnSay sajepdn Jewwe.d pue soSueyd Joujw ‘Aejdwal man £7020d 51030e43u0) Joj suopre|nSay
1049

V/N 23N

€20¢/L1/10
:030/19peaTus/dA
TTOT/2T+x TLOZ/TT:
1030341 AlldeH tloyiny M3iA3I1 pajnpayas AuejnSay sadueyd Jouiw ‘ajejdwa) maN 220z20d Uoi{12nJIsuo) pue uofjeaousy
:108

V/N D3N

€c0z/LT/10
:030/19peaTis/dA
TT0T/T s TLOZ/IT:
Jopauig Ay1ed :ioyiny

M3 pajnpayds Auejngay sadueyd Joujw ‘ae|dwa) map 12020d| uonesynuap] wajqold 13 Juawdinbgy

‘leaoadde unoA 3sanbaa jey) se8ueyd
jJo Alewwins yum sapjjod pasinbai Atojensau yo 3si| e mojaq puy aseajd ‘(JrL) uoissiwwo) Julof YL pue SN ‘ZZ ‘Ol J3pun palinbai sy

€207 Arenuer :pouad Suioday

$10339.1Q jO pieog :331WWo)
L¥0d3d AHYININNS TYAOYUddY AJITOd THLIAFOH ALTNNENRGID

|endsoy Ajiunwiwio) ajjiAuosiem ATTIANOSIYM ™

_ I I G




orjoL

€20¢ Aenuer

£202/02/1

104

V/N:DIN

€20Z/LT/10
:030/19peaTis/dA
zeoe/en:

101331 >a___umu_ Joyiny

MaiAR. paINpayos AlejnSay

ajepdn soujw ‘azejdwal MaN

T€0Z0d

suuN BuluoRIPUOY 1y Bjqeliod Jo asp

1108

V/N 23N

€20Z/L1/10
:03D/49peaT IS/dA
zeozfeT:

Jopauaig Ajljioed tioyiny

MIIADI palnpayas AueinSay

se8ueyd Jouiw ‘arejdwia) maN

0€0Z0d

Suinoday ain|le4 waisAs Aunn

1108

V/N 03N

€20Z/L1/10
030/49peaT'IS/dA
zeoz/en:

1013211Q >u___umu_ -oyiny

M3IADL PaINpayas AsejnSay

paso|d sAem|e apis auo
10| 8upyed sakojdwa ‘apew sajepdn awos ‘ajejdwal man

6¢020d

seaJly Supjied pue ssasoy AoIYIA

109

V/N D3N

£202/L1/10
030/1apesTiS/dA
zeoz/en:

Jopauig Ajijed oyany

MB3JA3I pa|Npayds AlenSay

sagueyd Joulw ‘are|dwa) maN

870Z0d

juawdinb3 2|u0.1123|3 |euUOSId JO SN

109

V/N 2D3In

£€202/L1/T0
030/45peatis/dA
TEOZ/TT 45 TTOT/TT:
loypaulqg Aylje Loyiny

M3lAaJ pajnpayos Azejnday

sajepdn Joujw ‘@jejdwal MaN

92020d

‘lenosdde snoA jsanbau jey) sodueyd
Jo Aewwns yym sapijod pasinbai Asore|n3au jo 3si| e mojaq puy asesd ‘(JrL) uoissiwwo) juiof Yl pue SN ‘ZZ ‘O31L J9pun palinbai sy

sjuawsadinbay Bulioo|4
pue saysjuld ‘s8ulysiuing Joau)

€207 Aenuer :poliad Suijuoday

$101394iQ JO pleog o3 iWwo)

LYO0d3Y AUVININNS TVAOYUddV ADINOd

TYLIAIOE ALTe I gD

[endsoH Aylunwwo) ajjiauosiep

ATTIANOSIYM |

BT




0Tjosg

€20z Atenuer

€20z/02/T

;104
V/N DI

€207/L1/T0
‘030/19peaTIs/dA
ceoe/Ti:

40193117 >u___umn_ “._O_._u:<

M3lAal pajnpayds Azejnday

ajepdn Jouiw ‘axejdwal maN

T00E0d

WIISAS UOIINQLISIC JOIRM O ainjied

11089

V/N D3N

£20¢/L1/10
:030/43peaT4S/dA
zeoz/er:

10102.1Q Ayjioed oyiny

M3]ADI pajhpayas AuenSay

Joujw ‘aje|dwa) maN

000£0d

Wwa1sAg Suiuonipuo) Jiy ain|ie4

108
V/N D3N

€20Z/LT/10
‘03)/13pesTus/dA
oo/t

Jopaliq Ayjioed Lioyiny

M3iABI PaINpayas Alejnday

alejdwa| map

¥£020d

s193(0.4 JuaWwade|day jooy

:10d

V/N D3I

€20z/LT/10
030/19peaT IS/dA
7e0E/TT:

40133.41Q Ajljioed aoyiny

MmalAal pajnpayas AejnSay

S3JUdJaaI SH) Panowsal ‘ sajepdn toujw ‘sjejdwial MaN

€€0Z20d

uonesauado)
1oy siojesauan) AsuaBiawg jJo asn

:104
V/N D3N

£20¢/LT/10
03D/19peaTIs/dA
TTOT/TT 44 TTOZ/TT:
1030211 Aylj1ae4 Lioyiny

MalAal panpayss Alejnday

sajepdn Joujw ‘vlejdwa) MaN

€€0Z0d

*leaoadde anoA 3sanbaa jeyy sadueyd
jo Aewwns yym sapijod pasinbas A1orein3al Jo 151 e mojaq puy ases|d ‘(D[L) UOISSIUWIO) JUIOf BYL PUE SN ‘ZZ ‘21311 Japun paJinbai sy

JuwWieDl ]
J31ep 10} dulBpIND |euonesadg

€20¢ Asenuer :pouad Suioday

1033341 JO pieog :29IWwo)

130434 AHVYWININS TYAOUddY ADINOd

TYLASOH ALTe I

|eudsoH Ayuntuwio) 3||IAUcSIEM

ATTIANCGSIYM ™

G —




0Tjo6

€70z AMenuer

€z0z/0z/1

1108
£207/LT/10 03N
£202/¥0/10 Jild

£202/¥0/10

Jopa.iq Adewleyd :ioyiny

MalAB] jenuue Alejngay

sa8ueyo oy

uejd uawaaoidw| 3sn UCIIEDIPAIA pue
TL9TINYVYHd [Se1AnDY SButiojiuopy AljenD Asewseyd

(IWnvHd) ASeuiieyq

V/N D3N

£20Z/L1/10
:03D/49peaTiS/dA
£202/10:

J03au1q Alfped tioyiny

108

Mmalnal pajnpayas Aien8ay

sajepdn Joulw ‘s)ejdwa) maN

900£0d Aaljod dn-uea) [ids Aundss iy

1108

V/N D3N

€20Z/L1/T0
:03)/49peantis/dA
EZ0Z/TO0x4+220/TT ¢
403d841g >u___umu_ oyny

M31A3) Pajnpayos AlejnSay

sajepdn Joujw ‘ajejdwal man

S00£0d 1511 suoydaja] Aduadiawg

:Lod

V/N D3N

€20Z/L1/10
:032/18peaTus/dA
€20Z/T0+42202/21
1032841Q >u___um..._ -oyiny

MB3IA3J pajnpayds Ale|ngay

salepdn Joulw ‘dejdwa) may

£00£0d wawdinb3 weals J3jiog jo ainjeg

108
V/N 2D3IW

€20Z/LT/10
:030/13peaT IS /dA
EZ0Z/T0x % «CC0e/eT:
403123l >“_.___umn_ Joyiny

M3lA) PaNpayas AtejnSay

sajepdn Joujw ‘ajejdwia) map

TOOEOd| Bulpooly waisAs Bulquinid Jo anjiey

‘lenosdde 1noA 1sanbau jey) saSueyd

jo Alewwins yim sapijod pasinbas Aloje|n3al jo 3s1| @ mojaq puy asead ‘(JrL) UOISSILIWIOD JUIOf 3YL PUe SIAD ‘ZZ ‘D3I Jopun paJdinbai sy

€20¢ AMenuer :poliad Sunuoday

$1012911Q JO pieog 23 llLIwo)

L40d34 AYVYINININS TYAOUddY ADINOd

TYUAPIH AITNORIN0D

|eadso Allunwiwio) ajjIAuosIepn

ATTIANGSIYM ™

e




0T 4o 0T €20z Menuep £202/02/T

1049 saseajay pue Ajjunwiw ‘Ayjenuapyuo) gt
£20Z/LT/T0 D3| 321UV PuB UOHIDY BAJ1IDLI0) 9 IPIUY ‘SME|Ag
J0123.tq Adewlleyd :oyiny| Jeis [edIPSIAl Uj paisacd ssadold fjuepunpay

(3dd4) 8 (3dd0) uoien|ea3 adjde.d
uoIS58J0.d SujoSuQ ‘MaIAlY Jo3d
paiepdn Zy8ZSW| Buipleday Adljod 310 Hels jedlpaln

Co el m - T = ~ [Sw) 4eis [eaipay

:108
€202/L1/T0 DI
€202/¥0/T0 DILd

£202/10/10

s8nig/uopesipay
J0j08.41Q Adsewieyd :Joyiny

sauew oN 6TOZNYVHd 311V punos pue a1 v j0a1

M3IADJ |enuue AiejnSay

*lenoidde unoA 3sanbai jeyy saSueyd
jo Atewwins yym sapijod pasinbas AioyenSas jo 351 e mojaq puy aseajd ‘(JL) UOISSILILLOY JUIOf BY] PUE SIAD ‘ZZ ‘O]IL Japun paJinbai sy

€70¢ Arenuer :poliad Sunuoday

$10332J1Q JO pieog :99RIWW0)
140434 AHVWINNS TYAOHddY AD1Od TS0 A ITNHIG
[endsoH Ajlunwwio) ajjIAuosIem ATTIANOSIY M

_ N




Pt

WATSONVILLE

COMBLUMITY 408 PITAL

Policy Title Staffing Policy Policy # PO1004
Responsible | Facilities Director Revised/Reviewed | 11/1/22
I PURPOSE

Define a policy the procedure for staffing the Plant Operations department.

2.

M. DEFINITIONS

N/A

\'A PROCEDURE

I REFERENCES

N/A

POLICY
1.

Staffing shall be flexed as required by senior management.
Staffing levels

a.
b.
c.
d

€.

The budgeted staffing level for Watsonville Community Hospital Plant Operations
department is 5 FTEs.

Staffing levels for Monday-through Friday are 5 FTEs.

Staffing levels for 2nd shift is 1 FTEs

Staffing levels for 3rd shift is 0 FTEs.

Staffing levels for weekends and holidays are 1 FTEs.

The Facility Director determines staffing needs per day and shift based on workload,
available staff and hospital needs.

Any change to the required coverage for each shift shall be approved by the Facility
Director.

. STAKEHOLDERS

N/A

Pagelof 1



fotica)
WATSONVLLLE

COMMUVMITY O FITAL

Policy Title Absenteeism and Tardiness Call-In Procedure Policy # PO1005
Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/1/2022
I. PURPOSE

Define a policy and procedure for the Plant Operations department with regard to absenteeism.

Il. POLICY

1. Anemployee who is ill or must be absent from work for personal reasons must contact their
supervisor, or the Director of Facilities/Plant Operations before the beginning of their
scheduled shift.

2. Providing advance notification of an absence does not automatically excuse the absence if
sick leave has not been accrued or a request for time off has not been approved.

3. 3. If an employee reports to work late without prior notification and the supervisor has already
contacted a replacement, the employee may be sent home.

4. Any employee who fails to report to work as scheduled and fails to report the intended
absence may be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the Human Resources
Policy and Procedure manual.

5. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness, as outlined in the Human Resources Policy and
Procedure manual will be cause for disciplinary action.

lll. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE

V. REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

Vi. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



S5

WATSONVILLLE

COMBMUMNITY Q08 FITAL

Policy Title Dress Code Policy Policy # PO1006
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/1/2022
l. PURPOSE

Define a policy to establish a standard for attire and grooming to support safe work practices in the
Plant Operations department.

Il. POLICY
1. Clothing
a.
2,
3.

Uniforms shall be worn by all Plant Operations personnel and shall be kept clean

and in good repair by the employee.

Belts shall be dark brown or black.
The choice of personal clothing must always reflect consideration of the work environment,

safety, practicality, in accordance with the Human Resources Policy and Procedure manual.

times.
Shoes

e ok

Specifically prohibited are shorts, cut-offs, see-through or low-cut tops
Personal clothing including shoes and belts shall be kept clean and in good repair at all

a. Plant Operations personnel shall wear heavy-soled, fully-enclosed shoes or boots

b.

of leather or other durable, protective material.

Other personnel shall wear shoes appropriate to their work setting which
demonstrate consideration of health and safety requirements. Specifically

prohibited are backless shoes, sandals, or thongs.

7. Jewelry which presents a safety hazard to the wearer or interferes with work activity in any
way shall not be worn.
8. Hair must be kept neat, clean, and protected from hazards inherent to the job.

ll. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE

V. REFERENCES

Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

VI. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 1 of 1



Jottaca _
WATSONVILLE

COMMUMITY O PITAL

Policy Title Overtime & Call Pay Policy Policy # PO1009
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/1/2022
l. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to define expectations and procedures when Plant Operations
employees are assigned to be on call. Plant Operations services are required twenty-four hours a
day, seven days a week, to meet the needs for safe, quality, and comfortable patient care.

II. POLICY

NA

lll. DEFINITIONS

NA

IV. PROCEDURE

1.

ook wh

N

In order to offer coverage beyond the normal work hours, one Plant Operations employees
shall be assigned “on call” after outside of normal business hours.

Normal business hours are defined in policy PO-1004, Hours of Service.

Plant Operations employees may be eligible for on call pay situations based on the guidelines
established in the Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual.

Employees on call must be available at any time during that period.

Compensation for on call pay is as determined by labor agreement.

Plant Operations employees shall clock in and out when called in and shall enter the proper
code on the time clock.

The Director of Facilities shall determine what a reasonable response time for employees
reporting to work when on call.

The Director of Facilities shali review the reasons for on-call service requests to ensure the
requests are patient care-related, or that emergency services are necessary.

Overtime will be assigned as outlined in the Human Resources Policy and Procedure
Manual.

V. REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




Jotia)
WATSONVLLLE

MU MITY OO PITAL

Policy Title

Equipment Repair and Service Requests Policy Policy # PO1010

Responsible

Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022

I. PURPOSE
To describe the process by which requests for Plant Operations services will be processed and

documented.

Il. POLICY

1.
2.
3.

9.

All requests for services to the Plant Operations department are documented by requesters
using the online maintenance work request system.

Requests for emergency services may be made to the Plant Operations department by
calling 1277 or overhead page to Plant Operations.

Maintenance is performed in accordance with the request outlined in the work order. The
Facilities Director or his designee is responsible for prioritizing work orders and determining
the level of response required.

The assigned engineer shall document any pertinent observations on the work order (parts
on order, unable to access area, etc.). If maintenance involves a tagged asset, the asset
number is to be documented on the maintenance work order so that this becomes part of the
equipment history.

The requestor is able to query for work orders submitted in work order system to view the
status. In addition, sites may set-up an autoreply to requestor whenever there is an update in
status entered into WO system.

Work orders that will require a large expenditure or labor, or which involve facility
modifications, must be signed by the manager or director of the department making the
request and referred to the Facilities Director for review and approval.

When maintenance and documentation is completed, the engineer dates and signs off that
the maintenance was performed and returns the work order to the Facilities Director or his
designee.

If maintenance is to be performed by an external vendor, the Facilities Department will
contact the vendor and instruct the vendor to perform the maintenance. When maintenance
and documentation is completed, the vendor dates and signs off that the maintenance was
performed and returns the work order to the Facilities Director along with a copy of the
vendor’s inspection form.

If service requests cannot be completed within a normal expected time period, the
department requesting service shall be contacted.

10. Open and closed work orders are managed by utilizing the Work Order system.

Ill. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

N/A

V. REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




Jorta

WATSONVLLLE

COMMUMITY OO0 PITAL

Policy Title Personal Phone Calls Policy Policy # PO1012
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022
I. PURPOSE
Define a policy for the employee the departmental expectations for making and receiving personal
phone calls.

Il. POLICY

lll. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
1. Personal phone calls should be limited while the employee is on duty to prevent productivity
loss. The Facilities Director shall implement and manage this process.
2. Personal calls that continue to impact the productivity of employees shall be considered an
infraction of policy as outlined in the Human Resources Policy and Procedures manual.
3. This policy includes hospital phones, personal cell phone calls, and personal cell phone text
messages.

V. REFERENCES

Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

Vi. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 1 of 1



)

YATSONVILLE

S MARLTMITY T PITAL

:

e

Policy Title Use of Hospital Vehicles Policy Policy # PO1015

Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022

I. PURPOSE
To define the requirements for safe use and maintenance of hospital vehicles.

il. POLICY

lil. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1. The hospital will limit the use of hospital vehicles to those persons authorized to operate
vehicles based on the requirements of the insurance carrier.

2. Hospital vehicles shall be operated in a safe, professional manner at all times. Unsafe
or destructive operation of hospital vehicles will result in disciplinary action as outlined
in the Human Resources Policy and Procedure manual.

3. Hospital vehicles shall be returned to the condition prior to use by cleaning out and
refueling the vehicle as required by the Facilities Director.

4. Any problems noted while operating hospital vehicles shall be communicated to the
Facilities Director immediately.

5. Any damage incurred to the hospital vehicle while operating shall be communicated to
the Facilities Director immediately.

V. REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



Jorion

WATSONVLLLE

COREMRLTMITY D10 PITAL

Policy Title Service Contracts Policy Policy # PO1016
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022
I. PURPOSE

To define the process for evaluating, obtaining or renewing service contracts under the

responsibility of Facilities/Plant Operations.

Il. POLICY

lli. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
1. The service contract shall fully describe the scope of the services provided and exclusions.
2. The service contract shall indicate days and hours of service included in the contract.

3. Service contracts shall indicate the date of expiration.

a. If the contract automatically renews, the contract shall indicate the minimum period in
which cancellation of the contract must be communicated.
b. Service contracts cancelled by Watsonville Community Hospital must be

communicated to the vendor in writing.

4. Service contacts for required preventive maintenance shall include a PM schedule in the
Work Order system.
5. A copy of the fully executed service contract shall be filed in the office of the Facilities
Director. The original contract shall be filed in Administration.
6. Vendors considered for service contracts shall be approved as a corporate compliant vendor

through the hospital's Director of Materials Management.

7. The evaluation of contract proposals for the purpose of renewing or obtaining a service
contract under the responsibility of the Facilities Director shall be approved by the Senior
Management.

V. REFERENCES

Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 1 of 1



£
WATSONVLLLE

i

MAMUMITY Ll PITAL

Policy Title Emergency Operations Plan Policy Policy # PO2001

Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022
. PURPOSE

V.

To identify and educate the employee required responsibility in the event of a disaster.

POLICY
Each employee will be familiar with the hospital Emergency Operation Plan and the Facilities/Plant
Operations roles in the plan and will review the EOP annually.

DEFINITIONS
N/A

PROCEDURE
1. Read at least annually the Hospital Emergency Operation Plan.
2. 2.Review at least annually the Facilities/Plant Operations Department roles in the EOP.
3. 3. The Facilities Director will make known to each employee within ten days, of any changes
made in the Emergency Operations Pian.

REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards,EM.02.01.01.2, EP’s 2,7,15 Emergency
Management Policy, EM.02.01.01.2 — Emergency Operations Plan. Standard EM.12.01.01: The
hospital develops an emergency operations plan based on
an all-hazards approach

STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




WATSONVLLLE

COSMUMITY QO PITAL

Policy Title Floor Plans Policy Policy # P0O2002
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022
l. PURPOSE

Define the responsibility for the use of and removal of floor plans or blueprints from the facility.

il. POLICY

1. Updated blueprints are maintained in the Facilities/Plant Operations Department. These
blueprints are not permitted out of the department area unless approved by the Director of
Facilities/Plant Operations, or Designee. If approval is given by the Director of Facilities/Plant
Operations shall be made aware of the removal of the floor plans.

2. Floor plans removed from the facility shall be signed for by the receiving person or company

with a scheduled date for their return.

lll. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1
2.
3

. Floor plans are filed in the Facilities/Plant Operations Department.
Permission to use the plans must be received from the Facilities/Plant Operations Dept.
Request to remove the floor plans from the Facilities/Plant Operations Department should be
made to the Facilities Director.

4. The removal authorization form for removal of blueprints should be signed before plans are
removed.

V. REFERENCES

Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

VI. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 1 of 1



£

WATSONVILLE

COMBLUMITY dGEPITAL

Policy Title Key and Access Management Policy Policy # PO2003
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022
I. PURPOSE
To define the methods for issuing and receiving keys and the responsibility for key control locks within the
hospital.
L. POLICY
The Security Department, in liaison with the Facilities Department, is responsible for key
control.

1. The Facilities Director or department designee is responsible for the master key cabinet
located in Plant Operations shop.

2. All key requests are initiated by the department head and forwarded to the Facilities
Department for disposition.

3. The department head requesting the key, or in his/her absence, the employee receiving the
key, signs for said key on the Key Request Form and thus is held responsible for the key.
The Key Log is kept in Facilities/Plant Operations.

4. Requests presented for replacement or duplication of lost or misplaced keys is processed
only after an investigation by Security Department/Facilities Department establishes that the
lost or misplaced keys cannot be recovered and that the key system was not compromised.

5. Broken or damaged keys that cannot be used are turned in to the Facilities/Plant Operations
Department. This key is accounted for in the log by the Facilities/Plant Operations
Department.

6. Duplicate keys will be provided only by the Facilities/Plant Operations Department. No keys
shall be duplicated while in the possession of the employee.

7. Master keys will open all doors in the facility, except pharmacy, accounting, and personnel
files and are accounted for in the Key Log and are humbered by the Facilities/Plant
Operations Department.

8. Personnel issued a master key are required to return this numbered key when he/she leaves
Watsonville Community Hospital 's employment.

9. All master keys are issued only with the written permission of the Chief Executive Officer.

10. The following is a list of personnel who have access to a master key:

s  Chief Executive Officer

» Assistant Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer

e Chief Nursing Officer

o Facilities/Plant Operations Director

e Security Officers

e Nursing Supervisor

e Plant Operations Staff

11. The table below or similar shall be used to document all keys issued to staff.

Key ID# Employee Name Issue Date

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title Key and Access Management Policy

Policy #

PO2003

lll. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
N/A

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission: EC.02.01.01

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2



WATSONVILLE

COMMUMITY OOEFITAL

Policy Title Environmental Maintenance Policy Policy # PO2005
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/7/2022
I. PURPOSE

To define the procedure for inspecting a non-flammable anesthetizing location and performing
preventive and corrective maintenance as needed.

. POLICY|
Non-Flammable Anesthetizing Location is areas in which inhalant anesthetic agents are administered
and which is so designated by hospital policy.

lll. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
PROCEDURE (Semi-Annual)

1.

w N

Inspect the area for abnormal conditions or those which detract from the aesthetic
appearance of the area, such as chipped or peeling paint or wall coverings, broken electrical
or medical gas receptacle covers and burned-out lamps.

Check the integrity and function of minor mechanical and electrical equipment.

Lubricate and make minor adjustments to equipment, as needed.

Clean and vacuum equipment and those portions of the area not accessible to housekeeping
personnel (e.g., electrical closets).

Check ground continuity of appropriate electrical equipment. (Refer to Electrical Safety Test
No. 3, Maximum parameter: 0.15 OHM)

Test the polarity and tension of electrical receptacles. (Refer to Electrical Safety Test No. 1,
Maintenance Manual, parameter: 8 oz or 225 g.)

Test warning devices of the line isolation monitor using an appropriate simulated fauit load (2
or 5 MA). (Refer to Electrical Safety Test No. 7.)

Check the grounding environment of the anesthetizing room. (Refer to Electrical Safety Test
No. 2, Maximum parameter: 40 Milliamperes or 0.15 OHM)

Prepare a Corrective Maintenance Order for any repair work which will take more than 30
minutes to perform or for which the necessary tools or parts are not Available.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC02.06.01

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




Porica)
WATSONVLLLE

COMBUMITT A0 FITAL

Policy Title Environmental Maintenance Non Patient Care Area | Policy # PO2006
Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/8/2022
l. PURPOSE

To define the procedure for inspecting a non-patient care area and performing preventive and
corrective maintenance as needed.

. POLICY
Non-Patient Care Area - Area in which patients are not normally cared for or treated, such as
administrative offices, laboratories, nursing stations, storage areas or kitchens.

lll. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1. Inspect the area for abnormal conditions or those which detract from the aesthetic
appearance of the area, such as chipped or peeling paint or wall coverings, broken electrical
receptacle covers and burned-out lamps.
Check the integrity and function of minor mechanical and electrical equipment.
Lubricate and make minor adjustments to equipment, as needed.
Clean and vacuum equipment and those portions of the area not accessible to housekeeping
personnel (e.g., electrical closets).

5. Check ground continuity of appropriate electrical equipment. (Refer to Electrical Safety Test
No. 3, Maximum parameter: 0.15 OHM)

6. Test the polarity and tension of electrical receptacles. (Refer to Electrical Safety Test No. 1,
Minimum parameter: § oz or 225 g.)

7. Prepare a Corrective Maintenance Order for any repair work which will take more than 30
minutes to perform or for which the necessary tools or parts are not readily available.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC02.06.01

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



%

WATSONYLLLE

<l ‘ﬁ&"l‘ﬂl?'ﬁ' L FITAL

Policy Title Environmental Maintenance Mechanical Area Policy | Policy # P02008
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/8/2022
I. PURPOSE

To define the procedure for inspecting a mechanical area and performing preventive and corrective
maintenance as needed.

lIl. POLICY

Mechanical Area - Area of restricted access containing plant equipment.

lil. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE (semi-Annual)
1. Inspect the area for abnormal conditions or those which detract from the aesthetic

appearance of the area, such as chipped or peeling paint or wall coverings, broken electrical

receptacle covers, burned out lamps and signs of water leakage (discoloration).
Inspect all utility controls to ensure proper labeling.
Inspect all electrical conduit and piping insulation, hangers and supports. Make minor

w N

adjustments as needed.

No oM~

Inspect and clear all vents and louvers. Change natural draft filters, if installed.
Inspect floor and floor drains. Clean as necessary.
Clean and vacuum the area.

Check electrical areas and move any combustibles or other equipment which have been

stored within 3 feet of electrical panels, transformers, or switchgear.
8. Prepare a Corrective Maintenance Order for any repair work which will take more than 30
minutes to perform or for which the necessary tools or parts are not readily available.

V. REFERENCES

The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC.02.06.01

VI. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 1 of 1



SN

WATSONVILLE

COMBUMITY O FITAL

Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Fire Warning and Policy # PO2010
Safety System Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/8/2022
I. PURPOSE

To describe the process by which the fire warning and safety system is maintained and inspected.

II. POLICY

META Check - A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring and
documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.

TMS - A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring, and
documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.

The facility will also maintain a comprehensive inventory of all device associated will the Fire Alarm
and Sprinkler System.

lil. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
A. The Statement of Conditions that describes the current condition of the buildings’ structural
features of fire protection is maintained by the Director of Facilities/Plant Operations and is

kept in the Facilities/Plant Operations office.

B. The circuits of fire alarm and detection systems are inspected and periodically receive

preventive maintenance, based on the table below. Records of inspections and maintenance
are on file in the office of the Director of Facilities/Plant Operation / Safety Officer.
C. Fire pumps and sprinklers are inspected and tested based on the table below as required by
the NFPA and The Joint Commission Accreditation standards. Records of inspections and
testing are on file in the office of the Director of Facilities/Plant Operations.
D. All portable fire extinguishers are inspected monthly in-house and maintained annually by an
outside contractor. Records of inspection and maintenance on file in the office of the Director
of Facilities/Plant Operations.

E. All other fire protection equipment (dampers, valves, etc.) are tested and maintained in

accordance with the table below

EC.01.01.01.6&EC.02.03.05 Inspection Requirements and Activities

1 Fire Alarm System
1. Test all supervisory signal devices Quarterly
2. Test all tamper switches & water flow devices Quarterly
3. Test & maintain all elements of fire alarm system Annually
] Occupant Alarm Notification Devices
Test & maintain all devices | Annually
Fire Department Alarm Transmission Verification
Verification of fransmission | Quarterly
Sprinkler System
1. Perform fire pump no flow churn test Weekly
2. Perform fire pump flow test Annually

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Fire Warning and Policy # PO2010
Safety System Policy

3. Perform main drain test Quarterly if
backflow

prevented is
upstream from

main drain.
Otherwise
Annually
4. Inspection of fire department connections Quarterly
5. Test water tank level alarms Quarterly
6. Test water tank freeze alarms Seasonal
7. Obstruction tests 5 years
8. Fire sprinkler gauges calibrated or replaced _| 5 years

nsectlon malntenance &cleanln m
lnsectlon & mamtenance e ~ Annuall |

[ I' ortable fire Extingul —
i Extinguisher inspection Monthly
2. Extinguisher maintenance Annually
3. Hydrostatic testing | Syears

1. Perform hydrstaic test ' hoses =3
2. Perform standpipe flow test

1 yr. after
installation &
every 6 years
thereafter

rational test ) L S EEE Annually "

V. REFERENCES
NFPA 10, 20, 25, and 72
The Joint Commission EC.01.01.01.6, and EC.02.03.05

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2



;

WATSONVILLE

]

ORARTUMITY 0 PITAL
Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Electrical Distribution Policy # PO2011
System and Emergency Generator Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/9/2022
I. PURPOSE

To describe the process by which the electrical distribution system is maintained and inspected.

il. POLICY
It is the policy of Watsonville Community Hospital that the electrical distribution systems will be
maintained and operated according to all applicable codes and agency regulations. In addition, there
will be a scheduled maintenance system that is used to schedule, monitor, and document the testing
and maintenance of the electrical distribution system at required intervals.

lil. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1.

Based on the outcome of the risk assessment all electrical receptacles in selected patient
care areas will be checked by an engineer within the established time frame set for the
maintenance of that environmental unit.

Work orders are generated for other components of the electrical distribution system on
predetermined intervals.

The work orders are assigned by the Facilities Director or his designee.

The electrical distribution system is inspected and tested at predetermined intervals. The
engineer will perform any preventative maintenance and corrective maintenance as
necessary.

A corrective maintenance form is submitted for any repair work that exceeds 30 minutes to
complete or for which tools or parts are not readily available.

A scheduled maintenance work order is completed by the engineer, indicating specific
preventative or corrective maintenance actions taken. The date the scheduled maintenance
was completed is entered on the form and it is submitted to the Facilities Director or his
designee.

The Plant Operations/Facilities Management Department will inspect the generator and
batteries weekly. A generator test will be performed (not under actual load) weekly. The tests
are documented, and the test results are reviewed weekly by Plant Operations/Safety to
assure the generator is starting and performing in a reliable manner.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Accreditation Standards EC 02.05.05
NFPA 110, and 99
T™MS
Manufacturer Specifications

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




ot

NATSONVLLLE

COMMERUMITY 0 PITAL

Policy Title Emergency Generator Load Testing Policy Policy # PO2012
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/9/2022
l. PURPOSE

Define a policy requiring proper load testing of emergency generators.

POLICY
In order to further ensure operational reliability, preventative maintenance will be conducted by a
qualified team member or contractor at predetermined intervals.

Repairs or additional service as required will receive highest priority and will be completed only by
qualified technicians. Responsibility for completion of immediate additional service is that of the
Director of Plant Operations/Facilities Management.

DEFINITIONS
N/A

. PROCEDURE

The following services will be performed on each scheduled service call:
Items To Be Inspected Or Serviced:

1. All fluid levels will be checked to ensure they are within the correct operating range.

2. Inspect and clean air filter element. Replace if necessary.

3. Fuel tanks and lines (above ground and accessible) will be inspected for leaks and for

determining if excessive sludge, water, or rust is collecting. All fuel filters and sediment

bowels will be inspected, cleaned, and replaced as necessary.

All coolant hoses will be inspected for security, brittleness, leaking, cracking, and weakness.

The entire unit will be lubricated. Qil will be changed if the running time meter exceeds one

hundred (100) hours of operation since the last oil change or once annually. Qil filters will be

changed with each oil change.

6. All batteries will be cleaned, specific gravities checked, and load tested.

7. Jacket water heater will be checked for proper operation.

8. Ali belts will be inspected for proper tension and condition.

8. All brushes on generator will be checked for proper setting.

10. All instruments will be checked for proper operation.

11. Automatic transfer switch will be checked for proper operation if load transfer is possible.

12. All safety alarms and shutdowns will be checked for proper operation.

13. Battery charger will be checked for proper operation.

14. Personnel will be instructed on operating procedures and upkeep.

15. After all of the above has been completed, the engine will be run and driven equipment under
load providing it is practical to run the test.

16. The Plant Operations/Facilities Management Department will inspect the generator (including
batteries) and test it under actual load and operating temperature conditions for at least 30
minutes monthly.

17. The Plant Operations/Facilities Department will start the generator weekly to ensure reliable
starts and to make general observations.

18. Generator tests are documented. The Director of Facilities, Safety or designee reviews tests
weekly to assure generator is performing in a reliable manner. Refer to EC.02.05.07.4-7
“Generator Test Log".

ok~

Page 1 of 2




Policy Title

Emergency Generator Load Testing Policy

Policy #

P0O2012

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC 02.05.07
NFPA 110

TMS

Vi. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 2 of 2




GEmtEN

WATSONVILLE

COMMUPMITY A0 FITAL

Policy Title Interior Furnishings, Finishes and Flooring Policy # PO2026
Requirements Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/28/2022
I. PURPOSE

To outline the policy under which furnishings, finishes, and coverings (such as drapes, bedspreads,
blankets, furniture, wall covering, and flooring) are selected regarding fire safety and use.

POLICY|

Flame spread and smoke development criteria shall meet requirements of NFPA Life Safety Code
101, Section 6-5. Selection of wall covering, flooring, etc. will also be made on the basis of the ability
to clean it, the safety and the appropriateness for the area being served.

. DEFINITIONS

N/A

. PROCEDURE

Material Classification

Wall and Celling Finishes - Shall be classified as follows based on test results from NFPA 255
"Standard Method of Test of Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials”

Class A Flame Spread 0-25 Smoke 0-450

Class B Flame Spread 26-75 Smoke 0-450

Class C Flame Spread 76-200 Smoke 0-450

Floor Finishes - Shall be classified as follows based on test results from NFPA "Standard Method of
Test for Critical Radiant Flux of Floor Covering Systems Using a Radiant Heat Energy Source”

Class "A" Critical radiant flux, minimum of 0.45 watts per square centimeter.

Class "B" Critical radiant flux, minimum of 0.22 watts per square centimeter FIRE RETARDANT
COATINGS: The required flame spread or smoke developed classification of surfaces may be
secured by applying approved fire retardant coatings to surfaces having higher flame spread ratings
than permitted.

Such treatments shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 3, NFPA 703. "Standard for Fire
Retardant Impregnated Wood and fire-Retardant Coatings for Building Materials."

FURNISHINGS, DECORATIONS, AND TREATED FINISHES: Life Safety Code 101, 31-1.4.1.
Draperies, curtains and other similar furnishings and decorations shall be flame resistant where
required by the applicable provisions of the Chapter. These materials required to be tested shall be
done so in accordance with NFPA 701, Standard Methods of Fire Test for Flame-Resistant Textiles
and Films and shall comply with both the small and large-scale tests.

NOTE -- AUTOMATIC SPRINKLERS
Where a complete standard system of Automatic sprinklers is installed, CLASS "C" INTERIOR

FINISH MATERIALS may be used in any location where Class B and Class A are normally specified
(Unless specifically prohibited elsewhere in the code).

Page 1 of 2




Policy Title Interior Furnishings, Finishes and Flooring
Requirements Policy

Policy #

P0O2026

Therefore:
1. Interior wall and ceiling may be Class B
2. Interior floors may be Class Il.
3. Furniture must meet standards set forth in NFPA 260B and 261.
4. The Joint Commission recommends that patient sleep rooms and exit corridors meet Class A

and Class Il requirements.

V. REFERENCES
TJC STANDARD: LS.02.01.30
NFPA 101, 261

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2




WATSONVILLE

COMMUMITY A0 PITAL

Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection of HVAC System Policy # P0O2013
Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/9/2022
l. PURPOSE

V.

To describe the process by which the heat, air conditioning and ventilation system is maintained
and inspected.

POLICY

1.

Meta Check - A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring
and documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.

2. TMS- A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring and
documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.

3. Acurrent, complete set of documents that indicate the distribution and controls for partial or
complete shutdown of each HVAC system is on file.

DEFINITIONS
N/A
PROCEDURE

1. A work order for preventive maintenance, inspection and/or testing of each component part of
the HVAC system is produced on a pre-determined and pre-programmed schedule by the
META Check/TMS.

2. The work is assigned by the Facilities Director or designee.

3. The engineer performs preventive maintenance (and corrective maintenance, if needed),
inspects the system and conducts testing as specified in the META Check/TMS instruction
set printed on the work order.

4. The engineer prepares and submits to the Engineering Department a Corrective Maintenance
Form for any repair work which will take more than the normal required time to complete or
for which he does not have tools or parts readily available.

5. The engineer completes the Scheduled Maintenance Work Order, indicating specific

preventive or corrective actions he has taken and noting the date the scheduled maintenance
was completed. He then submits the work order to the Facilities/Plant Operations Office for
entry in the META Check/TMS.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC.02.05.05

META Check
T™S
Manufacturers Specifications

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




Jotca)
WATSONYLLLE

COMMUMITY QCEFITAL

Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Water Distribution and | Policy # PO2014
Plumbing System Policy

Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/10/2022

I. PURPOSE
To describe the process by which the water distribution/plumbing system is maintained and
inspected.

Il. POLICY

lll. DEFINITIONS
1. META Check - A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling,
monitoring and documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.
2. TMS- A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring and
documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.
3. Acurrent valve chart is on file.

IV. PROCEDURE

1. A work order for preventive maintenance, inspection and/or testing of each component of the
water distribution/plumbing system is produced on a pre-determined and pre-programmed
schedule by the META Check/TMS.

2. The work is assighed by the Facilities Director or designee.

3. The engineer performs preventive maintenance (and corrective maintenance, if needed),
inspects the system and conducts testing as specified in the META Check/TMS instruction
set printed on the work order.

4. The engineer prepares and submits to the Engineering Department a Corrective Maintenance
Form for any repair work which will take more than normal required time to complete or for
which he does not have tools or parts readily available.

5. The engineer completes the Scheduled Maintenance Work Order, indicating specific
preventive or corrective actions he has taken and noting the date the scheduled maintenance
was completed, and submits the work order to the Facilities/Plant Operations Office for entry
in the META Check.

6. Back flow protection devices are tested and maintained as required by AHJ, by an outside
vendor under contract. Test results are kept in the Facilities/Plant Operations Office.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC.02.05.05
META Check
TMS
Manufacturers’ recommendations

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



Pt

WATSONVILLE

SRV MITY 00 FITAL

Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Boiler Steam System Policy # PO2015
Policy

Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/11/2022

l. PURPOSE

To describe the process by which the boiler/steam system are maintained and inspected.
Il. POLICY
lii. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1.
2.

3.

Work orders are generated for each component of the boiler and steam system on a
predetermined interval.

The boiler and steam system are inspected, tested, and preventative maintenance is
completed at the above-predetermined level.

The work orders are assigned by the Facilities Director or designee.

The Facilities/Plant Operations Department personnel will perform preventative and
corrective maintenance within their capabilities as needed. An outside contractor is used to
perform periodic tune ups and major repairs. State inspection of the system is performed on
an annual basis, with current permits and other documentation on site.

A corrective maintenance form is submitted for any repair work that exceeds 30 minutes to
complete or for which tools or parts are not readily available.

A scheduled maintenance work order is completed by the engineer, indicating specific
preventative or corrective actions taken. The date the scheduled maintenance was completed
is entered on the form and it is submitted to the Facilities Director or his designee.

The Facilities/Plant Operations Department personnel inspects the alternative fuel supply at
least quarterly and replenishes it when the level is at minimum level to maintain at least a 24-
hour supply.

The Facilities/Plant Operation Department personnel conduct a daily water test and
document their findings. Facilities/Plant Operations personnel adjust chemicals as required.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC.02.05.05
META Check
TMS
Manufacturers recommendations

V. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




foria

WATSONVILLE

COMMWMITY OO FITAL

Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Medical Gas System Policy # PO2016
Policy

Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/11/2022

. PURPOSE

To describe the process by which the medical-gas system are maintained and inspected.
Il. POLICY
lll. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1.

An Engineering Tech checks the normal and reserve supplies of liquid oxygen once each day
and documents the levels in the Plant Services Log. Oxygen is re-ordered when the level
drops to 30 inches.

An Engineering Tech checks the normal and reserve supply of nitrous oxide once each day
and documents the levels in the Plant Services Log. Nitrous oxide cylinder banks are
replaced when the primary supply is exhausted and the secondary supply is activated. The
watch engineer then shuts off the valve on the empty tanks to prevent back flow. Nitrous
Oxide is reordered when the level drops to four cylinders.

An Engineering Tech observes the delivery and transfer of oxygen. Invoice copies indicating
volumes and purity delivered are kept on file in the Facilities/Plant Operations Department
Following periods of construction or evidence (e.g. alarms) that the system has been
breached, the medical-gas system will be tested by certified medical testing vendor to verify
that the gases being delivered meet regulatory requirements. Documentation of such testing
will be kept on file in Facilities/Plant Operations office.

In accordance with the META Check/TMS environmental maintenance procedures for non-
flammable anesthetizing locations, critical care areas and general patient care areas, an
engineer inspects the wall outlets and fittings for medical-gas delivery and makes repairs as
necessary. He also verifies that zone and control valves are labeled appropriately

The Engineer tests the Medical Gas Alarm System low pressure alarm on the control panel
once each month and documents such testing in the Plant Operations Log.

An annual test of the entire medical-gas system will be conducted in accordance with NFPA
99.

Deficiencies noted on inspection reports must be corrected in a timely manner and
documentation of corrections must be on file in The Facilities/Plant Operations office.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC.02.05.05
EC Policy: EC.02.05.04
NFPA 99
META Check
T™S
Manufacturer's recommendations

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




ool _
WATSONVYILLLE

COMMUMITY T106E FITAL

Policy Title Maintenance and Inspection Medical Surgical Air Policy # PO2017
and Vacuum System
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/11/2022
I. PURPOSE
To describe the process by which the medical/surgical air and vacuum system are maintained and
inspected.
Il. POLICY

Il. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1. 1. A work order for preventive maintenance, inspection and/or testing of each component of
the medical/surgical air and vacuum system is produced on a pre-determined and pre-
programmed schedule by the META Check/TMS.

2. The work is assigned by the Facilities Director or designee.

3. The engineer performs preventive maintenance (and corrective maintenance, if needed),
inspects the system and conducts testing as specified in the META Check/TMS instruction
set printed on the work order. "

4. The engineer prepares and submits to the Facilities/Plant Operations Department a
Corrective Maintenance Form for any repair work which will take more than normal required
time to complete or for which he does not have tools or parts readily available.

5. The engineer completes the Scheduled Maintenance Work Order, indicating specific
preventive or corrective actions he has taken and noting the date the scheduled maintenance
was completed and then submits the work order to the Facilities/Plant Operations Office for
entry in the META Check/TMS.

6. Respiratory Therapy Department personnel check system flow rates before each procedure
and report malfunctions to Facilities department.

7. An annual test of the entire system will be conducted in accordance with NFPA 99,

8. Deficiencies noted on inspection reports must be corrected in a timely manner and
documentation of corrections must be on file in The Facilities Management/Plant Operations
office.

9. Following repairs or modifications, the medical/surgical air and vacuum system will be tested
by an approved company to verify that it has been connected properly and vields a sufficient
volume of vacuum at each outlet. Documentation of such testing will be kept on file with the
Facilities Director.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards EC.02.01.01, EC.02.05.05
NFPA 99
META Check
TMS
Manufacturers Recommendations

VIl. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



fotsoa)

WATSONYILLLE

COMBMLUMITY D4 PITAL

Policy Title Domestic Water Temperature Policy Policy # P0O2018
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/11/2022
. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to inform associates of the maximum allowable hot water temperature
in Watsonville Community Hospital.

ll. POLICY

it is the policy of Watsonville Community Hospital to ensure the safety of patients and associates by
regulating hot water temperature, in accordance with State Health Department regulations.

Ii. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
1. The temperature of hot water used by patients (domestic hot water) in Watsonville

Community Hospital shall be maintained in accordance with state health department

regulations (DOH). Absent state regulations, the following limits shall apply:

a. 95-110 degrees Fahrenheit in residential treatment buildings/spaces (e.g., Nursing

Homes and Long-Term Care Units).

b. 105-120 degrees Fahrenheit in hospital buildings/spaces.
2. Food Services hot water temperature will be a minimum of 140 degrees in utensil dish wash
area. Dishwasher final rinse temperature shall be 180 degrees unless alternative sanitization
methods are used.
3. The temperature of domestic hot water is tested monthly as part of environmental
maintenance checks.

V. REFERENCES

N/A

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Plant Operations

All Staff

Page 1 of 1



Pt

WATSONVILLLE

COMMUMITY Q4 PITAL

Policy Title Scheduled Equipment Maintenance Policy Policy # P0O2019
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/11/2022
I. PURPOSE

VL

To define the procedure for inspection, maintenance, and repair of significant equipment and

components of utilities systems deemed essential for normal medical center operations.

POLICY

. DEFINITIONS

N/A

PROCEDURE
Scheduled Maintenance - Includes, as appropriate, inspection, preventive and corrective
maintenance, functional testing, performance testing and calibration and safety testing.

Equipment - (Specific Scheduled Maintenance), as used in this procedure, equipment shall mean
those individually inventoried items of equipment which meet one or more of the following criteria:

1. Essential, directly, or indirectly, for supporting an ongoing normal hospital environment.
2. Associated with a higher-than-normal incident risk during routine operation.

3. Requires, by reason of its complexity, a more intensive maintenance schedule.

4. Supplied or maintained by an external vendor.

Environmental Scheduled Maintenance - Equipment and Utility System Components requiring
equipment. Specific Scheduled Maintenance will be grouped into an Environmental Scheduled
Maintenance Unit.

TMS OnSite Professional - A computerized information system used to facilitate the scheduling,
monitoring and documentation of equipment and environmental maintenance.

Maintenance Data Table - A table listing all types of individually inventoried equipment and distinct

environmental units or equipment groups, and including, for each, the appropriate maintenance
procedure number and frequency of maintenance.

Equipment Listing by Location - A computerized list of all patient care and non-patient care
equipment, powered and non-powered, in the facility, arranged by location of use.

Applied History - A computerized record of all scheduled and corrective maintenance performed
patient care and non-patient care equipment in the facility.

REFERENCES
ENVIRONMENT OF CARE MANUAL
TJC STANDARD: EC.02.05.01.03, EC.02.05.01.4, EC.02.04.01.3.e, EC.02.04.01.4
TMS ON-SITE PROFESSIONAL

STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

on all

Page 1 of 1



5N .
WATSONVILLE

COAMUMITY D108 FITAL

Policy Title New Equipment Inventory and Inspection Policy Policy # PO2020
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/11/2022
l. PURPOSE

To outline the procedure by which new non-patient care equipment is inventoried and inspected
before release for patient care or other use.

IIl. POLICY|
1. All non-patient care equipment designated for use anywhere within the hospital shall be
inspected and tested by the Facilities/Plant Operations Department before initial use.
2. New equipment which fails to pass the applicable electrical and mechanical safety tests will
not be approved for use in the hospital until such deficiencies have been corrected.

Il. DEFINITIONS
Environmental Unit - A space of manageable size in terms of square footage or work intensity
classified by the principal activity which takes place within it.

Equipment Identification Number - A number assigned to a specific piece of equipment, grouping
or environmental unit for the purposes of identification and maintenance scheduling.

IV. PROCEDURE

1. The receiving department (Materials Management) notifies the Engineering Department that
new equipment has been received.

2. The Engineering Department will inspect the equipment.

3. The technician then performs a series of electrical and mechanical tests on the new
equipment as outlined in the user manual and performs the required Electrical Safety Test.

4. If the equipment fails to pass the required tests or does not meet the standards specified by
the hospital, the technician/engineer will return the equipment to the Material Management
Department.

5. Once the equipment has been determined to meet the standards specified, the equipment
will be evaluated following the procedure outline in the Utility Systems Inventory and Risks
EC.02.05.01.2 to determine if it will be included in the utilities management program.

6. Following the inspection and evaluation, an individual asset number is to be assigned and the
following information collected.

Description: the equipment description is to be identified based on the Type, Category,
Subcategory populated in CMMS.

Building: Buildings that equipment will be housed in.

Floor: This will be 1, 2, Basement, Ground, Roof, Outside, etc.

Location: Use the room number, or area.

Location Description: Give any useful information as to where the equipment is located
within the room, such as by the window, etc. Be especially certain to include locations on the
ceiling.

Manufacture, Model #, Serial #, Purchase date: if available.

Once the above information is collected, the equipment should be entered into CMMS and the
standard procedure shall be assigned with the appropriate maintenance intervals. Reference the
User's Manual for instructions on adding new assets.

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title

New Equipment Inventory and Inspection Policy

Policy #

P0O2020

V. REFERENCES

TJC Standards: EC.02.05.01.03, EC.02.05.01.4, EC.02.04.01.3.e, EC.02.04.01.4

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 2 of 2




S5EN

WATSONVLLLE

COMMUMITY D108 PITAL

Policy Title Equipment & Problem Identification Policy # P0O2021
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/15/2022
. PURPOSE

To outline the procedure by which damaged or malfunctioning equipment will be repaired and
problem identification will be managed. The Maintenance Management Program shall be used to
identify and document equipment problems, failures and user errors that have or may have an
adverse effect on patient safety and/or the quality of care.

Il. POLICY|

lll. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

1.

Response from department personnel shall be in a reasonable time frame based on the
nature of the problem. Response shall be courteous, reliable, and productive. Each request
for service or repair received shall be answered within twenty-four hours. Requests affecting
patient care, environmental safety and sanitation shall be corrected during the same
workday. Failure to adhere to the required response and correction times must be approved
by the Facilities Director or his designee. All completed requests will be turned into the
Facilities Services Department, showing action taken and time and materials used for
completion. Upon completion, the engineer signs the request as complete and returns it to
the Service Coordinator.
When requesting repair and /or maintenance, each department will complete a maintenance
request and send it to Facilities Department for action by the Facilities person scheduled to
respond.
The request for repairs and/or maintenance will be the authorization for Facilities Services to
complete the request unless the cost exceeds 25% of the value of the equipment or a total
cost of $500.00 or more. In such cases, the department manager and the Controller will be
contacted for approval before proceeding.
When more than twenty-four hours are required to obtain parts, service, or repairs; a
response will be directed to the department manager by sending a "Maintenance Request
Follow-Up".
Outside service vendors will check in with the Facilities Department and obtain a pass and a
work order for the service to be rendered. When the work is completed, the service report will
be signed by the department manager or their designee. The service vendor will then turn in
the service report to the Service Coordinator who will attach a purchase order number for the
charges.
Quality - It is essential that service and repairs be of the best quality. This is accomplished by
the following:

a. Institute a work order or maintenance request.

b. When completed, work orders and maintenance requests are reviewed daily by the

Chief engineer and facilities coordinator.

c. Vender call backs are noted on the second work order/maintenance request.

d. Call back is discussed with the responsible in-house service person or vendor.

e. The equipment history is reviewed when reoccurring problems are suspected.

Page 1 of 2




Policy Title Equipment & Problem Identification Policy # P0O2021

7.

10.

11.

f. Repeat repairs are discussed with the department manager to assure the proper
operations and care of equipment.
g. Each engineer/bio-med tech and the service Coordinator are expected to make
known to the Director of Facilities/Materials repeat repairs or service.
Each engineer having incomplete service requests at the end of a shift will transfer
information from the request to the "Incomplete Maintenance Request" form for follow up
repair. Note: Incomplete service is any assignment not completed due to lack of time, parts
not ordered, or outside service is required but not scheduled. If the repair work is performed,
outside the facility, the assigned individual inspects or tests the equipment upon its return to
make certain the repairs have been made properly and that the equipment meets appropriate
electrical safety standards before returning it to the user department. (See Policy PO-2021)
If it is determined that the equipment cannot be repaired, the equipment is returned to the
user department and communicates with the department manager about disposal by using
the "Equipment Inventory Change" form.
In order to speed up repairs and maintenance on equipment, the responsible engineer does
the following:
a. Handling requests for service and repair.
b. Orders all repair parts
c. Follows up on service and repairs including changes, repeat repairs, parts delivery,
and suppliers.
d. Completes check requests when applicable.
e. Finalizes paperwork with the request for purchase.
When closing each Corrective Maintenance Work Order the responsible engineer for facilities
coordinator shall classify as to Work Order TYPE (USER ERROR, OR EQUIPMENT
FAILURE).
Facilities coordinator shall run a monthly report from META Check of the type of equipment
problems. Copies of this report shall be used to complete the monthly Equipment Service
Order Evaluation.

V. REFERENCES

ENVIRONMENT OF CARE MANUAL

TJC STANDARD: EC.01.01.01.7, EC.01.01.01.8
META Check

Vi. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2




WATSONVLLLE

CERSRLMITY OO FITAL

Policy Title Renovation and Construction Policy

Policy #

PO2022

Responsible | Facilities

Revised/Reviewed

11/17/2022

l. PURPOSE

Define a policy for participation of the Facilities/Plant Operations department in renovations and

construction.

iI. POLICY

1. The Facilities/Plant Operations Department is staffed for building and equipment
maintenance, minor repairs, and service to other departments. Other duties include the
development, promotion, and performance of any and all duties relating to conformance with
codes and standards of all regulatory authorities concerned.

2. Priorities
a.
b. Codes and standards
¢. Service to other departments
d. Service related to patient care
e.

Building and equipment preventive maintenance programs

Construction — The Facilities Director must be involved in all construction planning.

Department participation should not be such that it will delay or exempt priorities A,

B, C,and D.

3. All construction shall conform to the AlA guidelines for healthcare construction, the NFPA Life
Safety code, the insurance carrier requirements, and state healthcare standards.

4. Fire protection, grounds and environmental safety shall be maintained at al! times during
construction. Interim life safety measures shall be documented, and the level of life safety

shall never be diminished.

lll. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
N/A

V. REFERENCES
Environment of Care Manual

VL. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



Pt

WATSONVLLLE

<

CMERTLTMITY S0 PITAL
Policy Title Regulations for Contractors While Performing Policy # PO2023
Construction
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/17/2022
I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to define expectations and procedures when Facilities/Plant Operations
employees are assigned to be on call. Facilities/Plant Operations services are required twenty-four
hours a day, seven days a week, to meet the needs for safe, quality, and comfortable patient care.

il. POLICY

1. General regulations for contractors:

a. Contractors are expected to comply with normal hospital safety requirements of the
areas in which they are working. This requires them to wear safety equipment and,
where appropriate, follow pertinent procedures such as work permits and area safety
rules.

b. Contractors' employees are to confine their activities to their specific job areas.

No equipment is to be operated without proper safety guards in place.

Excavations and other hazardous work areas are to be provided with shoring,

warning signs, ropes, guards, rails, or other adequate protection.

e. The possession of intoxicants or illegal drugs on hospital grounds will not be
permitted.

f. No tobacco products permitted in or near work area.

g. Horseplay and practical jokes are prohibited.

oo

Special Hot Work Permits: (within occupied areas)

a. Special Hot Work Permits will be required when welding, cutting, grinding or any
open flame is to be performed. These permits will be issued through the Facilities
Services Department during normal hours.

b. Arcs, flashes, and sparks are to be shielded with flameproof curtains and/or floor
coverings.

c. AFire Extinguisher is required within twenty-five (25) feet of all flames or arcs or any
other hot work.

Location of Fire Alarm Equipment:
a. The hospital representative should locate the nearest fire alarm box and explain how
to turn on an alarm and what should be done when an alarm sounds. All burning and
welding should stop when the alarm sounds.

Housekeeping:
a. Good housekeeping must be maintained at all times. Special care must be taken not
to block walkways, roadways or firefighting and safety equipment.
b. All dirt and dust must be completely vacuumed at workday end.

Use of Hospital Equipment:
a. Contractors must furnish their own tools and equipment.
b. Electricity, steam, water, air, or fire lines are not to be used without permission of the
hospital representative.
c. Hospital personnel must place lock-outs on the main circuit breakers to insure that
lines will not be energized or equipment operated while work is being performed on
equipment.

Hospital Furnishings:

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title Regulations for Contractors While Performing Policy # P0O2023
Construction
a. All ceiling tiles must be back in place by workday end. If job requires the same tile to

b.

C.

be out the following day, special permission can be obtained from the Director of
Facilities or his designee.

All carpet and flooring and walls must be maintained and kept in their original
condition as it was at the start of construction.

All hospital furnishings and equipment shall be moved out of construction area and
not be damaged in any way. All damages shall be reported to the Facilities Services
Department for appropriate and immediate action.

7. Hazardous Materials:

a.

Contractors must be informed of the chemical hazards their employees may be
exposed to during the period they work in the facility. While the contractor is
responsible for the training of his personnel, it is required that they be informed of the
criteria for safe behavior.

SDS information will be made available to the contractor's management personnel.
Contractors must demonstrate they are in compliance with state and local laws
governing hazardous communication.

Contractors must supply SDS information on all hazardous chemicals brought into
workplace.

8. Letter of Transmittal:

a.

lIl. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE

N/A

V. REFERENCES

A signed acknowledgment form shall be attached with these regulations so that a
record can be maintained that the regulations in this document were communicated.

TJC STANDARD:
EC.02.06.05 1-6
EC.02.01.01.1
LS. 01.02.01

NFPA 99

VI. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 2 of 2




Jotian)
WATSONVLLLE

COMBVMITY i FITAL

Policy Title Construction Smoking Policy Policy # P0O2024
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/28/2022
I. PURPOSE

Vi.

Define a policy to outline a designated smoking area for contractors during construction.

POLICY

Smoking and all other uses of tobacco products are prohibited at all times, under all circumstances,
by all persons, in the interior and on the roofs of all Watsonville Community Hospital buildings.
Smoking and other uses of tobacco products are discouraged throughout Watsonville Community
Hospital grounds. Smoking is permitted only in specially designated smoking areas in accordance
with hospital policy.

DEFINITIONS
N/A

. PROCEDURE

1. Follow Watsonville Community Hospital smoking policy.
2. Smoking is only permitted in the designated areas determined by the CEO, the EOC
Committee or Safety Officer.

REFERENCES
TJC STANDARD: EC.02.01.03.1,4,6

STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




£S5

WATSONVILIE

COMPUMITY Q08 PITAL

Policy Title Mercury Spill Clean-up Policy Policy # PO3006
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 1/3/2023
l. PURPOSE

It is the policy of the Watsonville Community Hospital to respond to spills of materials posing a
threat to health or the environment in ways that protect staff, patients, visitors and the
environment; and comply with applicable laws and regulations.

Il. POLICY|

lil. DEFINITIONS
MERCURY: Mercury is a silver metallic liquid, which is easily vaporized under normal room
temperatures. It is toxic by contact, by inhalation and should be handled with great care.
Considering mercury’s hazardous nature, toxicity, and readily available alternatives, it should be
phased out of active hospital use.

SMALL MERCURY SPILL: A small spill, (less than 5 ml) in an area with hard surfaces, which allow
the mercury to be accessed by an aspirator.

LARGE MERCURY SPILL: A spill of more than 5 ml, or a spill which occurs on a soft surface, such
as carpet, furniture, which may not be completely cleaned.

IV. PROCEDURE
Mercury spills should only be handled by staff trained to work with the materials. Spills should never
be handled with bare hands or with latex gloves, as they offer minimal protection against mercury's
effects. Where possible, all spills should be covered by water, either in a puddle, or by wet towels or
sheets, to minimize vaporization. (Mercury evaporates much more easily than water) All spills should
be reported to Facilities/Plant Operations and the Safety Officer.

Handling of Mercury Spills and leaks

1. Spill Cleanup for Small Quantities (up to 5ml)

a.

The spill location should be closed and/or cordoned off, and all persons asked to leave
the immediate area. If possible, close room doors to keep vapors in the room. If not in an
enclosable room, cover with water-soaked cloth to minimize vapors and keep everyone
away. Post staff at all doors or points of entry into the contaminated area to warn people
who may be trying to enter.

Notify Facilities/Plant Operations and the Safety Officer(via operator if needed).

Obtain a mercury spill cleanup kit from Facilities/Plant Operations and follow the
recommended procedures included in the kit.

Put on the protective equipment located inside the clean-up kit including eyewear, gloves,
mercury vapor respirator, etc. Disposable shoe covers and/or a jumpsuit may be obtained
and worn if deemed necessary

Spray ambient air in affected area with Mercon spray by starting at eye level and working
down towards the floor including on the visible spill.

CAUTION: After applying Mercon spray or water, the floor may become slippery.

Page 1 of 3



Policy Title Mercury Spill Clean-up Policy Policy # PO3006

f. Use mercury aspirator to pick up the mercury beads and deposit them into a closed
container partly filled with water. Ensure the tip of the aspirator is below the water in the
container (Note: Syringe with blunt canula may also be used).

NOTE: The closed container can be re-used, provided it is not more than % full

g. Wipe the contaminated surface clean with Mercon liquid or similar wipes to chemically
decontaminate the surface.

h. Wipe shoes and other contaminated items with Mercon wipes or disposable towels
saturated with Mercon. Dust mercury-indicating powder around the spill, with special
attention to cracks, crevices, and other areas where mercury beads may have fallen into.
If necessary, repeat steps (e) through (g) no mercury is present.

i. Label all contaminated items after placing them in Hazardous Waste bags (i.e., zipper
lock bags). Larger items may be bagged in clear plastic and held for disposal.

j- Document and file the appropriate incident report.

2. Cleanup for Larger Spills: Any spill of a large amount of metallic mercury (more than § ml) or any

spill on soft materials including carpeting, furniture and similar surfaces is considered a large spill.

a. Isolate the location and relocate all persons in the area.

b. Notify Facilities/Plant Operations and the Safety Officer.

c. Where possible, HVAC systems shall be configured so that air from the contaminated
area is exhausted to the outside. Otherwise, HVAC systems should be isolated in the
affected area by closing dampers, covering air registers, and/or shutting down the air
handling unit.

d. Contact local fire department Haz-mat team and/or licensed chemical response company
to remediate.

e. Once sealed off, re-entry into the contaminated area is strongly discouraged. If re-entry is
absolutely necessary, all persons entering shall wear mercury vapor respirators and other
appropriate PPE as required by the specific situation. Only staff members that have been
fit-tested and trained with the mercury vapor respirator will be permitted to enter
contaminated areas.

Environmental Services is responsible for final cleaning after the area is released as safe.

Disposal of the spilled materials:

a. All materials involved in the spill will be placed in an appropriate container and sealed.
This container will be brought to the chemical waste storage room (or designated
ventilated area) and held for removal by the licensed contractor.

b. The Safety Officer or designee will notify the hazardous waste removal contractor to pick
up the spilled materials as part of normal chemical waste removal.

The Safety Officer is responsible for ensuring that mercury spill clean-up kits are restocked and

available for future use.

Injuries/lliness:

a. Any employee or other person(s) who may be injured or become ill due to a mercury spill
exposure will be transported to the Emergency Services Department for decontamination
and medical treatment.

b. Employees that are concerned about exposure to the vapors should contact Employee
Health Services.

Staff Training:

a. Selected Environmental Services and Facilities/Plant Operations Department employees
are trained in Mercury spill clean-up procedures.

b. Additionally, specific clean-up requirements and procedures are listed as part of the spill
cleanup kit.

c. All staff that are trained and expected to clean up minor mercury spills are fit tested for a
mercury vapor mask. A mercury vapor mask will be worn during all cleanup operations.

Reporting
a. All spills shall be documented and reported to the Environment of Care/Safety committee.

Page20of 3




Policy Title

Mercury Spill Clean-up Policy

Policy #

PO3006

V. REFERENCES

The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditations Standards, EC.02.02.01, EP 3-4.

OSHA CFR 29 1910

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 30f3




forca) _
WATSONVILLE

COMMUNITY 208 PITAL

Policy Title Relocation of Equipment and Furniture Policy Policy # PO2025
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 11/28/2022
l. PURPOSE
To define the means in which equipment, files and furniture are relocated within the facility or relocated
off site.
. POLICY

All equipment, files and furniture is the responsibility of the user department. When it becomes
necessary to relocate an item that cannot be done by department staff, such moves will be pre-
scheduled with Facilities/Plant Operations or the Environmental Services Department.

lil. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE
1. Relocation of furniture, files, or desks within the hospital proper shall be scheduled with
Environmental Services.

2. Relocation of equipment requiring venting, plumbing or electrical changes shall be scheduled

with Facilities/Plant Operations.

3. Relocation of an entire suite or office will be completed jointly by Facilities/Plant Operations

and Environmental Services as scheduled with the Director of Facilities who will coordinate

the move.

V. REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

Vi. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 1 of 1



S50
WATSONYLLLE

COMMUMITY L0 FITAL

Policy Title Use of Personal Electronic Equipment Policy # P0O2028
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/1/2022
I. PURPOSE

Iv.

VI

To define the restrictions and procedures by which personal electrical/electronic equipment may be
used in the hospital.

POLICY]|

The hospital discourages the use of personal equipment in the facility such as personal radios,
televisions, hair dryers, razors, etc. by the patient or employee. Exception: Equipment belonging to
the patient may be waived if it is necessary to speed the patient's recovery, ordered by the physician,
and approved by the Nurse Supervisor.

DEFINITIONS
N/A

PROCEDURE
1. Patient-owned equipment
a. Requested by the physician.
b. Biomedical Engineering; will inspect and approve such equipment if it has an
approved UL Label and is safe for use.
2. Employee's personal equipment may be used if approved by the department manager, if it is
UL approved and meets the hospital safety guidelines for equipment.
3. Medical equipment brought into the hospital for patient care shall be safety tested and
conform to the standards maintained by the hospital for its own equipment. Proof of the test
must be provided in writing to the department manager before use begins

REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




forticn
WATSONVILLE

COMMUMITY 0 FITAL

Policy Title | Vehicle Access and Parking Areas Policy Policy # P0O2029
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/1/2022
I. PURPOSE
To define the means of entrance and exit of hospital services and to specify areas of designated
parking.
Il. POLICY

1. Emergency Entrance
a. Emergency services shall be identified and easily assessable from any vehicle
entrance on the grounds.
b. Adequate parking for emergency vehicles shall be provided.
c. The drive-thru (canopy) will be used for loading and unloading emergency patients
only.
2. Main Hospital Lobby Entrance
a. The front entrance shall be identified and easily assessable from any vehicle
entrance to the grounds.
b. The drive-thru (canopy) is for picking up or dropping off patients only.
3. Freight Entrance
a. Only those drives identified for freight shall be used by delivery vehicles.
b. Freight access is by way of Materials Mgmt. directions.
4. Parking Area Designations - See Attachment
a. Front - Northwest - visitors and patients only
b. Southwest side - as indicated by; for physicians, patients or emergency vehicles.
c. Southeast or rear of hospital near Cobalt area - patients only (where indicated by
signs) and employees.
d. Southeast or rear of hospital off employee entrance door and area near power plant
employees only.
e. Handicap - Adequate parking shall be provided and clearly identified. Unauthorized
vehicles will be ticketed.
5. Security of parking areas
a. Parking areas will be observed by the Security personnel on duty during their
scheduled shift.
b. The employee parking lot will be closed off at one entrance. The employee parking
lot will be continuously monitored by the security guard.
c. Atany time other than 2215 thru 2345 any employee may call or page the security
guard to walk thru to their car or meet them in the lot to escort them into the hospital
provided they are using the employee parking lot.

lll. DEFINITIONS
N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
N/A

V. REFERENCES
Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



Jotia
WATSONVILLE

COMAMUMITY A0 PITAL

Policy Title Utility System Failure Reporting Policy Policy # PO2030
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/2/2022
I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for repairs and a reporting mechanism for utility
system failures. The processes outlined in this policy will serve to provide a root cause analysis for
each internal failure in an effot to prevent such a failure in the future.

. POLICY

lll. DEFINITIONS
UTILITY SYSTEMS- CLASSIFICATIONS

Equipment in the Utility Systems Management Program shall be classified as one of the
following systems:

. Normal power distribution system

. Emergency power distribution system

. Boiler and steam system

. Heating, ventilating and air conditioning system (HVAC)
. Plumbing system

. Medical gas system

. Clinical air and vacuum systems

. Vertical and horizontal transport systems

O~NOOPERWN -

Equipment maintained by the Facilities/Plant Operations department but not classified as
one of the utility systems named above shall not be required to be reported as a Utility
System Failure. Examples of such equipment include but are not limited to OR blanket
warmers, hospital beds, and kitchen equipment.

Utility Systems — Failure Level
All utility system failures shall be classified into one of the following levels:

1. Total Failure: A utility failure that affects the entire utility system, a single building, or
a group of buildings.

Limited failure: A utility failure that affects a single department or multiple
departments.

Affecting patient care: A utility failure that causes modification or interruption of
patient care or medical center operations.

Minor/Nuisance: A utility failure that minimal impact on patient care or medical
center operations.

> DN

IV. PROCEDURE

1. Upon a report of utility system failure, the craftsman shall inspect and evaluate
repairs needed. The craftsman shall call for additional resources if necessary.

2. In the event the utility or major equipment must be removed from service, the
craftsman shall notify the Facilities/Plant Operations lead or the Director of Facilities
Management.

3. The craftsman shall notify the appropriate utility or Service Company if the
equipment is under service contract or if special parts or procedures are necessary.

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title Utility System Failure Reporting Policy

Policy #

P0O2030

4. The craftsman shall notify management of the affected areas. For other than normal
working hours, the Nursing Supervisor shall be notified.
5. Record all pertinent information in the daily log, such as diagnoses, problems and

corrective actions taken.

6. Record all incidents on the Utility System Failure Report (see attachment PO-

2031.1)
Reporting and Analysis

All utility failures shall be reviewed by the Director of Facilities Management and will be assessed
to determine long-tern solutions to each internal failure. Procedural practices will be modified as
needed to minimize future failures of each specific failure if necessary.

Utility system failures classified as “Total Failure, Limited failure or Affecting Patient Care” shall
be forwarded and reviewed by the EOC Committee on a quarterly basis.

V. REFERENCES
N/A

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 0of 2




SN

WATSONYILLE

COMBUNITY HOE PITAL

Policy Title Use of Portable Air Conditioning Units Policy Policy # PO2031
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/5/2022
l. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure the safe use of portable air conditioning units, commonly referred
to as “Spot Coolers” utilized in patient care areas.

Il. POLICY]
Spot coolers may be utilized in patient and non-patient care areas under emergency circumstances
when the air conditioning system is compromised and under repair. It is important that processes be
implemented to ensure safe installation, monitoring and maintenance are performed when these
machines are in service.

Ill. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE

1.
2.

@ o

o~

9.

A list shall be maintained by the Facilities/Plant Operations department indicating the date,
time, and location for each Spot Cooler placed into service and when removed from service.
Upon receipt of the Spot Coolers, an initial safety inspection shall be performed by the
Biomedical Engineering department. The equipment shall be tagged and shall be placed on
the Spot Cooler to indicate it has been inspected.

A hospital-approved germicide cleaner shall be used to clean the units prior to placing into
service.

The electrical circuits shall be assessed prior to the installation of the Spot Coolers. While in
service, Plant Operations shall monitor the units for excessive power cord temperatures and
circuit interruption.

Electrical power cords shall be routed away from the egress path to prevent trip hazards.
Plant Operations shall monitor the Spot Coolers routinely to ensure condensate pans do not
overflow and are emptied as needed.

Filters shall be inspected prior to use and cleaned as needed.

Chlorine tablets shall be placed in Spot Cooler condensate pans to prevent the build-up of
algae.

Spot coolers condensate pans shall be inspected every 24 hours for build-up of algae and
cleaned as needed.

10. Spot Coolers shall be adequately exhausted from the building.

V. REFERENCES

N/A

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




Jo ) _
WATSONVILLE

COHAMUMITY QL6 FITAL

Policy Title

Operational Guideline for Water Treatment Policy

Policy #

PO2032

Responsible

Facilities

Revised/Reviewed

12/5/2022

. PURPOSE
To establish operational guidelines for water treatment associated with HVAC equipment and
systems.

. POLICY

lli. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE

Cooling Towers and Condensers

1. Water Testing & Inspections

Performed or provided by water treatment supplier
A. Monthly visual inspection

B. Monthly standard water chemistry analysis including:
e Specific conductivity

° pH

e P&M alkalinities

s Chlorides

s Total hardness as CaCO3
e Inhibitor

C. Monthly biological testing
D. Monthly calibration of conductivity controller
E. Monthly prime check on all chemical feed pumps
Performed in-house
F. Weekly water chemistry analysis including:
e  Specific conductivity
e Inhibitor
Biocide Program
Performed or provided by water treatment supplier
A. Water treatment supplier shall provide a biocide program consisting of two EPA
registered products: one oxidizing and one non-oxidizing product
B. Water treatment supplier shall ensure these products are fed twice weekly and
alternating weekly.
C. System volume shall be determined by water treatment supplier to insure legal EPA
dosage.
Corrosion Coupon Testing
Performed or provided by water treatment supplier
A. Mild steel and copper coupons shall be evaluated by water treatment supplier
annually, during start-up, or program changes with minimum limits of <0.5 milfyr. for
copper and <4.0 mil/yr. for mild steel. Recommended guidelines for corrosion rates
are <0.1 millyr. for copper and <2.0 milfyr. for Steel.
B. Water treatment supplier should check that flow through the coupon rack is 5 gpm
and exposure periods should be 60-90 days.
C. Water treatment supplier should ensure that steel coupons should be installed
upstream of copper coupons.
Idle Condensers
A. Idle or stand-by condensers should be properly stored. Call water treatment supplier.

Page 1 of 3



Policy Title Operational Guideline for Water Treatment Policy Policy # P0O2032

Chilled and Hot closed loops

1. Water testing & Inspections
Performed or provided by water treatment supplier
A. Closed loop chemistry shall be tested quarterly. If leaks are present, testing interval
should increase to monthly until leaks are located and repaired.

e Conductivity
e pH
¢ Nitrite

B. Check circulation pumps for leaks

C. Check expansion tanks and makeup vaives for leaks

D. Check for proper operation of back flow preventers

Steam Boilers, feed-water tanks, and de-aerators

Performed or provided by water treatment supplier

1. De-aerators
e Check steam plume monthly for proper venting of gases normally 12-24 inches
in height. If height exceeds 24 inches check for faulty steam traps and/or
leaking heat exchangers.
e Check steam pressure and temperature following manufacturer's guidelines
normally 212-224 F.
¢ Ensure all chemicals are FDA and USDA compliant for food contact.
e Perform monthly sulfite analysis.
2. Feed-water tanks & pre-heaters
o Ensure all chemicals are FDA and USDA compliant for food contact.
e Perform monthly sulfite analysis.
3. Steam Boiler
Conductivity
pH
Sulfite
Phosphate or Polymer
P&M and OH alkalinities

Performed in-house

Perform boiler conductivity testing daily.
Perform boiler low water blow-down daily.
Perform boiler continuous blow-down and bottom blow-down based on in-
house testing and/or instructions by water treatment vendor.
o Automatic surface blow-down controllers are not a substitute for
bottom and/or safety lower water blow-down valves.
e Do not exceed 10 second durations. Should feed-water pump come on during
blow-down, cease blow-down until water level returns to normal state.
e Check boiler blow-down valve for leaks by carefully checking the drain for
temperature.
¢ Idle or stand-by boiler shall be stored with 100-150 ppm sulfite and M
alkalinity of 300 ppm by water treatment supplier.
4. Idle Boilers
A. Idle or stand-by boilers shall be stored with 100-150 ppm sulfite and M alkalinity
of 300 ppm. Call water treatment supplier.

Water Softeners

Page 2 of 3



Policy Title Operational Guideline for Water Treatment Policy Policy # P02032

1. Water testing & inspections
Performed or provided by water treatment supplier

A. Perform calcium hardness testing monthly.

B. Check brine tank for proper water level monthly.

C. Check resin level annually.

D. Elution studies to be performed by water treatment supplier on an as needed basis
Internal Inspections

A,

V. REFERENCES
N/A

Internal inspections of boilers, chillers and cooling towers shall be conducted by
water treatment supplier in conjunction with regularly scheduled preventive
maintenance. Hospital shall contact water treatment supplier at least one week in
advance of scheduled preventive maintenance to coordinate inspections.
Documentation of internal inspections shall be maintained in operations logbook.

Documentation
3. Operations L.ogbook

A. Water treatment supplier shall furnish and maintain an operation logbook containing

the following.

VI. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Water treatment policy
Water treatment suppliers contact information
SDS associated with water treatment
Test logs
Monthly reports
Vendor documentation of internal inspections
o Boilers
o Chillers
o Cooling Tower

Page 30f3



Jotsia

WATSONVILLE

COMMUMITYT D08 PTTAL

Policy Title Use of Emergency Generators for Cogeneration Policy # PO2033
Policy
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/6/2022
I. PURPOSE

To define the use of the emergency power supply system in an acute care or long-term care
hospital.

Il. POLICY|

In the event a facility requests using the emergency generator(s) for cogeneration purposes, the
following steps shall be followed:

1. The hospital, in coordination with the Facilities Director, shall receive written approval from
the Chief Operations Officer.
2. All contracts for cogeneration shall require hospital administration approval.

lll. DEFINITIONS

Cogeneration, for the purposes of utilizing emergency generators in hospitals is defined as the
use of the emergency generator to supply electrical power to the utility grid during peak demand
periods defined by the electrical utility. It is the intent of Watsonville Community Hospital to
preserve the integrity of emergency generators. Emergency generators are provided to ensure
power is available to Life Safety, Critical, and Equipment branch systems in the event of a loss of
normal utility power. The emergency power supply system is not designed for any other purpose.
Increased utilization of the emergency power system can result in undue wear on the engine,
switchgear, and associated equipment. Other potential problems include an increase in carbon
emissions, excessive noise to the surrounding community, increased fuel consumption, increased
maintenance costs and poor power quality that could affect essential operations in the hospital.
Generation of electric power with smaller diesel engines is typically not cost-effective in the long
run.

IV. PROCEDURE

V. REFERENCES

N/A

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1




Joatta
WATSONVLLLE

CLRMRTUMITY rlff-. PITAL

Policy Title Roof Replacement Projects Policy Policy # P02034
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/6/2022
l. PURPOSE

To ensure all roof replacement projects are reviewed and approved by current insurance
underwriter to starting any project.

. POLICY]
1. Administration

a. When the Facilities Department submits a Capital Expenditure Request (CER) to
Administrative Team for approval, an acceptance Letter from insurance carrier must
accompany the CER. Roof replacement CERs will not be processed without this
letter.

b. All roof related CERs shall include documentation to demonstrate that the roof(s) has
been assessed for asbestos containing materials (ACM). Representative test
samples shall be submitted with the CER as described below:

» +(3) samples at perimeter flashing (i.e., random locations — collect core type
samples down to substrate)
e+ (3) samples at main bulk of roof (i.e., random locations — collect core type
samples down to substrate)
e -+ (3) samples at roof penetrations (i.e., vent stacks, curbs, roof mounted
equipment)
2. Managing the Project

a. Facility personnel should closely supervise all contractors involved with this project
whenever present in the facility.

b. Contractors should be advised of all regulations on smoking, hot work, flammable
liquids handling, and housekeeping, before the start of any work.

c. Combustible rubbish should be disposed of promptly and safely.

d. Strict rules and an adequate number of clean up personnel are essential to facilitate
the removal of accumulations of paper wrappings, scrap lumber, and other
construction rubbish. Prompt disposal is particularly needed for material subject to
spontaneous ignition, such as oily waste and paint rags.

e. An ample supply of fire extinguishers should be maintained on the roof at all times.

f. Facility personnel should closely supervise any hot work required for this project. All
basic precautions on the FM Global Hot Work Permit System should be completed
before hot work is allowed to begin.

lli. DEFINITIONS

N/A

IV. PROCEDURE
N/A

V. REFERENCES
N/A

Vl. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



P

WATSONVILLE

COMBMVMITY QO PITAL

Policy Title Failure Air Conditioning System Policy Policy # PO3000
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/7/2022
. PURPOSE
It is the policy of Watsonville Community Hospital that in the event of failure of all or part of the air
conditioning systems, the following steps and procedures will be taken.
Il. POLICY

1. Possible reasons for failure of air conditioning system

S@e~oopom

Chiller failure or malfunction
Cooling tower failure

Pump failure

Other equipment failure

Failure in electrical system
Failure of pneumatic system
Loss of water

Fire/smoke damper malfunction

2. Warning signs or indicators of failure

a.
b.

Audible alarm
Call from one or more affected areas

3. Back-up mechanisms or reserves

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Emergency generators

Emergency power docking station (if applicable)
Portable chiller connection portal (if applicable)
Underground water well

Spot coolers

4. Areas which may be affected

a.

lil. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE

All areas

1. Chilled Water System Failure:

a.

Se~mpaoo

Check chiller control panel(s) and/or building automation system for errors and/or
alarms

Check safety mechanisms for proper operation

Verify cooling tower operation

Verify water supply

Verify operation of chilled water circulating pumps

Verify operation of condenser water pumps

Verify electrical source to equipment (check for tripped breakers)

If Facilities/Plant Operations Department personnel are unable to identify the
problem, notify the Director of Facilities or his designee and contact the preferred
contractor/ vendor for emergency repair service

Arrange for portable cooling equipment as necessary

2. Air handler and Distribution System Failure:

a.
b.
c.

d.

Check building automation system for errors and/or alarms

Verify supply and return fan operation and check belts

Check safety mechanisms for proper operation (e.g., freezestat, static limit switch,
fire alarm interface, etc.)

Verify operation of variable frequency drives

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title Failure Air Conditioning System Policy Policy # PO3000
e. Check for excessive filter loading
f.  Verify electrical source to equipment (check for tripped breakers)
g. Check for malfunctioning fire/smoke dampers
h. Verify damper positions
i. Verify control of heating and cooling valves and verify positions
j- Verify exhaust systems
k. If Facilities/Plant Operations Department personnel are unable to identify the

problem, notify the Director of Facilities or his designee and contact the preferred

contractor/ vendor for emergency repair service
. Arrange for portable coollng equipment as necessary

3. Inthe event of a long-term loss of air conditioning systems, notify the following:

Administration

Nursing Supervisor
Surgical Services
Radiology

MRI

Information Technology (IT)
Laboratory

~oopop

ko

V. REFERENCES

The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards, EC.02.05.01.09-11, 13

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2




fora)
WATSONVILLLE

COMMUMITY Tk FITAL

Policy Title Failure of Water Distribution System Policy Policy # PO3001
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/7/2022
I. PURPOSE

It is the policy of Watsonvilie Community Hospital that in the event of a malfunction and/or

failure of the water distribution system; the following procedure will be followed.

Il. POLICY

1.

Areas which would be impacted:
a. All areas

2. Possible reasons for failure:
a. Breakage or disruption of the main water line into the hospital.
b. Breakage or disruption of the water line inside the hospital.
c. Contamination of the outside water supply.

3. Warning signs or indicators of failure:
a. Decreased flow of water at the delivery points.
b. Change of water odor, taste, color, texture.

4. Automatic back-up mechanisms or reserves:
a. Contractual supply from outside vendor
b. Local fire department
¢. On site water well (if applicable)

lil. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE

1.

2.
3.

If interruption of service is due to an external source, contact water supplier (e.g. city, county,
etc.) and determine extent of interruption and estimated repair time.
Distribute reserve water supply.
Activate water conservation policies/practices and notify the following immediately:
Nurse Supervisor
Administration
Dialysis Unit
Surgical Services
Central Sterile
Dietary
Environmental Services
Materials Management
i. PBX
Limit water usage to essential patient care. Use of sinks, showers, toilets and water fountains
should be rationed according to plan.
Inventory emergency supplies and forward information to Nurse Supervisor and Materials
Manager.
a. Bottled water
b. Bio-hazard bags/supplies
c. Waterless hand-washing gels/foams
d. Other related supplies
Notify local Fire Department to standby for support of water-based fire protection systems for
all affected buildings. Arrange for tanker truck deliveries, pumps, hoses, bladder pools, etc.
as required.
Notify property insurer if the duration of the water loss will be substantial.

Semoapop

Page 1 0of 2



Policy Title Failure of Water Distribution System Policy Policy # PO3001

8. Switch non-potable water systems (e.g. cooling towers, vacuum pumps, etc.) to alternate
underground well source if applicable.

9. If water loss is due to internal source and/or breakage of water piping, determine cause and
isolate damaged portion of system if possible. Begin repairs immediately and/or contact local
plumbing repair contractor

10. Upon return to service, perform the following:

a. Notify all departments

b. Check all ice machines, dialysis equipment and sterilizers for contamination.

c. Switch water-base systems back to primary water source (e.g. cooling towers,
vacuum pumps, etc.)

EXTERNAL RESOURCES
The following external resources are available for shipment of various supplies and/or assistance.

a. Watsonville Fire Station #2 (831) 768 3200

b. Ready Refresh (800) 274 5282

c. The hospital has a means for an emergency water connection and is located at the
Facilities area in the back of the hospital

d. D&G Sanitation LLC (831) 722 6066

e. Santa Cruz Health Services Agency (831) 454 4000

CONTAMINATION OF WATER SUPPLY:

1. Turn off the main domestic water valve(s) to all areas.

2. Using the hospital’s public address system and/or any other required means, instruct all
personnel and visitors to refrain from drinking or using water for any purposes until further
notice.

3. Disconnect all ice machinesfice makers and empty storage bins.

4. Notify personnel/departments listed under procedure 3a through 3i above.

5. Contact House Supervisor and/or Administration to notify the Department of Health
immediately.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards, EC.02.05.01.9-11, 13

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2



foral
WATSONVILLE

COMMWMITY O FITAL

Policy Title Failure of Plumbing System Flooding Policy Policy # PO3002
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/30/2022
I. PURPOSE

it is the policy of Watsonville Community Hospital that in the event of a failure in the plumbing
system or related flooding occurs; the following procedure will be followed.

il. POLICY

lll. DEFINITIONS
1. Areas which could be affected
a. All areas
2. Possible reasons for failure
a. Blockage of the main sewer line
b. Blockage of internal waste lines
c. Failure of sewage ejectors or sump pumps
3. Warning signs or indicators of failure
a. Overflowing toilets
b. Slow drainage or water back-up in sinks and over floor drains
4. Automatic back-up mechanisms or reserves
a. Portable toilets
b. Bio-hazardous waste bags
c. Portable emergency sump pumps.
IV. PROCEDURE
In the event of failure of the external sewer main:
Notify the Administrator on call, who will in turn notify the Department of Health, if necessary.
Notify the Facilities/Plant Operations Department at: 1277
Notify all departments in the facility.
Limit available bathrooms for public and staff to one per floor. Post restriction signs or lock
the other bathrooms if necessary. Environmental Services shall be directed to install red bag
liners in the available bathrooms.
5. |If failure results in flooding, Environmental Services will remove water with wet vacuums.
a. For additional equipment and resources during severe flooding events, contact the
local Fire Department and/or plumbing contractor.

RON~

In the event of failure to the internal plumbing lines:

1. Notify parts of the facility that are affected.

2. ldentify point of blockage and correct the problem if possible. If Facilities/Plant Operations
Department personnel are unable to resolve the problem, call in an outside contractor to
perform the repairs.

3. Limit available bathrooms for public and staff to one per floor in the affected areas. Post
restriction signs or lock the other bathrooms if necessary. Environmental Services shall be
directed to install red bag liners in the available bathrooms.

4. |[f failure results in flooding, Environmental Services will remove water with wet vacuums.

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards, EC.02.05.01.9-10

VI. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 1 of 1



Jota)

WATSONVILLE

COHMUVMITY QO FITAL

Policy Title Failure of Boiler Steam Equipment Policy Policy # PO3003
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/30/2022
I. PURPOSE

It is the policy of Watsonville Community Hospital that in the event of a malfunction and/or
failure of the steam delivery boilers; the following procedure will be followed.

Il. POLICY|

lll. DEFINITIONS

1.

Possible reasons for a boiler failure
a. Equipment failure
b. Disruption of supply lines (fuel, water)

2. Warning signs or indicators of failure

a. Audible alarms
b. Pressure gauge readings
c. Loss of water

3. Automatic back-up mechanisms or reserve

a. Alternate fuel supply

4. Areas which may be affected

a. All areas

IV. PROCEDURE
In the event of total loss of steam boilers, the following procedure will be followed:

1.
2.

Notify Director of Facilities/Plant Operations immediately.
Director of Facilities Management/Plant Operations will determine the length of down-time
and notify the following:
Nurse Supervisor- After hours
Administration - Inform Doctors and coordinate
Surgery — For possible cancellations
Nursing - Restrict hot water use
Environmental Services - To supply extra blankets for patient comfort
Sterilization — Re-sterilize loads during failure/malfunction
Dietary - Restrict hot water use and use paper plates for food service
All other affected departments
Notify Central/Sterile and Surgery of the failure and the approximate time it occurred. ltems
that were in the sterilization process at or near the time when the failure occurred must be
sterilized again.
The following items will be checked to determine the cause of the failure:
v Operation of fuel supply valves
v Boiler control panel
v Boiler water level/water supply
v'  Steam-line distribution system or valve closures for restriction and end user's
equipment, if boiler is functioning, but steam is not being supplied
Make necessary repairs if possible. If Facilities/Plant Operations Department personnel
cannot identify or resolve the problem, outside Vendor for 24-hour repairs with authorization
of Facilities Director or designee.
The Facilities Director will notify all departments once systems have been restored.

AN N N N N NN

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title

Failure of Boiler Steam Equipment Policy

Policy #

P0O3003

V. REFERENCES

The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards, EC.02.05.01.9-10

VI. STAKEHOLDERS

Facilities

Page 2 of 2




SEmtN

WATSONVILLE

CEOMBUMITY HO8 PITAL

Policy Title Emergency Telephone List Policy Policy # PO3005
Responsible | Facilities Revised/Reviewed | 12/3/2022
I. PURPOSE
To establish procedures on how to obtain emergency repair services.
. POLICY
lil. DEFINITIONS

IV. PROCEDURE
1. Plant Operations personnel shall respond immediately to all utility equipment and system
failures.

Common equipment/system failures or scenarios:

*See respective policy and procedure for each of the above.

Normal power systems
Emergency power systems
Elevators

HVAC systems
Boiler/Steam equipment
Water distribution system
Plumbing system

Nurse call system
Oxygen system

Medical air system
Medical vacuum system
Nurse call system

Fire alarm system
Pneumatic tube system
Roofing systems
Hazmat

Toxic External Atmosphere
Other systems

ATV OSITATTIQ@NOROTN

Telecommunication systems

2. The numbers listed below will be utilized for emergency repair services and/or support.
Emergency contact list shall be routinely reviewed for accuracy and updated at least
annually.

Emergency Utility Contac

Vendor

Telephone Number

Fire Department

Hazmat Team

Police Department

Police Department
(Emergency)

Natural Gas Co

Natural Gas Co (Emergency)

Water Department

Page 1 of 2



Policy Title Emergency Telephone List Policy Policy # PO3005

Elevator Repair Co

Electric Co

Emergency Generator
Emergency Generator Fuel
(diesel)

Piumbing

A?C & Refrigeration

Fire Alarm Monitoring

Fire Alarm System

Fire Extinguisher Service (call
& refill/replace when needed)
Boilers

Bulk Oxygen System/piped
Med Gasses

Telephone System (internal)
Telephone System (external)
Overhead Paging System
Ambulance Radio

Nurse Call System

Alternate Water Supply
Infant Abduction System

V. REFERENCES
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards, EC.02.05.01.12

Vi. STAKEHOLDERS
Facilities

Page 2 of 2



SN |
WATSONYLLLE

COEMUMITY T10e8 PITAL

Policy Title Pharmacy Quality Monitoring Activities and Policy # PHARM1671
Medication Use Improvement Plan
Responsible | Pharmacy Director Revised/Reviewed | 01/2023
I PURPOSE

To ensure an on-going, criteria-based process for the hospital to evaluate its medication
management system and identify areas to improve on the safe, effective, and appropriate use of
medication.

. POLICY

e Pharmacy staff shall participate in facility-wide quality improvement (Ql) activities, and
collaborate in planning, designing, measuring, assessing, and improving quality.

o Pharmacy staff shall participate in cross-departmental, cross-discipline, cooperative efforts to
improve quality.

e Focus of medication use improvement process shall be to evaluate and improve on the safe,
effective, and appropriate use of medication.

e Medication Use Evaluation (MUE) program shall be performed in collaboration with Pharmacy
Department, Nursing Service, Medical Staff, Administration, and other departments, services
and individuals, as required.

8 DEFINITIONS
N/A

Iv. PROCEDURE

A. Design of Process:
1. The facility shall use a systematic, planned approach to improving quality. Pharmacy shall
collaborate in the facility's quality improvement (Ql) planning.

2. Pharmacy shall, as necessary, participate in the facility's process design activities.

Medication use improvement (quality improvement) activities will focus on improving

processes that are important to the health and safety of patients.

a. If specific drugs are targeted, medication use improvement activities may include the
use of criteria against which drug use can be compared.

b. Criteria may describe the presence or the absence of critical structures, processes,
desirable outcomes, and undesirable outcomes.

4. Medication to be targeted — including, but not limited to medications which:

a. Are used frequently (high volume)

b. Are at risk for potentially serious consequences to patient if used inappropriately (high
risk)

c. Have a past demonstrated tendency to produce problems associated with use
(problem-prone)

d. Have known drug-drug interactions that may present significant health risk to patient.

e. Have documented adverse and/or toxic effects or complications if not prescribed and
monitored correctly.

Page1of 5



Policy Title

Pharmacy Quality Monitoring Activities and Policy # ‘ PHARM1671
Medication Use Improvement Plan

i

Are used in treatment of patients who may be at high-risk for adverse drug reactions
because of age, disability, or unique metabolic characteristics.

Are identified by Infection Control as possibly changing sensitivity patterns of
pathogenic organisms due to suspected inappropriate prescribing.

Have potential for toxicity or increased effect in the presence of advance disease
states.

Are identified or suspected by other monitoring and assessment activities as being
inappropriate or incorrectly prescribed.

Have significant cost savings but no demonstrable clinical advantage.

Medication use shall be evaluated when important single events or variances occur and
when patterns and trends signal opportunities to improve the quality of medication use.

a. See policy #1799: Medication Variance Monitoring and Reporting

1) Director of Pharmacy shall have access to medication error reports and work with
Risk Manager to identify trends and opportunities for process improvements to
improve safety of medication administration.

Emphasis shall be on the effective, appropriate, and safe use of drugs. Processes involved
in medication administration to be targeted:

a. Selection, procurement, and storage of medication

1) e.g., ensuring integrity and security of medication

2) The pharmacy shall monitor the selection/procurement/storage of drugs. The
findings shall be recorded. Any form (e.g., a Pharmacy Intervention Log or similarly
named form) may be used to record the findings. The pharmacy shall review the
findings, identify problems to resolve or processes to improve, and work within the
framework of the organization-wide quality improvement program to improve the
processes.

Ordering, prescribing medication

1) e.g., improving the clarity of medication orders, preventing duplicate therapy,
adjusting doses based on patient specific criteria (renal/hepatic function,
pregnancy/lactation, age, other co-morbid states), ensuring appropriateness of
route of administration to provide optimal patient outcomes

2) The pharmacy shall monitor the ordering/prescribing of drugs. Then findings shall
be recorded. Any form (e.g., a Pharmacy Intervention Log or similarly named form)
may be used to record the findings. The pharmacy shall review these findings,
identify problems, and work to resolve or improve processes while working within
the framework of the organization-wide QI program.

Dispensing, preparing medication

1) e.g., reducing Pharmacy dispensing errors, ensuring timely delivery of medication

2) The pharmacy shall monitor the preparation and dispensing of drugs and shall
document dispensing errors (e.g., those related to accuracy and
contraindications). The pharmacy shall review the findings, identify problems to
resolve or processes to improve, and work within the framework of the
organization-wide QI program to improve the preparation and dispensing of drugs.

Administration of medication

1) e.g., reducing medication administration errors, improving drug administration
techniques

2) The pharmacy shall cooperate with nursing service to monitor and document drug
administration errors. The pharmacy shall participate, as necessary, in the review
of drug administration errors to help identify problems to resolve and offer
recommendations that improve drug administration procedures and safety. The
Director of Pharmacy shall have access to medication error reports to identify
trends and opportunities for process improvements to improve medication safety.

Page 2 of 5




Policy Title

Pharmacy Quality Monitoring Activities and Policy # PHARM1671
Medication Use Improvement Plan

e. Monitoring the effects of medication on patients

1) e.g., improving the detecting, reporting, and assessing of adverse drug reactions
and less than optimal patient outcomes

2) The pharmacy shall cooperate with the medical staff and nursing services to
monitor the effects of drugs. The pharmacy shall participate in the facility’s adverse
drug reaction reporting program to help identify opportunities for improvement.
Additional sources (e.g., patient laboratory data) may also be used to identify
opportunities to improve monitoring the effectiveness of prescribed drugs.

B. Monitoring/measurement:

1.

The Pharmacy shall, when required, monitor objective, measurable indicators that
measure the presence or absence of critical structures or processes, or define desirable
or undesirable outcomes.

a. Indicators shall be based on current knowledge and clinical experience.

Pharmacy shall collaborate to select, collect, align, and integrate data and information for
tracking daily operations and overall performance of medication management and safety
with the intent to support appropriate decision making and innovation.

Pharmacy shall monitor selection / procurement / storage of drugs, ordering / prescribing
of drugs, preparation and dispensing of drugs, and administration of drugs.

a. Pharmacy shall participate in review of medication variances, to identify problems, and
resolve and/or improve on processes contributing to potentials for error.

b. Findings shall be recorded.

Data sources - including, but not limited to:
Medical Records, including emergency and admitting records
Pharmacy Profiles/Records
Laboratory Records
Medication Administration Records (MAR’s)
Infection Control Reports
Statistical drug data
Drug Usage Reports
Adverse Drug Reaction Reports
Medication Variance Reports
Logs / inspection records
Incident Reports
Education Records
. Committee minutes
Sampling:
a. Either total population (e.g., all patients or units) or a representative sample may be
monitored.
b. When possible, the minimum sample size shall be the greater of at least 30 records or
5% of the total population.
Monitoring frequency:
a. Monitoring of data shall be ongoing, systematic, and sufficient to identify occurrences
that may signal opportunities to improve processes.
b. Frequency of monitoring may vary with the significance of the process and may range
from continuous or daily monitoring to periodic screening (e.g., weekly, monthly, and
quarterly)

3JTATTSE@ 0 o0 oD

Collection of data:
a. Pharmacist(s) shall be responsible for data collection activities.

Page3of 5




Policy Title Pharmacy Quality Monitoring Activities and Policy # PHARM1671
Medication Use Improvement Plan
b. Collection of data shall be performed from data sources pertinent to important aspects
of drug use.
8. Patient Drug Monitoring:

a. Pharmacy shall cooperate with Medical Staff and Nursing Service to monitor the effects
of medication.

b. Pharmacy shall participate in facility’s adverse drug reaction reporting program to help
identify opportunities for improvement.
1) See policy #71429: Adverse Drug Reaction

c. Additional sources (e.g., patient laboratory data) may also be used to identify
opportunities to improve monitoring effectiveness of prescribed medication.

C. Assessment:

1.

The facility shall assess data for patterns and trends that signal opportunities to improve
processes.

a. The Pharmacy shall, as necessary, participate in the facility’s assessment activities.
Performance review findings shall be used to develop priorities for continuous
improvement.

D. Improvement:

1.

The facility shall systematically work to improve its medication use processes.

a. Highest priority shall be given to processes with the greatest potential for improving
patient care and safety.

Actions to improve medication use - including, but not limited to:

a. Revising processes

Providing educational programs

Education of facility staff using newsletters and memoranda

Developing, revising, and implementing policies and procedure that improve

medication safety

Establishing formulary and prescribing restrictions

Developing standardized drug therapy protocols

Implementing therapeutic substitution policies

Requiring special order forms for selected drugs

ep o

@™o

E. Evaluation of effectiveness of action taken:

1.

2.

3.

4,

The facility shall evaluate actions taken to ensure that it is effective and that any progress
achieved is sustained.

Time frame used for assessment or re-assessment may vary with the nature and severity
of the area of concern.

Pharmacy shall, as necessary, participate in the facility's evaluation of the effectiveness of
actions taken.

When possible, comparative data and information shall be obtained by benchmarking to
ensure results represent best practices and performance for similar activities both within
the facility and as it compares to like organizations.

F. Documentation:

1.

Documentation shall note any efforts to improve patient care — including, but not limited to

the following:

a. Findings (e.g., data, variances, and unjustified variances)

b. Conclusions (e.g., problem identified, opportunities to improve medication use and
patient care, causes of problems, usage patterns and trends)

¢. Recommendations (e.g., proposed action, what should be done)

d. Action(s) taken (e.g., what has been done to date)

Page 4 of 5




Policy Title Pharmacy Quality Monitoring Activities and Policy # PHARM1671
Medication Use Improvement Plan

e. Effectiveness of results of actions taken (e.g., problems resolved and improvements in
medication use)

2. Director of Pharmacy shall maintain records as required by the facility.

G. Reporting of data:
1. Communication of Medication Usage Evaluation (MUE) - including, but not limited to:
a. Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee
b. Quality Coordinating Council
c. Appropriate individuals and departments throughout facility
2. Reporting frequency shall be determined by facility’s Director of Quality Management

REFERENCES

Joint Commission Standards: LD.03.04.01, EP 1,3,3,7 LD.03.05.01,EP 1,3,5,7
LD.04.04.05, EP 5 MS.05.01.01 ,[EP 4
MM.02.01.01, EP 3 P1.02.01.01, EP 1-4
P1.03.01.01, EP 14

STAKEHOLDERS

N/A

Page 5 of 5




Jattica)

WATSONVLLLE

COMMBTWMITY 1L FITAL

Policy Title Look A Like and Sound A Like Medications / Drugs | Policy # PHARM2019
Responsible | Pharmacy Director Revised/Reviewed | 01/2023
L PURPOSE

Iv.

To establish procedural guidelines for storage of look-a-like / sound-a-like medication.

POLICY

Pharmacy will maintain a list of medications, which are considered to either look-a-like or
sound-a-like.

Since these identified medications are inherently more likely to cause a medication error,
Pharmacy will put measures into place to differentiate particular medications from other
medications that may look or sound similar.

Hospital personnel should take precautions to ensure errors associated with look-a-like / sound-
a-like medications are minimized.

The Director of Pharmacy shall annually review the facilities’ list of look-a-like / sound-a-like
medication.

DEFINITIONS

N/A

PROCEDURE

A.

Definition:

1. Sound-a-like / look-a-like medication names include those names which possess similar
spelling and/or similar phonetics.

2. Alist of these medications may be obtained from the Institute for Safe Medication
Practices (ISMP) at: http://www.ismp.org/Tools/confuseddrugnames.pdf.

Education:

1. Facility will provide education to all professionals who prescribe, stock, dispense, and
administer medications to patients on the measures the facility has undertaken to
minimize the potential for mistaken interchange of look-a-like / sound-a-like drugs.

List and Identification of Look-A-Like / Sound-A-Like Medications:

1. Facility will maintain a minimum list of 10 look-alike/sound-alike medication names.

2. Established organizations, which deal with medication safety, and health care
professionals, such as Pharmacy and Nursing staffs, are the best sources to identify
situations, where Look-A-Like and Sound-A-Like medications could potentially result in a
medication error.

3. Organizations, such as the Institute for Safe Medical Practices (ISMP) and the USP
Quality Review, are resources that may identify previously unidentified risk and will be
periodically reviewed by the Director of Pharmacy.

4. Medications involved with a medication error or “close call” that are deemed to be related
to Look-A-Like and Sound-A-Likes medications will be reviewed to identify ways to
differentiate, if deemed necessary.

Strategies for differentiating Look-A-Like and Sound-A-Like Medications:

Page 1of 4




Policy Title Look-A-Like and sound-A-Like Medication Policy # PHARM2019
1. Pharmacy Storage:

a. Medications that have similar appearances and/or names may be flagged with a
Look-A-Like/Sound-A-Like warning sign, sticker, and/or bin.

b. Segregation of similar products is recommended when the level of potential harm is
high.

2. Pyxis Storage:

a. Medications that have similar appearances may be segregated.

b. Segregation may include loading Look-A-Like and Sound-A-Like medications in
pockets that are NOT adjacent to each other.

c. Segregation may also include loading medication into different drawers or unloading
one of the medications, if both medications initially loaded into the same drawer.

d. “Clinical Data Category” in Pyxis, that prompts User to validate medication prior to
removal from MedStation, may be added to Look-A-Like / Sound-A-Like medication
as an additional warning.

3. Labeling:

a. Label with “Look-a-like and Sound-a-like” sticker

b. Tallman lettering in HMS and Pyxis Systems

c. Brand and generic names to appear in HMS and Pyxis Systems

I REFERENCES

Joint Commission Standard: MM.01.02.01 EP 1 MM.04.01.01 EP4
[ STAKEHOLDERS

N/A

Page 2 of 4




Policy Title Look-A-Like and sound-A-Like Medication Policy #

PHARM2019

List of Look-A-Like and Sound-A-Like medications:

1. ePHEDrine

2. HYDROmorphone
3. hydrOXYzine

4. Insulin products
5. metFORMIN

6. OxyCONTIN

7. cloNIDine

8. Mucinex

9. M.S. Contin

10. Solu-CORTEF

11. OLANZapine (ZyPREXA)

12. HYDROcodone

13. DOBUTamine

14. RifAMPin

18. SEROquel

16. PrednisoLONE

EPINEPHrine

morphine

hydrALAZINE

metroNIDAZOLE

oxyCODONE

KlonoPIN (Clonazepam)

Mucomyst

OxyCONTIN

SOLU-Medrol

Ondansetron (Zofran)

oxyCODONE

DOPamine

RifAXIMin

Sertraline

predniSONE

Page 3 of 4




Policy Title | Look-A-Like and sound-A-Like Medication

Joint Commission — Medication Management Standards
(R, 01.02.61)
&PHEDfiING ... EPINEPHrinE Dy CONTIN. . axyCODONE HYDRGcednne — axyoadane
HYDROMorahe .. Mmorphing doNiDwe .. KipaoPin DOBLITAEING .. DXHFaminn
hydr(hYTing ... hydralAZIHE Mutines . Mucomyst Ritampin ... Rifasinn
Fsuilin promkichs 5 Cond ... OwCONTIN - SERDepe=l .. Sertraline
PGtFEIRMAIN ... metroNIDAZEHE Sotu-CORTEF _ SalsEDROL  PrecrisolONE ... predniSONE

DLaMZaping .. Daidansetron

Hazardous Medication List (Mm,01.01.03}

Hanaiing:

+  Please gea updaled list on Walsonvite Cammunily Hesphal INTRANET J SharePoird stie.
+  Rurgng Handling Calegorias {ABIC) and Phermacy Hendlng Calagoriss (323M5) and bulll

inin both MedHast {EMAR) and Py

Oisposals

s Dkspose of pourable remalndar kn Black Contadngr [{istad as BEC)
@ Dispose of remainder amd PACKASING in Black Compatiide Camtaines {Listed as PRKE)

COUREATHN NICOTINE

+  Sendresainder badk ta Fharmacy for proper dispasal (Listed as 5P SEC ) e SPLR f SPOY)

High Alert Medication List [wM.01.01.03)

Aminoglysesices
Hmisdancne .
Anli-copgulantd (ey, ivanxaban, dabigalrar
Caflging (Ciirabe)
Carbamezepae

Digows

Divalpresix Sodlum
Eleinihyies:

Ermpoapuein

Epidure?

Erythmpositin Sin: Agonts
Fenianyl Teaisdema] Pois
Halopsarindal

Hazardmes Dnags

MHeparin

Imticwune Glotsulin

Linbatent Jo4 2093 85

treatn

Kedardac

Magneaiiin Sullats lngactian

Mudhairaxotn H#d for echopic prograrcy
Haderale Scdabon medkcaion {sq. fertanyd]
Meuranint Loesl Anasllvélics (i, bupivacans)
IRaurormuscular Block. dgents jer. vecursnkimy
Dnyrodane, imméd & ait relrass

Parenierai Mulrkon

PCA (patiant cortralizg anralgesial

Pedlatric goses

Ph=igtain

Propofal

Badipronieas Agenes

Sodivm Polystyrene Sulfonate

Waitaria

Page 4 of 4

Policy # PHARM2019




o= I
WATSONVILLE

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Policy/Procedure Title Medical Staff Policy | Manual Medical Staff,
Regarding Peer Location Quality
Review, Ongoing Management
Professional
Practice Evaluation
(OPPE) & (FPPE)

Policy/Procedure # 2842 Effective | 9/12 | Page | 10f11

Department Generating Medical Staff, Quality | Revised | 12/18

Policy Management

L. SCOPE

IIT.

Applies to all credentialed members of the Medical Staff and Allied Health Practitioners.

EXCEPTION:

No volume providers with medical staff membership and without clinical privileges per Joint Commission
clarification are exempt from the Ongoing Professional Performance Evaluation and Focused Professional
Practice Evaluation requirements contained within this document.

PURPOSE:
To assure that the Board of Trustees, through the activities of its medical staff, assesses the ongoing professional

practice and competence of its medical staff, conducts professional practice evaluations, and uses the results of
such assessments and evaluations to improve professional competence, practice, and the quality of patient care;

To define those circumstances in which an external review or focused review may be necessary
To address identified issues in an effective and consistent manner.

“Professional Practice Evaluation” is considered an element of the peer review process and the records and
proceedings relating to this policy are confidential and privileged to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

DEFINITIONS
Peer:

For purposes of this policy, the term “Peer” refers to any practitioner who possesses the same or similar
knowledge and training as the practitioner whose care is the subject of review.

IndividualCaseReview:

The process outlined for peer review of a particular case identified with a potential quality of care issue.



in fessi

The ongoing process of data collection for the purpose of assessing a practitioner’s clinical competence and
professional behavior. Information gathered during this process is factored into decisions to maintain, revise, or
revoke an existing privilege(s) prior to or at the time of the two-year membership and privilege renewal cycle.

F {ProfessionalPracticeEvaluation:

The time-limited evaluation of practitioner competence in performing a specific privilege. The process is
consistently implemented as a means to verify clinical competence for all initially requested privileges, for a
newly requested privilege, and whenever a question arises regarding a practitioner’s ability to provide safe, high-
quality patient care. FPPE is not considered an investigation or corrective action as defined in the Medical Staff
Bylaws and is not subject to the Bylaws provisions related to the corrective action process.

FPPE affects only the privileges for which a relevant concern has been raised and related privileges for which the
same concern would apply. Other existing privileges in good standing should not be affected by the decision to
initiate FPPE.,

EeerReview

Peer Review is the process by which a practitioner, or committee of practitioners, examines the work of a peer
and determines whether the practitioner under review has met accepted standards of care in rendering medical
services. The professional or personal conduct of a physician or other healthcare professional may also be

investigated. = Individual Case Review, Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation, and Focused Professional
Practice Evaluation are components of peer review.

Please Refer to Proctoring Policy (#0158)

FocusedProfessionalPracticeEvaluation(FPPE)

A. Initiation of FPPE

FPPE will be initiated in the following instances:

. Upon initial appointment;

. When a new privilege is requested by an existing practitioner;

. When a question arises through the OPPE process, individual case review, or other peer review
process regarding a currently privileged practitioner’s ability to provide safe, high-quality patient
care. For example, when a trigger is exceeded and preliminary review indicates a need for further
evaluation.

A recommendation of FPPE may be made by:
. The Credentials Committee;
- A Department of the Medical Staff;
. The Chief of the Department;
. A special committee of the medical staff:
. The MEC

The FPPE monitoring plan for a new practitioner, or newly requested privilege(s) will be specific to the
requested privileges or group of privileges as defined in the Medical Staff Proctoring policy.

FPPE is not considered an investigation as defined in the Medical Staff Bylaws and is not subject to the
bylaws provisions related to investigations. If FPPE results in an action plan to perform an investigation, the
process identified in the Medical Staff Bylaws would be followed.

B. Timeframe for Collection and Reporting



The period of FPPE must be time-limited. Time-limited may be defined by;
A specific period of time;
A specific volume (number of procedures/admissions)

The medical staff may take into account the practitioner’s previous experience in determining the approach,
extent, and time frame of FPPE needed to confirm current competence. The practitioner’s experience may be
individualized based upon one of the following experience/training examples:

1. Recent graduate from a training program at another facility, where the requested privileges were part
of the training program (competence data is not available)

2. A practitioner with regular experience exercising the requested privilege of fewer than two to five
years on another medical staff

FPPE shall begin with the applicant’s first admission(s) or performance of the newly requested privilege.
FPPE should optimally be completed within three months, or a suitable period based upon volume. The
period of FPPE may be extended as necessary at the discretion of the medical staff but may not extend beyond
the first biennial reappointment.

C. Methods for Conducting FPPE/Communication to the Practitioner

FPPE may be accomplished by:

1. Chart reviews, both concurrent and/or retrospective

2. Simulation

3.  Discussion with the involved practitioner and/or other individuals involved in the care of the
practitioner’s patients

4.  “Non-Mandatory” Direct observation/proctoring, i.e., observation/proctoring of a nature that does not
restrict the physician’s privileges or right to practice in the hospital, including the right to proceed
with procedures or surgeries. Non-Mandatory observation/proctoring preserves the physician’s right
to proceed with a procedure or surgery regardless of the presence of an observer/proctor. Any
requirement to the contrary is reserved solely for decision of the Medical Executive Committee, may
implicate reports to the Board and Data Bank, and may require the grant of hearing rights under the
Medical Staff Bylaws.

5. For dependent AHP’s, FPPE methods may include review or proctoring by the sponsoring physician.

6.  Internal or external peer review.

The terms of all FPPE shall be communicated in writing to the affected practitioner, including the following:
. The cause for the focused monitoring
. The anticipated duration
. The specific mechanism by which monitoring will occur (i.e. chart reviews, proctoring, peer
observation, etc.)

D. Performance Monitoring Criteria and Triggers

Monitoring criteria, including specific performance elements to be monitored, as well as thresholds or
triggers, are developed and approved by the medical staff or medical staff department/committee. The
triggers are defined as potentially unacceptable levels of performance. Triggers to consider include, but are
not limited to:

- A single egregious case or evidence of a practice trend

. Exceeding the predetermined thresholds established for OPPE

. Patient/staff complaints

. Non-compliance with Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations

. Elevated infection, mortality and/or complication rates

. Failure to follow approved clinical practice guidelines

. Unprofessional behavior or disruptive conduct



If the results for a practitioner exceed thresholds established by the Medical Staff, outliers may be forwarded
for peer review after initial screening by the Quality Management Department.

Attachment B Performance Measures & Triggers
E. Conclusion of FPPE

At the conclusion of the initial FPPE, findings will be reviewed by the Medical Executive Committee or
responsible Department, for decision and recommendation. Decisions may include moving forward with OPPE,
extending the period of FPPE, development of a performance improvement plan, or recommending to limit or
suspend the privilege. Such recommendations are reported to and approved by the Medical Executive Committee
and Board of Trustees. For recommendations resulting in restriction, suspension, revocation of specific
privileges or other limitation on privileges, the processes pursuant to the Medical Staff Bylaws Appendix A (Fair
Hearing Plan) will apply.

Each practitioner will be notified of their performance and outcome(s) following FPPE. A letter is forwarded
to the Medical Staff member including, but not limited to, the following:
- Findings and outcome of FPPE
. Specific actions, if any, that need to be taken by the Practitioner to address any quality concerns and
the method for follow-up to ensure that the concerns have been addressed; and
. If the focused review is complete or will continue (duration will be specific if the focused review will
continue)
. The period of initial FPPE is completed and the practitioner will move into OPPE
. The period of FPPE for a specific privilege is completed and the practitioner will continue with OPPE

At the end of the period of focused evaluation, in the event that the practitioner’s activity/volume has not been
sufficient to meet the requirements of FPPE:
. The practitioner may voluntarily resign the relevant privilege(s), or
- The practitioner may submit a written request for an extension of the period of focused evaluation, or
. If the practitioner has sufficient volume of the privileges in question at another local facility, external
peer references specific to the privilege/procedure will be obtained.
- FPPE may be extended at the discretion of the responsible medical staff department or committee.

The practitioner is not entitled to a hearing or other procedural rights for any privilege that is voluntarily
relinquished.

Results of FPPE are maintained in the Practitioner’s Confidential Quality File.
F. Performance Improvement Plan

If FPPE outcomes identify the need for an improvement plan, the plan will be drafted by the responsible
medical staff department, committee or chair. The written improvement plan and supporting FPPE outcomes
should be presented to the Medical Executive Committee for approval. The involved Practitioner should also
be offered the opportunity to address the Committee and respond to the findings before the improvement plan
is finalized and implemented.

Methods identified to resolve performance issues shall be clearly defined. Examples of improvement methods
may include:

- Necessary education

. Proctoring (but only as described under Section C.) and/or mentoring

- Counseling

. Practitioner Assistance Program

. Suspension or revocation of privilege, subject to the provisions of the Bylaws.



Following approval by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC), the Department or Committee Chair, or
Chief of Staff will meet with the Practitioner to communicate the improvement plan. If the Practitioner agrees
with the plan, the written document should be signed by the Practitioner and forwarded to the Quality
Department. If the Practitioner does not agree with the plan and/or refuses to implement the improvement
plan, the outcome will be reported to the responsible department chief and/or Medical Executive Committee
for resolution.

ONGOING PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE EVALUATION

A.Timeframe for Collection and Reporting

OPPE will be initiated and reported on all providers with clinical privileges. Results of OPPE will be reported for
review and/or action six months if possible, and in no event less frequently than every nine months.

B. Indicators for Review

1.

The type of data to be collected and related thresholds, or triggers, is determined by individual medical
staff committees/departments and approved by the Medical Staff. Indicators may change as deemed
appropriate by the department and/or medical staff and should be reviewed and approved on an annual
basis. Data collected should not be limited to negative/outlier trending data. Good performance data
should also be considered.

a.

b.
c.

Each Medical Staff department will select three to five specialty-specific indicators based upon
their clinical service. These indicators may be evidence-based, such as post-op infection rate, etc.
The Medical Staff will select general indicators that apply to all credentialed practitioners.
The Medical Staff may consider using the six areas of “General Competencies” developed by the
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME). These include:
i.  Patient care
ii.  Medical/clinical knowledge
iii.  Practice-based learning and improvement
iv.  Interpersonal and communication skills
v.  Professionalism
vi.  Systems-based practice

2. Thresholds/triggers for performance must be defined for the selected indicators. Triggers are defined as
unacceptable levels of performance within the established defined criteria and are used to identify those
performance outcomes that could trigger FPPE. Triggers to consider include, but are not limited to:

3.

Defined number of events occurring

Defined number of individual peer reviews with adverse determinations
Elevated infection, mortality, and/or complication rates

Sentinel events

Small number of admissions/procedures over an extended period of time
Increasing lengths of stay in comparison to peers

Increasing number of returns to surgery

Frequent unanticipated readmission for the same issue

Patterns of unnecessary diagnostic testing/treatments

Failure to follow approved clinical practice guideline

Two level 4 judgments within a rolling 24 month period
4. Any combination of four level 3 and 4 judgments within a rolling 24 month period
5. 3 incidents of significant disruptive behavior incidents (as judged by MEC) within a rolling 12 month period

C. Oversight and Reporting



The organized Medical Staff delegates the collection of the selected performance indicators to the appropriate
hospital department. The overall process, data compilation and reporting is coordinated by the Quality
Management Department.

The review of performance data and any recommendation(s) for action, if necessary, may be the
responsibility of one of the following:
The Medical Executive Committee;
The specific Medical Staff Department;
The Chief of the Department;
The Medical and Surgical Quality Review Committees

. Results and Reporting of Data Analysis

Data are analyzed and reported to determine whether to continue, limit, or revoke any existing privilege(s).
The results of the individualized practitioner report are referenced in the MEC meeting minutes, maintained in
the quality file and incorporated into the two-year reappointment process.

The outcome of the evaluation must be documented and maintained in the practitioner quality file.

During the course of OPPE, FPPE may be triggered by the following special circumstances:
A single egregious case or evidence of a practice trend
Exceeding the predetermined thresholds established for OPPE
Patient/staff complaints
Non-compliance with Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations
Elevated infection, mortality and/or complication rates
Failure to follow approved clinical practice guidelines
Unprofessional behavior or disruptive conduct

If unprofessional behavior or disruptive conduct is identified as a possible concern, the Disruptive Practitioner
Policy will be initiated as a component of the OPPE,

At the completion of the review period, the results of OPPE (the practitioner profile report) will be
communicated to the individual practitioner. The original report will be maintained in the practitioner quality
file.

PONSIB () HE OUA Y MANA MENT DEPARTMEN

The Quality Management Department will be responsible for compiling and reporting results of FPPE
and OPPE to the Medical Staff Committee(s) every six months in no event less frequently than every nine
months. A practitioner-specific profile will be utilized.

In order to facilitate FPPE for Allied Health Professionals, and/or those practitioners requesting a new
privilege, the practitioner must notify the Quality Management Department of the first scheduled
procedure or encounter. The practitioner must also provide the Quality Management Department with a
patient listing or log until the specified patient volume or FPPE requirement is met.

The OPPE practitioner-specific profile that illustrates performance over the two-year reappointment cycle
will be utilized at the time of reappointment.

The Quality Management Department will be responsible for working with each Medical Staff
Committee on an annual basis to review the continued relevance of the selected indicators and triggers.



Individual Case Review Process

Cases identified with potential quality of care issues are referred to either the Medical Quality Review Committee
or Surgical Quality Review Committee for review. The Quality Management Department is responsible for
coordinating the Peer Review Process.

Cases may be identified through OPPE, FPPE, case management, risk management, audits, sentinel events, clinician
referrals, allegations of suspected substance abuse or disruptive behavior and other sources. All cases should be
initially screened by the Quality Management department utilizing medical staff approved screening criteria, prior
to forwarding for physician review. If there are no potential quality of care issues identified following the quality
management screening, the case is closed, the findings are documented and trending is performed in the Quality
Department.

If potential quality of care issues are identified through Quality Management screening, the following process for
peer review shall be implemented:

A. ReviewerSelection&Duti

Reviews are completed by the designated Medical Staff Quality Review Committee.

The Committee Chair shall determine the individual physician(s) to perform the initial review and shall
designate a deadline within which the individual physician reviewers shall complete the review which shall
not be greater than 60-days and at least 2 weeks prior to the next committee meeting. This will allow time for
the involved Practitioner to respond prior to the meeting (see below Communication to Involved Practitioner).

The individual physician reviewer(s) shall perform the initial review, complete the Peer Review Form, including
initial grade (see Review Form Summary below). The reviewer will report written findings and
recommendations to the Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting following the completion of the
review period.

The designated reviewer may not review a case where he/she participated in the care.

B. ReviewerDisqualification&Ren]

If a reviewer does not feel he/she can adequately review a medical record due to a conflict of interest or believes
he/she is not qualified to address a certain issue, the reviewer may discuss the issue with the Chairperson of the
Committee, Department Chief or Chief of Staff. If the Chair concurs, the Chair shall reassign the record(s)
to another reviewer. If a member has reviewed a record that needs to be presented but is unable to attend
the meeting, the member shall report to the Chair so that the presentation may be reassigned to another
Committee member or presented by the Chairperson. If the chairperson is the practitioner subject to
review, the record review will be assigned to another Active Staff member by the Chief of Staff. Should the
hospital have only one practitioner in a particular specialty, or the pool of eligible reviewers is otherwise
conflicted or unable to serve, the MEC or the Board of Trustees may request external peer review by a
practitioner who is Board certified within the same specialty.

C. Communication to Involved Practitioner

Any Practitioner who is the subject of a review receiving an assigned peer review score of 3 or greater, shall
be notified in writing at least two weeks prior to the medical staff meeting where the outcome of review is
reported. Communication shall include the case medical record number, admission/discharge date, reason
and outcome of the review. Comments and/or opinions made by the reviewer may be included; however, the
identity of the reviewer should be redacted.



The involved Practitioner is provided the opportunity to respond to the results of the review in writing in advance
of the meeting where the outcome is reported. At the request of the Department Chief, or Chief of Staff, the
Practitioner may be invited to attend the meeting to discuss the case.

Circumstances Requiring External Peer Review

If no practitioner on staff is qualified to conduct a review, the MEC, Chief of Staff, Department Chair or the
Board of Trustees may request external peer review by a practitioner who is Board certified within the same
specialty. External Peer Review may be necessary, but not limited to, the following circumstances:
The pool of eligible reviewers is unable to serve
There is no qualified practitioner on staff to conduct the review
Litigation risk
The facility has only a single practitioner in a particular specialty and no other practitioner
has similar background, training or experience.

No practitioner may require the Hospital to obtain external peer review if it is not deemed necessary by the
Chief of Staff, Executive Committee or Board of Trustees.

Where the body conducting the peer review seeks external or outside peer review by a qualified practitioner
within the same specialty or discipline as the practitioner under review, it shall appoint such external or
outside reviewer to be a member of the peer review committee, without vote. Any report generated by such
external or outside reviewer shall be considered to be a report of the peer review committee and shall be utilized
for the committee’s purposes. Likewise, where the peer review committee in its discretion affords the
practitioner under review the opportunity to respond to the report of an external or outside reviewer, the
practitioner shall attend a peer review committee meeting to discuss such response, and any information
submitted by the practitioner under review in response to such report shall be considered to have been
acquired in connection with or in the course of the peer review committee proceeding. An external or outside
reviewer who is appointed to the peer review committee shall attend peer review committee meetings
personally or telephonically, as is appropriate under the circumstances, for the purpose of deliberations
related to any report by such external or outside reviewer. All information pertaining to any external or
outside review by a qualified practitioner who is appointed to the peer review committee shall be protected to
the fullest extent permitted by state law. For purposes of this paragraph, “peer review committee” shall
include, without limitation, any medical review committee, departmental peer review committee, and the
Medical Executive Committee. !

ReviewFormSummary
Reviewing practitioners must complete the Peer Review Form, Attachment One, clearly and concisely. The

reviewing practitioner must sign his/her name on the review form which shall grade the care and outcome based
on the following schedule:

1 = Treatment appropriate, outcome good, and any patient impact was minimal
2 = Treatment appropriate but patient sustained significant adverse outcome

3 = Treatment inappropriate but adverse impact on patient was minimal

4 = Treatment inappropriate and patient sustained a significant adverse outcome

DOCUMENTATIONOFPEERREVIEWACTIVITIES:

Reports of OPPE and FPPE and individual case review findings and recommendations shall be presented to the
MEC. The MEC may adopt the recommendations of the Medical Staff Quality Review Committees and/or make
further recommendations, including recommendation for further investigation and/or Corrective Action in accord
with the Medical Staff Bylaws.




S
WATSONVILLE

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Results of OPPE, FPPE and Peer Review outcomes shall be documented
and maintained in the practitioner’s quality file and referenced at reappointment.

Iv. CONFIDENTIALITY OF REVIEW

All proceedings conducted as the result of this policy are subject to the California Evidence Code Section 1157
and The Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986 (HCQIA), 42 USC §11101.

Reviewed: 15t 2nd 3rd 4th Sth
Date: 4/15/14 9/20/16
By:  DSalvi MEC
Revised 1st 2nd 3rd 4t sth
Date:
By:
MEDICAL STAFF
WORKSHEET BUSINESS NOT TO
BE INCLUDED IN
MQRC SQRC B&T PATIENT CHART
Physician # Account# |Medical Record # T Outpt/ER Date | Review Date
y Admission Date| Discharge Date P
eferral Source:
o QRC-specific process audits or clinical practice guideline audits, o QRC-specific clinical indicators or outcome measurements.
o Referrals from external_a?encleg related to practitioner-specific issues. o Sentinel events dealing with practitioner-specific issues.
o Specific patient complaints dealing with clinical and/or practitioner specific issues. o Hospital-wide generic indicators.
o New legal cases identified by the organization, which may relate to physician performance. o Staff concermns.
o Referrals from other medical staff or organizational committees or team related to practitioner specific issues. o Event reports.

Case Summary:

Key Questions for Reviewer: 1)
2)
3)
Reviewer Findings/Conclusions:




Case Review Scoring

Issues identified with providers of care other than the physician under review.
Inadequate documentation/not timely and/or poor interdisciplinary communication.

RN o Case reviewed by a RN outside of committee with no identified opportunity for improvement.
o Case referred to physician for review. RN Signature:
o Treatment was appropriate and medically necessary.
Care b o Treatment was not appropriate, either all or in part. (See Practitioner Care Issues)
atLee ¥ |o Treatment was not medically necessary. (See Practitioner Care Issues)
Physician | © Treatment was controversial, unproven, experimental or investigational.
y o Treatment was not timely or not performed in the proper sequence. (See Practitioner Care Issues)
O Response time and/or ongoing assessment were not adequate. (See Practitioner Care Issues)
Practiton | @ Clinical Judgment/Decision-Making o Communication/Responsiveness
ercare | O Diagnosis o Follow-up/Foliow-through
Issues: | 0 Knowledge o Planning
(Checkall | o0 Policy Compliance o Supervision (House Physician or AHP)
thatapply) | o Technique/Skills o Other:
o Judgment of the physician. o Contributing cause not identified
Contributing i Holspital systerr]s_/process issues_. ' .
Causes | Failure by physician to comply with hospital/Medical Staff bylaws, Rules and Regulations.
m}
O
m]

Case reviewed by a physician outside of committee with no identified opportunity for improvement.
o Refer to QRC for Physician Concern or

o Refer to QCC for Process Problem Reviewer Signature

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS MAY BE WRITTEN ON THE BACK OF THIS FORM.




Committee | Is physician/provider response needed? o Yes o No (Care Appropriate, no issues or concerns)
Review | If yes, letter sent o Yes o No Date 1: Date 2:
Practitioner T
Response () LTGLUGI 1TUCIVOU Al iU UIDWUQOGU v i~ CUGI VYU
o 1-Treatment appropriate, outcome good and any
Committee | o 2 - Treatment appropriate, but in spite of that the patient sustained a significant adverse outcome.
Score o 3 - Treatment inappropriate, but the adverse impa
o 4 -Treatment inappropriate and the patient sustained a significant adverse outcome.

Additional Committee Recommendations:

DISPOSITION
QRC Act
o Referto o External Peer Review
o Informational Letter to o Track and Trend o Case Closed
Chairperson Signature Date

Privileged and confidential per CA business and professions Code 1157.



/ _ j ,‘
(R

'

”/ A lernio

| ! '. i :
WA \()\.Vll LE COMMU!\[]\ H()\l‘l lAl

T, ! R |

Item 13B

January 20, 2023

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Clay Angel, M.D., Chief of Staff
Chair, Medical Executive Committee

SUBJECT: Chief of Staff Report — January 17, 2023, MEC

ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL

1. Credentialing Actions:

1.1 Credentials Report: January 2023
1.2 Interdisciplinary Practice Credentials Report: January 2023



ltem 13B

WATSONVILLE

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Medical Executive Committee Summary — January 17, 2023

ITEMS FOR BOARD APPROVAL
Credentials Committee
INITIAL APPOINTMENTS: (14) -

APPLICANT SPECIALTY / STATUS DEPT PRIVILEGES Effective Date

Barminova, Anna, MD Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Neurology

Boudreau, Michelle, DO | Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Neurology

Bradley, Nina, DO Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Neurology

Nguyen, Jimmy, MD Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional y Neurology

Plancher, Joao, MD Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Neurology

Redmond, Cintasha, MD | Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Neurology

Sabra, Mark, MD Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurology 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Neurology

Suarez-Gonzalez, Vivian, | Teleneurology Medicine Teleneurclogy 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024

MD Provisional Neurology

Albright, Kristen, DPM Podiatry Surgery Surgery Podiatry 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Fluoroscopy

Day, Eric J., MD Internal Medicine Medicine Internal Medicine 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Hospitalist Critical Care, Non-
Provisional Intensivist

Hotchkiss, John, MD Teleradiology Medicine TeleRadiology 01/25/2023 - 12/31/2024
Provisional Radiology

Lin, Jennifer, MD Radiology Medicine Radiology, 01/25/2023 - 12/31/2024
Provisional Diagnostic

Nandan, Raghu, MD Plastic Surgery Surgery Plastic Surgery 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Wound Care

Ware, Paul, MD Palliative care Medicine Palliative Care / 01/25/2023 — 12/31/2024
Provisional Hospice

Medicine
REAPPOINTMENTS: (8)
APPLICANT SPECIALTY / STATUS DEPT | PRIVILEGES Effective Date
Abidi, Nicholas, MD Orthopedics / Courtesy | Surgery Orthopedic Surgery 02/01/2023-01/31/2025
Fluoroscopy

Credentials Board Report, 01/25/2023




Gonzalez, Gustavo, MD Ophthalmology / Active | Surgery Ophthalmology 02/01/2023-01/31/2025
Lopez-Bermejo, Melissa, | Critical Care Medicine, Medicine Critical Care, 02/01_/2023-01/31/2025
MD Pulmonary Disease / Intensivist
Active Internal Medicine
Moderate Sedation
Romo-Gritzewsky, Internal Medicine / Medicine Internal Medicine 02/01/2023-01/31/2025
Marylou, MD Courtesy
Simkin, Josefa, MD Internal Medicine Medicine Internal Medicine | 02/01/2023-01/31/2025
Hospitalist / Active Critical Care, Non-
Intensivist |
Swamidurai, Rajeshwary, | Anesthesiology / Active | Surgery Anesthesiology 02/01/2023-01/31/2025
MD
Telefus, Phillip, MD Pain Management / Surgefy Pain Management 01/28/2023-12/31/2024
Active Moderate Sedation
Fluoscopy
Yousefi, Arian, MD Internal Medicine Medicine Intermal Medicine 02/01/2023 - 07/31/2023
Hospitalist / Active Critical Care, Non-
Intensivist
— MODIFICATION / ADDITION OF PRIVILEGES:
NAME SPECIALTY Privileges
Nolan, Ryan, MD General Surgery Bariatric Surgery
STAFF STATUS MODIFICATIONS: ‘ - .
NAME SPECIALTY / DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION
Nolan, Ryan, MD General Surgery / Active Release from Wound Care proctoring; requirement met
Romo-Gritzewsky, Internal Medicine / Medicine Move from Active to Courtesy
Marylou, MD

Telefus, Phillip, MD

Pain Management / Surgery

Advance from Provisional to Active Staff; proctoring completed

Yousefi, Arian, MD

Internal Medicine Hospitalist /

Medicine

Release from Proctoring; Advance to Active Staff

Cole, Mario, MD

Pulmonary / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/01/2022

Koostra, John, MD

Tele-ICU / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/30/2022

Kundu, Nirvana, MD

Anesthesia / Surgery

Resigned Effective 07/27/2022

Rudnick, Nicholas, MD

Radiology / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/23/2022

Sohal, Ravinder, MD

Teleradiology/ Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/06/2022

Suber, Ladouglas, MD

Anesthesia / Surgery

Resigned Effective 07/27/2022

Kalanithi, Suman, MD

Teleneurology / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/16/2022

Prabhu, Divya, MD

Teleneurology / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/16/2022

Ruff, Jeffry, MD

Teleneurology / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/16/2022

Sajed, Mohammad, MD

Teleneurology / Medicine

Resigned Effective 12/16/2022

Credentials Board Report, 01/25/2023




TEMPORARY PRIVILEGES:

NAME SPECIALTY / DEPARTMENT DATES
Albright, Kristin, DPM Podiatry Surgery / Surgery 01/09/2023
Lin, Jennifer, MD Radiology / Medicine 01/17/2023 - 02/01/2023
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE
Initial Appointment: (0)
| APPLICANT SPECIALTY/STATUS | DEPT PRIVILEGES Effective Date
None

REAPPOINTMENT: (1)

| APPLICANT SPECIALTY /STATUS | DEPT | PRIVILEGES Effective Date _
Buraczynski, Mark, PA-C | Physician Assistant / Emergency Emergency Medicine 02/01/2023-01/31/2025
Allied Health Medicine Physician Assistant
Professional

STAFF STATUS MODIFICATIONS: (1)

NAME SPECIALTY / DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION

Brinton, Talia, PA-C Physician Assistant / Release from proctoring; requirement met
Emergency Department

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, January 17, 2023, ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL

1. Credentialing Actions:

1.1 Credentials Report: January 2023
1.2 Interdisciplinary Practice Credentials Report: January 2023

Credentials Board Report, 01/25/2023



Item 13C

WATSONVILLE

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Board Memo — Group Purchasing Organization Agreement

Agenda ltem: Consider Recommendation to Board of Directors for Approval of Master
Services Agreement with Vizient, Inc.

Executive Sponsor: Matko Vranjes, COO
Date: January 25, 2022
Summary

Conversion of Group Purchasing Organization (GPO) from HealthTrust Purchasing Group to Vizient, Inc.
GPO comparison along with Vizient Summary is included in the attached tables: GPO Comparison
Summary, Vizient Summary

Background/Situation/Rationale

Watsonville Community Hospital is currently operating under a 1-year agreement extension with
HealthTrust Purchasing Group (HPG). The Project had engaged FTI Consulting to perform a comparative
analysis of GPOs using the hospital’s 2021 supply spend. FTI compiled the market basket responses from
Premier and Vizient and compared them to current pricing with HPG. Vizient provides more savings than
Premier at every level. When comparing the prices line by line, Vizient and HPG have nearly the same
quantity of “best” pricing relative to the other 2. However, the study indicates that Vizient still provides
price savings.

Timeline/Process to date: The current agreement with HPG includes a 90-day termination notice
requirement. The timeline for conversion to Vizient is estimated at 90-120 days after execution of the
agreement.

Financial Impact: Annual savings

Key Contract Terms
1. Proposed effective date May 1,2022
2. Term of agreement 36 months
3. Renewal terms Auto renew 1-year terms
4. Termination provision(s) 180-day notice prior to expiration of Term MSA
90-day for SOW
5. Payment terms Net 30
6. Annual cost Fee Share Tiered, 2% up to 10M , 20% 10-12.5M
7. Budgeted (indicate Yes/No) Yes




Table 1.GPO Comparison Summary

ille € pital Top 80% Spend Analysis - Current (LPP) vs. Altemative GPO Pricing
Premier Vizient
Outlier ial Savi Total Line Count | Potential Savings | Total Line Count
Threshold (+/-} Excl. Outliers Excl. Outliers Excl. Outliers Excl. Outliers
0% $ 0 0 $ 0 0
10% $ (32,220} 99 $ (756 103 148 Items excuded due to 10%pricingvariance
20% $ 147.245, 148 $ (6,045] 137
30% 5 {10,810} 179 H 42131 164
40% $ 22,048 200 5 82,499 179
508 s 42,050 213 $ 111,199 191
60% $ 121,200 227 $ 228,917 204
70% S 225,792 236 S 300,022 215
80% S 355.049 250 s 418 426 225
90% S 335,445 251 s 475,174 231
100% ] 366,121 253 $ 576,931 51 no items with 100%pricing variance
ALLITEMS $ 303,824 257 $ 576,931 251 ’
Match Type Potential Savings| Total Line Count | Potential Savings | Total Line Count
N/A N/A 30 N/A 36
Equivalent /
Substitute 5 7,176 2 $ 52,102 p::3
Exact / Match 5 296,648 235 S 524,829 223
TOTAL INCLUDED 5 303,824 257 $ 576,931 251
Please note:

(1) Spend Analysis Is based on top 80% of total Watsonville spend from 2021 Spend Report, excluding

~$3.3Mof unlabeled spend Items

(2) Last Paid Price (LPP) was used for all items .
{3} Outlier % is based on variance between LPP and pricing GPO provided

{4} ltem-spedifi

detailedin

of

Table 2.Vizient Summary

Watsonviiie Community Hospital Top 80% Spend Analysis - Current (LPP} vs. Vliient Pricing

Premler and Vizient summary tabs

Mtem

d Detail Comparison Summary

Item 13C

Best Spend Estimate Offer

# of ltems

Current

Vizient

Premier

Premier = Vizient

Current =Premier = Vizient

Items with <=20% Outlier

Blvl=0le|s

Please note:

"(1) Spend Analysis is based on top 80% of total Watsonville spend from

2021 Spend Report, exduding ~$3.3M of unlabeled spend items
{2) ttems with >20% outlier for either Premier or Vizient were excluded
(3) Current spend is based on Last Paid Price (LPP)

% OF TOTAL
% OF TOTAL | Watsonville | % OF ToTaL | 10! Invelee | % OFTOTAL | VizlencTotal | =,y
DATA ANALYZED LINE COUNT LINES Involes Qty | Invoice Qty Spending Invoice Involce (i
based on LPP| Spending Spanding d
‘Watsonville Community Top Spend
Items Market Basket 287 100.0% 27,57 100.0%| 3,352,235 100.0%| 2,040,854 100.0%
% OF TOTAL
Total Invoice | % OF TOTAL | Vizient Total
OF TOTA i
SUMMARY BY MATCHTYPE unE count | * o el =Tl e a0 e e e e e Virent [ Brcenta) Comments
LINES Inveice Qty | Invoice Qty Invoice Savings Savings %
basedonLPP| Spending Spending
Spend
NO EQUIVALENT 36 12.5%)| 6737 24450 $ 774,350 22.8%| 5 = 0.0%) N/A /Al
SUBSTITUTE 28 2.5% 1081 3ol s 11789 a.5% 5 6573 3.2%| 5 52100 4%
MATCH 223 77.7% 13,?4 TLE%| $ 2.499 950 73.7%| $ 1975120 S6.8%] $ 524,82 21%)
| Total excl. NO EQUIVALENT 251 82.06% zn.xsﬂ_ 7557%| § 2617785 77.177‘] $ 200084 100.0%] 8 sml 2]

Please note:

Totul invoice Spending based on LPP = Last Price Paid (LEP) x Involee Oty
Removed items without a description from analysis
Qutlier % is based on difference in Jast paid price and pricing GPO provided

Match Type Definitions

MATCH - same supplier, same product category/contract description.
SUBSTITUTE- products deemed the same from a ciinical performance perspective.
NO EQUIVALENT- includes products not on Vizlent contracts.

Attachments:

Master Service Agreement

Statement of Work



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville
Community Hospital—

Master Services Agreement v i Zi e n t o

Master Services Agreement

This Master Services Agreement (this “Master Agreement"} is entered into on | iary 1, 2023 (the “Effective Date”),
by and between Vizlent, Inc., a Delaware corporation, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Vizient"} and
d/b/a ty pital, a California not-for-

pmﬁt corporétion, ("Me_mbef') for itself and on behalf of its covered facllities (“Covered Facillities”), as specifically set
forth in an applicable SOW (as defined below). Vizient and Member are sometimes referred to herein individually as a
“Party” and collectively, as the “Parties.”

1. Statement of Work. For all services provided by Vizient under this Master Agreement (collectively, the “Services™),
Vizient will issue a statement of work or order form {each, an “SOW”) containing relevant terms and provisions
which are fully incorporated herein, as an attachment to this Master Agreement, and made a part hereof. If
applicable, the SOW will identify the Vizient subsidiary, if any, providing Services and any Covered Facilities
receiving such Services. In the event of conflicting terms between this Master Agreement and any SOW executed
hereunder, the terms set forth in the respective SOW will control.

2. Service Fees and Invoicing. Service fees for all Services (“Service Fees”) will be specifically set forth in each
SOW. Any obligation to reimburse Vizient for Services-related expenses, including, but not limited to, travel, meals,
lodging, and other administrative costs, such as postage, copying, and ovemight mailing (collectively,
“"Reimbursable Expenses”), are in addition to Service Fees and will be indicated in each applicable SOW. Except
as otherwise set forth in an SOW, i) Vizlent will invoice Service Fees and, if applicable, Reimbursable Expenses
on a monthly basis; and ii) Member will remit payment net 30 days after the date of the invoice.

3. Taxes. Member heraby acknowledges and agrees Service Fees do not include foreign, federal, state, or local
sales, use, or other similar taxes, however designated, levied on the Services, and Member will be responsible for
such taxes. If Member is a tax-exempt organization, Member will provide Vizient with Member's current tax
exemption certificate or a direct pay permit (“Certificate”) and any updated Certificate, as may be requested by
Vizient from time to time during the Term. The Parties presume all sales of tangible personal property or services
are subject to tax unless Member provides a Certificate. IF MEMBER FAILS TO PROVIDE A CERTIFICATE: i)
MEMBER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TAXES CHARGED OR PAID EVEN IF LEGALLY EXEMPT FROM SUCH
TAXES; ii) VIZIENT WILL REMIT ANY TAXES CHARGED AND COLLECTED TO THE TAXING AUTHORITIES
AS IF A TAX WAS DUE; AND [il) VIZIENT WILL NOT RETURN OR REFUND SUCH TAXES TO MEMBER.

4. Data. In order for Vizient to provide Services, Member will provide spend-related data to Vizient, including, but not
limited to, purchase orders, item master information, vendor master information, receipts, Inveices, and utilization
data (individually and collectively referred to herein as “Spend Data”), in accordance with the submission
requirements for requested Services.

4.1. Data Consent. Vizient may use Spend Data provided by Member before the Effective Date and during the
Term in de-identified form to populate benchmarking databases (“Databases”) and to generate reports from
such Databases (“Reports”), which Vizient solely owns and may use for any purpose. Vizient may also use
Spend Data in de-identified form for any other purpose, including, but not limited to, contract development,
research information, and for comparative analysis use for Vizient's customers. Vizient may disclose Spend
Data on a line-item, identified basis to subcontractors and consultants under confidentiality agreements with
Vizient for the purpose of assisting Vizient in providing services. Member represents it has the right to provide
Vizient with Spend Data for the uses described In this provision.

4.2. Databases and Reports. Vizient makes no warranties or representations with regard to the Databases and
Reports, and Member is solely responsible for the results of its operational use of such Databases and
Reports. Databases and Reports may sometimes include portions of Vizient's and its suppliers' confidential

Page 1
January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v.08.21)

ltem 13C

| Pelebed: Watsonville Coinmunlty Hospital
| Deleted: Pa)aro Health District

Formatbed: Body Text,1body,BodText

| Deleted: January

Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospital
Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville
Community Hospital—

Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)

5.

data, such as Vizient's group purchasing (“GPQ") Member pricing data, supplier pricing data, and contract
terms and conditions. Member must perpetually treat the Databases and Reports as Confidential Information
of Vizient and its respective suppliers and will not use them for any purpose other than Member's internal use.

Term and Termination.

5.1. Term. The initial term of this Master Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue for a period
of 36 months (“Initial Torm”) and will automatically renew for additional 1-year terms (each, a "Renewal Term”™)
unless either Party provides written notice of its Intent not to renew to the other Party at least 180 days prior
to the expiration of the then-current Term (the Initial Term and any Renewal Terms are collectively referred to
herein as the “Term”). In the event the term of any SOW extends beyond the Term of this Master Agreement,
the Term of this Master Agreement will automatically extend to the latest expiration or termination date of such
SOW.

5.2. Termination for Cause. Either Party may terminate this Master Agreement or SOW effective immediately
upon written notice to the other Party if the other Party Is under default or breach of this Master Agreement or
SOW and the breaching Party has not remedied such default or breach within 30 days after receipt of written
notice from the non-breaching Party specifying the default or breach.

5.3. Termination for Insolvency. Either Party may terminate this Master Agreement and all attached SOWs
immediately upon written notice to the other Party if the other party is adjudged insolvent or bankrupt; or upon
the institution of any proceeding against the other Party seeking relief, reorganization, or arrangement under
any laws relating te insolvency; or for the making of any assignment for the benefit of creditors; or upon the
appointment of a receiver, liquidator, or frustee of any of the other Party’s property or assets; or upon
liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the other Party’s business.

Grant of Limited Rights. Vizient solely owns all work product, including, but not limited to, all materials, programs,
documentation, concepts, methodologies, and aids related to the Services. Vizient grants to Member the limited
right to use the Services for its internal use only during the Term of this Master Agreement or applicable SOW.
Member will not, without Vizient's prior written consent, reproduce any of the materials, programs, documentation,
or aids related to the Services for the purpose of disclosure or distribution to any other party, including any third-
party legal, financlal, or consulting advisors, unless such third party i) has a need to access the information for
purposes of fulfilling Member's obligations under this Master Agreement, and ii) has entered into a confidentiality
agreement with Vizient or has been approved by Vizient in writing.

Intellectual Property. Member will not, nor will it permit any third-party to: i) use any Vizient Database, Report, or
Services, or any portion of the Vizient deliverables or work product, including, without limitation, information,
design, specification, instruction, software, data, or material (collectively referred to as the “Vizient IP"} for any
unlawful purpose; ii) market, sublicense, publish, distribute, lend, transfer, or otherwise make Vizient IP, or any
components or output therefrom, available fo a third party; fii} alter, maintain, enhance, modify, or create derivatives
of the Vizient IP; iv) remove any trademark, copyright, or proprietary notices; v) copy, decompile, disassemble, or
otherwise reverse engineer the Vizient IP or perform any similar means or actions to discover the source code or
trade secrets in the Vizient IP; vi) use the Vizient IP to provide service bureau, time sharing, or other computer
services to third parties; vii) circumvent any technological measures that control access fo the Vizient IP; viii) use
the Vizient IP in any nuclear, aviation, mass fransit, life support, or any other inherently dangerous manner; or ix)
use the Vizient IP to benefit any party other than Member.

Confidentiality.

8.1. General. During the Term and for a period of 3 years after its expiration or termination, neither Party may
publish, disseminate, or disclose to any third party any Confidential Information (as defined below) of the other
Party without the other Party’s prior written consent. A Party may disclose Confidential Information only to its

Page 2
January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. {v.08.21)

Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospltal
| Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospital
Community Hospital— | Deleted: Pajaro Health District

Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)
employees who have a need to access the Confidential Information for purposes of fulfilling the Party's
obligations under this Master Agreement.

8.2. Confidential Information. For purposes of this Master Agresment, “Confidential Information” includes: I) any
information which refers or relates to this Master Agreement or any Vizient supplier agreement, including, but
not limited to, any information relating to supplier pricing, supply contract terms, member data, customer lists,
financial analyses, benchmarking and comparative reports of any kind prepared by the other Party, business
processes or plans, sourcing and contracting methods, and *know-how”; ii) any Information a Party marks as
“Confidential,” “Proprietary,” or with a similar legend prior to disclosure; iii) any information which is orally
identified as confidential at the time of disclosure and confirmed as confidential in writing within 10 business
days following such disclosure; iv) any information which by its nature should reasonably be considered as
confidential or proprietary; and v) all Information generated by a Party that contains, refiects, or is derived from
Confidential Information.

8.3. Excluslons. Confidentiality obligations will not apply to information that: i) is published by the disclosing Party
or otherwise becomes available to the public other than by a breach of this Master Agreement; i) Is rightfully
received by the racipient from a third party not under an obligation of confidentiality; ili) is known by or
independently developed by the recipient prior to disclosure by the disclosing Party; or iv) is required to be
disclosed pursuant to a lawful subpoena from a court of competent jurisdiction or in response to a valid request
by a federal or state governmental agency. In the event of any required disclosure under law, the Party
requesting disclosure of such Confidential information will provide reasonable advance written notice to the
non-disclosing Party so the non-disclosing Party may have an opportunity to object or seek to make such
disclosure subject to a protective order or other appropriate remedy to preserve the confidentiality of the
Confidential Information.

8.4. Rights in the Confidential Information. Except as expressly stated in this Master Agreement or an SOW, i)
this Master Agreement does not confer any right, license, interest, or title In, to, or under the Confidential
Information; and ii) no license is granted to the receiving Party, by estoppels or otherwise, under any patent,
trademark, copyright, trade secret, or other proprietary rights.

8.5. Equitable Reliof. The Parties acknowledge and agree that monetary damages are insufficient for any breach
of the cdnﬁdentiality provisions of this Master Agreement. As such, the nonbreaching Party may seek specific
performance or injunctive relief, in addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity, upon the breach
or threatened breach of this Confidentiality Section without posting bond and without proof of actual damages.

8. Compliance.

9.1. Compliance with Applicable Laws. The Parties agree to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local
laws, including, but not limited to, the requirements of the federal fraud and abuse statute, codified at 42 U.S.C.
1320a-7b, as amended, and relevant regulations thereto.

9.2. Discounts and Rebates. To the extent Member recelves discounts, rebates, distributions, or any other price
reductions as a result of purchases or remuneration under this Master Agreement, an SOW, or any other
group purchasing program agreement, Member may have an obligation under federal or state law to disclose
such price reductions or remuneration to federal or state health care programs or other payors (as part of the
cost reporting process or otherwise). Member and all Covered Facilities will comply with all such laws. Member
will provide each of its applicable Covered Facilities, if any, rebate or other information (if any} necessary for
the Covered Facility to comply with its obligations under this Section.

9.3. Records. Upon request of the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United
States, or any other duly authorized representative, Vizient will make available the contracts, books,

Page 3
January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v.08.21)



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonviile

Community Hospital-
Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)

documents, and records necessary to certify the nature and extent of the cost of any Services in excess of
$10,000 per year until the expiration of 4 years from completion of any such Services provided under this
Master Agreement.

10. Professlonal Obligatlons. Member acknowledges and agrees that the professional duty owed to patients seeking
health care services lies solely with the health care professional providing health care services. As such, Member
takes full responsibility for the use of information provided under this Master Agreement and all SOWs in patient

care

and acknowledges that the use of any and all Services is not intended to replace or substitute professional

judgment. Vizient does not assume any responsibility for actions of Member that may result in liability or damages
arising from malpractice, failure to warn, negligence, or any other basls, and Member agrees to indemnify, defend,

and

hold Vizient, the Vizient subsidiaries, and their respective employees, officers, and directors harmless from

and against any and all liabillty or damages.

11. Indemnification.

1141

1.2,

Page 4

. General Indemnification. Each Parly will indemnify and hold the other Party harmless from any and all

damages, losses, liabilities, claims, or cost (including, without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees) arising
out of any third-party claim for bodily injury or death, or damage fo property, caused by any negligent act or
omission or breach of this Master Agreement (or any SOW hereunder) by the indemnifying Party or its
employees, officers, or agents. Vizient's indemnity and hold harmless obligation does not apply to any
medical malpractice claim, damage, loss, or liability. Neither Parly is responsible for losses incurred to the
extent caused by the other Party’s negligence or willful misconduct.

Intellectual Property Indemnification. Subject to the Indemnification Procedure Section below, Vizient
will, at its sole expense, defend any third-party action brought against Member based on a claim that any
Vizient [P that is proprietary to Vizient or licensed by Vizient and purchased pursuant to this Master
Agreement infringes any United States copyright, patent, or frademark and will pay all reasonable costs and
damages finally awarded against Member in any such action attributable to such claim.

A. Limitation. Vizient will have no liability to Member under Section 11.2 to the extent such infringement
arises from the use of such: i) Vizient IP in combination with equipment, software, or services not
supplied by Vizient; ii) Vizient IP in a manner other than in accordance with its product description and
the terms of this Master Agreement, applicable SOW, or any end user license agreement that may be
provided with such Vizient IP; or iii} modifications to Vizient IP made by persons other than Vizient
personnel or Member’s design or specifications.

B. Maodification by Vizient. If any allegation of infringement with respect to any Vizient IP Is made, or, in
Vizient's opinlon is likely to be made, then Vizient may, at its sole option and expense: i) procure for
Member the right to continue using the Vizient IP; ii} modify the Vizient IP so as to avoid the
infringement; iii) replace the Vizient IP with a functionally similar version and require Member to cease
use of the Vizient IP in question; or iv) refund Service Fees paid to Vizient by Member for the use of
such Vizient IP, less an amount for amortization based on a five-year, straightline amortization
schedule, in which case the Member must cease using the Vizient IP and retum it to Vizient.

. Indemnification Procedure. A Party’s right to indemnification is conditioned upon the following: i) the

indemnified Party must promptly notify the indemnifying Party of the claim (provided, however, that If the
indemnified Party fails to provide prompt notice, the indemnifying Party will be relieved of its indemnification
obligations only if and to the extent the indemnifying Party is materially prejudiced by such failure); ii) the
indemnifying Party will have sole control of the defense and settiement of the claim (but the indemnifying
Party must not agree to a consent decree or similar order binding the indemnified Party or to any settlement
that specifically apportions fault or liability to the indemnified Party without the indemnified Party’s prior
written consent); iii) the indemnified Party will provide the indemnifying Party, at its expense, with assistance

January 20, 2023
This information Is proprietary and highly confidential. (v.08.21)

Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospital
Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville

Community Hospital—
Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)

12.

13.

14.

in the defense as the indemnifying Party may reasonably request; and iv) the indemnified Party must not
incur any cost or expense for the indemnifying Party’s account without its prior written consent.

THE PARTIES HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THE FOREGOING STATES VIZIENT'S ENTIRE
LIABILITY UNDER THIS MASTER AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE WITH RESPECT TO INFRINGEMENT OF
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS.

Limitation of Liabllity. EXCEPT FOR EACH PARTY'S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH HEREIN : i) IN
NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT OR UNDER ANY OTHER
LEGAL THEORY (INCLUDING STRICT LIABILITY AND NEGLIGENCE), FOR LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES,
LOSS OR INTERRUPTION OF USE, LOST OR DAMAGED DATA, REPORTS, DOCUMENTATION, OR
SECURITY, OR SIMILAR ECONOMIC LOSS, OR FOR ANY INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR SIMILAR DAMAGES ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS MASTER AGREEMENT,
EVEN IF THE PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES; AND i) EXCEPT FOR
MEMBER'S FAILURE TO PAY FOR THE SERVICES, EACH PARTY’'S MAXIMUM LIABILITY IS LIMITED TO
THE ANNUAL SERVICE FEES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES IN THE APPLICABLE SOW. THIS
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY IS FUNDAMENTAL TO THIS MASTER AGREEMENT. THE PARTIES REVIEWED
AND BARGAINED FOR THESE TERMS AND NEITHER PARTY WOULD BE WILLING TO ENTER INTO THIS
MASTER AGREEMENT WITHOUT THIS LIMITATION.

Warranty and Remedies.

13.1. Authority. Each Parly represents and warrants it is authorized to enter into and execute this Master
Agreement and any and all applicable SOWs, if any, on behalf of itself and each of the applicable Vizient
subsidiaries or Covered Facilities, respectively, as documented in any applicable SOW.

13.2. Vizlent Warranty. Vizient warrants it will perforn the Services in a good and workmanlike manner in
accordance with the requirements in each SOW. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THERE
ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE. MEMBER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, AND VIZIENT'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
LIABILITY, FOR A BREACH OF THE WARRANTY IN THIS SECTION ARE: i) THE SPECIFIC SUPPORT
SERVICES IN THE APPLICABLE SOW; ii) REPEATING OR REPROCESSING OF THE SERVICE(S) (IF
POSSIBLE) BY VIZIENT AT NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE; OR iii) TERMINATION OF THE APPLICABLE
SOW UPON 30 DAYS' PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE TO VIZIENT.

13.3. Cooperation. Each Party agrees to cooperate and respond to applicable requests for information in a timely
manner. A Party's failure or delay is excused to the extent the other Party impedes or delays completion of
the Services by: i} failing or delaying to provide necessary information, equipment, or accass to facilities to
Vizient; ii) failing to complete required tasks or perform its obligations under this Master Agreement or the
applicable SOW for any reason; or iii} providing materially untrue or incorrect information.

Protected Health Information. One or more of the Services may involve the use and disclosure of Member's
Protected Health Information (“PHI"). Each Party intends to protect the privacy, security, and integrity of any PHI
exchanged under this Master Agreement in compliance with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, and their
implementing regulations, as each may be amended from time to time (collectively, “HIPAA"). The Parties further
acknowledge Member is a Covered Entity (as defined under HIPAA) and Vizient may be a Business Associate (as
defined under HIPAA) in the delivery of certain services through Member's participation in Vizient's national
heaithcare alliance. If Member engages Vizient to perform Services involving the use or disclosure of PHI, then
the respective SOW will explicitly state the use or disclosure of PHI is required and Vizient and Member shall enter
intoe a mutually agreeable business associate agreement for the protection of PHI in accordance with HIPAA
requirements.

Page 5
January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. {v.08.21}

Deleted: Watsonvlile Community Hospital
Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville
Community Hospital—

Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)
15. Government Program Participation. Each Party represents and warrants it has never been excluded from

16.

17.

participation in any federal health care program (as such term is defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f)) (“Federal
Health Care Program®), or been debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded by any federal department or agency. Each Party represents and warrants it has not been the subject of
an actual, pending, or threatened formal adverse action, as that term is defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7e(g). Each
Party will promptly notify the other Party in the event it is excluded from any Federal Health Care Program, or
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal
department or agency, during the Term.

General.

16.1. Entire Agreement. This Master Agreement, including all SOWs executed hereunder, amendments, and
exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement between Vizient and Member relating to the subject matter of this
Master Agreement, and supersedes all prior understandings, agreements, proposals, and documentation
relating to the subject matter of this Master Agreement.

16.2. Amendment. This Master Agreement may be amended only by a document signed by authorized
representatives of both Parties.

16.3. Assignment. Member will not assign or transfer any rights or obligations under this Master Agreement or
any SOW without Vizient's prior written consent. This Master Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be
binding on the Parties and their respective assigns.

16.4. Governing Law. This Master Agreement will be govemed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws
of the State of Delaware, excluding its conflicts of law provisions.

16.5. Independent Entities. None of the provisions of this Master Agreement or any SOW will create any
relationship between the Parties other than that of independent entities contracting with each other solely
for the purpose of effecting the provisions of this Master Agreement. Neither of the Parties, nor any of their
employees, will be construed to be the agent, employer, employee, or representative of the other.

16.6. Force Majeure. Neither Party will be liable for delays in their performance to the extent and for the duration
of time resulting from an event beyond the Parly’s reasonable control, such as acts of God (earthquake,
hurricane), terrorism, national emergencies, or changes in govemment regulations.

16.7. Severabllity. In the event any provision of this Master Agreement is for any reason deemed to be invalid,
ilegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other
term or provision of this Master Agreement, and this Master Agreement will be construed by limiting or
invalidating such provision to the minimum extent necessary to make such provision valid, legal, and
enforceable.

16.8. Waiver. The waiver of any breach of any term or condition of this Master Agreement does not waive any
other breach of that term or condition or of any other term or condition, unless agreed to in a writing signed
by the Parties.

Notices. All notices related to this Master Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given
when delivered personally, or at the fime sent, if sent by registered or certified United States mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, or by FedEx or similar delivery service for overnight delivery, and addressed to the
other Party as follows or at such address as such Party from time to time may indicate by written notice to the other

Party:

If to Vizient:

Page 6
January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v.08.21)

Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospltal
Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/h/a Watsonville

Community Hospital—

Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)

18.

19.

21.

Vizlent, Inc.

Atin: Membership/Sales Operations
290 East John Carpenter Freeway
Irving, Texas 75062

With a copy to:

Vizient, Inc.

Attn: Legal Department

290 East John Carpenter Freeway, 7th Floor
Irving, Texas 75062

If to Member:

Watsonville Community Hospital d/b/a Pajaro Heaith District
Attn:

75 Neilson St

Watsonville, CA 95076

Egual Opportunity and Affirmative Action. Vizient is an equal opportunity and affirmative action employer.
Vizient abides by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60-1.4(a) (Executive Order 11246 Equal Opportunity Clause); 41
C.F.R. 60-250.5(a) (Equal Opportunity for Special Disabled Veterans, Veterans of the Vietnam Era, Recently
Separated Veterans, and Other Protected Veterans); 41 C.F.R 60-300.5(a) (Equal Opportunity for Disabled
Veterans, Recently Separated Veterans, Other Protected Veterans, and Armed Forces Service Medal Veterans);
41 C.F.R. 60-741.5 (a) (Equal Opportunity for Workers with Disabilities); FAR 52.222-21 (Prohibition of Segregated
Facilities); and FAR 52.222-26 (Equal Opportunity). These regulations are incorporated herein by reference and
prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with
disabilities and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, or national
origin.

Counterparts. All documents pertaining to this Master Agreement may be executed by the exchange of certified
electronic signatures or copies delivered by electronic mail in Adobe Portable Document Format or similar format.
Any signature transmitted by those shall be deemed an “original signature.” All documents pertaining to this Master
Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

Publicity/Use of Marks. Except as otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing, neither Party may: i) use each
other’s trademarks or service marks; or li) make any press release or other public disciosure regarding this Master
Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Master Agreement without the other Party’s prior written
consent, except as required under applicable law or by any governmental agency, in which case the Party required
to make the press release or public disclosure shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the approval of
the other Party as to the form, nature, and extent of the press release or public disclosure prior to issuing the press
release or making the public disclosure.

Survival. The following provisions shall survive the expiration or any earlier termination of this Master Agreement
for the number of years stated in the provision or, if none is stated, then perpetually: Grant of Limited Rights,
Confidentiality, Discounts and Rebates, Records, Professional Obligations, Indemnification, the last sentence in
Vizient Warranty regarding limitations of liability, General, and Notices.

[Signatures on next page]

Page 7
January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary end highly confidential. (v.08.21)

Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospital
| Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville | Deleted: Watsonvills Community Hospital
Community Hospital~ Deleted: Pajaro Health District
Master Services Agreement (MID# 2624064)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parfies have caused this Master Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized
representatives as of the Effective Date.

Vizient, Inc. Watsonville Community Hospltal d/b/a Pajare
Health District

By: By:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 8

January 20, 2023
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v.08.21)



Pajaro Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville Community

Hospital- Group Purchasing Program —
vizient

(MID# 2624064)

Group Purchasing Program
Statement of Work

Vizient, Inc., a Delaware corporation, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Vizient"), will provide the
services detailed in this Group Purchasing Program Statement of Work (“SOW") to Pajaro Health Care District
Hospital Corporation dft/a Watsonville Community Hospital, a Califoia not-for-profit corporation, (“Member”),
and Member's Covered Facilities (defined below), for the Service Fees Indicated below. This SOW is made pursuant
to the terms and conditions set forth in the Master Services Agreement dated £ ry 1, 2023, and any amendments
or addendums thereto (collectively, the “Master Agreement”). As such, all capitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined in this SOW will have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Master Agreement. As of the
Effective Date, this SOW shall supersede all previous agreements relating to the subject matter described herein. This
SOW is effective as of [May 1, 2023 (“Effective Date”). Vizient and Member are sometimes referred to herein
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” Any reference to, or description of any right or obligation of,
“Member” in this SOW will also include its Covered Facilities unless specifically delineated.

1. Services. Vizient will provide Group Purchasing Program services to Member (collectively, the “Services”).
Specifically, the Services include:

1.1 GPO Services and Agent Designation. Vizient is a health care group purchasing organization (“GPQ") that,
on behalf of participating organizations, negotiates, directly and through its contracting subsidiaries, such as
Vizient Supply, LLC (“Vizient Supply’) and MedAssets Performance Management Solutions, Inc.
(‘MedAssets"), vendor and distributor (“Suppliers”) agreements (“Supplier Agreements”) for goods, services,
or intangible items (collectively, “Covered ltems”) and offers supply chain and clinical improvement related
services (collectively referred to as the “Group Purchasing Program”). Member designates, for itself and on
behalf of its Covered Facilities, Vizient and its agents, including, but not limited to, Vizient Supply and
MedAssets, to act as Member's exclusive GPO agent for purposes of negotiating and entering into Supplier
Agreements under which Member may purchase as a third-party beneficiary and Member will not engage any
competitor GPO to provide services substantially similar to the Services provided hereunder.

1.2 Ancillary Document Agent Designation. Member appoints Vizient as its authorized agent for the limited
purpose of entering into, executing, and submitting to Suppliers, on Member's behalf, purchase-level tier
assignments, letters of participation, letters of commitment, or other relevant documentation, to the extent
such documentation is required to provide Member with access to and benefit from Supplier Agreements.

1.3 Vizient Catalog. Vizient will provide Member with access to Vizient's electronic contract management and
catalog database (“Vizient Catalog”) which provides access to: i) Supplier Agreements; ii) information
regarding Vizient's products and services; iii} Administrative Fees Database (as defined below); and iv) Annual
Disclosure Reports (as defined below).

1.4 Supplier Disputes. Vizient will provide Member with reasonable assistance to resolve disputes with Suppliers
related to Supplier Agreements; provided, however, Vizient will not provide legal analysis or legal counseling
to Member or any dispute-resolution assistance requiring legal expertise.

2. Covered Facilities.

2.1 Covered Facility. A “Covered Facility,” or collectively, “Covered Facilities,” are individual sites or facilities
whereby Member represents and warrants Member: i) has managerial or operational responsibilities including,
without limitation, primary control of each Covered Facility's procurement activities related to supply chain
management; i) has the authority to bind each Covered Facility to the terms and conditions of this SOW; and
lii) Is authorized to accept any applicable Fee Share, Discounts, or Rebates (as defined below) on behalf of

Page 1

This is a limited time offer which may expire if an executed SOW is not delivered to Vizient within 90 days of January 20, 2023.
This information is proprietary and highly confidentiat. {(v08.20}
hitps:/ivizientine.lightning.force.com/lightning/r/Opportunity/00625000013 1NSAQAUview

GPO: 1015

Deleted: Watsonvllle Community Hospltal
| Deleted: Pajaro Health District

| Deleted: Watsonvilfe Community Hospital
| Deleted: Pajaro Health District
| Deleted: January

| Deleted: January



Pajaro Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville Community

Hospital- Group Purchasing Program

(MID# 2624064)

22

Covered Facilities. The term “primary control" means Member has the power, directly or indirectly, whether
through ownership or via a management agreement, to direct, overses, manage, or implement policies as it
relates to procurement activities or facility operations. Vizient reserves the right to require reasonable written
documentation a Covered Facility meets the requirements of this section. Member agrees to indemnify Vizient
against, and hold Vizlent harmless from, any claim arising from the breach of this representation and warranty.

Covered Facility Addition Form. Upon execution of this SOW, Vizient will provide Member with an electronic
form whereby Member can add Covered Facllities to Member's Group Purchasing Program membership
(“Covered Facility Addition Form™). Thereafter, Member has 30 days to complete and return the Covered
Facility Addition Form to Vizient at the email address described therein. Member may add a Covered Facility
at any time by submitting a Covered Facility Addition Form which will take effect within 3 business days of
receipt. Member may remove a Covered Facllity by providing written notice to Vizient. Member is responsible
for providing all information necessary to roster Covered Facilities under Member's Group Purchasing
Program membership. Each Covered Facility must comply with the terms hereof and Vizlent will have no
obligation to provide Services or Fee Share to any site or facility not rostered as a Covered Facility in
accordance with this SOW. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Vizient reserves the right to condition the addition
of an existing Vizient GPO member as a Covered Facllity hereunder on a mutually agreeable amendment to
this SOW.

3. Term and Termination.

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

Term. The initial term of this SOW will commence on the Effective Date and continue for a period of 36
months (‘Initial Term"). Thereatfter, the Initial Term will automatically renew for 1-year terms (each, a
“Renewal Tem”) unless either Party provides 90 days’ written notice of its intent not to renew prior to the
expiration of the then-current Term. The Initial Term and any Renewal Terms are referred to herein collectively
as the “Temm.”

Termination for Convenience. This SOW may not be terminated for convenience. If the Master Agreement
expires or is terminated prior to the expiration of this SOW, the applicable terms and conditions of the Master
Agresment survive for the limited purpose of govemning this SOW for its remaining Term.

Termination for Cause. The Parties may terminate this SOW for material breach in accordance with the
terms of the Master Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all notices to or from a Covered Facility
relating to any material breach will require a simultaneous notice to the Member.

Effect of Termination. The termination of this SOW relative fo a Covered Facility will not automatically result
in the termination of this SOW as between Vizient and Member; provided, howsver, termination of this SOW
relative to the Member will result in the automatic termination of this SOW as between Vizient, Member, and
all Covered Facilities.

4., Administrative Fees, Discounts al ebates, and Supplisr Agreement Obligations.

4.1

4.2

Page 2

Administrative Fees. Member acknowledges and agrees that, pursuant to the terms of Supplier Agreements,
Vizient i) will receive administrative fees from Suppliers based on Member's purchases (“Administrative Fees")
and ii) may furnish certain administrative and promotional services to such Suppliers.

Administrative Fees Database. Except as otherwise provided for in a Supplier Agreement, each Supplier
Agreement provides for a fixed Administrative Fee of 3% or less of the purchase price for Covered ltem(s).
For Supplier Agreements that provide for an Administrative Fee greater than 3%, Member can access such
Administrative Fee amounts (“Administrative Fees Database”) via Vizient Catalog, which Vizient will update
as necessary, and Is incorporated herein by reference. This section is intended to maintain the Parties’
compliance with the federal health care GPO anti-kickback statutory exception, 42 USC 1320a-7b(b)(3)(C),
and regulatory safe harbor, 42 CFR 1001.952(j), as amended.

This is a limited time offer which may expire if an executed SOW is not delivered to Vizient within 90 days of January 20, 2023.
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v08.20}

https:/ivizientinc.lightning force.com/lightning/r/Opportunity/0062S0000131N6AQAUNVew

GPO: 1015

Deleted: Wals_onvllle Community Hospital
Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville Community

Hospital- Group Purchasing Program

{MID# 2624064)

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

Discounts and Rebates. Member acknowledges and agrees that, in addition to any Fee Share (defined
below), Member: i) may receive discounts (“Discounts”) or rebates (“Rebates”) from Suppliers or Vizient that
may be subject to 42 USC 1320-7b and thus Member may have an obligation under federal or state law to
disclose such Fee Share, Discounts, or Rebates to federal or state health care programs or other payors part
of the cost reporting process or otherwise; and ii) agrees to comply with all such laws. This section is intended
to maintain the Parties’ compliance with the federal health care discount anti-kickback statutory exception, 42
USC 1320a-7b(b){3)(A) and discount safe harbor, 42 CFR 1001.952(h), as amended.

Impact Standardization Program. Vizient's Impact Standardization Program (“lmpact Program") provides
quarterly Rebates to those members who enroll and comply with the Impact Program’s standardization
purchasing requirements. Upon successful enrollment and compliance with the Impact Program's
requirements, Member will receive all Impact Program Rebates paid to Vizient, on behalf of Member, during
each calendar quarter. Vizient will pay all Rebates to Member within 120 days following the end of each
calendar quarter.

Annual Disclosure Report. Vizient will provide Member, no less than annually and via Vizient Catalog, an
annual report listing Member’s purchases and respective Administrative Fees, Rebates, or Discounts received
by Vizient based on such purchases (“Annual Disclosure Report"). Member acknowledges and agrees Vizient
has no obligation to provide an Annual Disclosure Report to Covered Facilities. As such, Member represents
and warrants it will provide Covered Facllities with any information relating to Administrative Fees necessary
for Covered Facilities to comply with all relevant state and federal cost reporting or other laws and regulations.
Member agrees to indemnify Vizient against, and hold Vizient harmless from, any claim arising from breach
of this representation and warrant.

Supplier Agresment Obligations. Member is bound to the terms and conditions of each Supplier Agreement
if Member: i) purchases Covered ltems under that agreement; or ii) agrees to be bound to that agreement in
an ancillary document (such as a Letter of Commitment or Letter of Participation). Member warrants that any
purchase made under any Supplier Agreement will not cause Member to breach any third-party agreement or
obligation. Vizient has no responsibility for interpreting, negotiating, or managing ancillary agreements
Member enters into with an individua! Supplier. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Member detemmines, in its sole
discretion, whether and how much to purchase through Supplier Agreements.

Own Use. Member represents and warrants that all Covered Items purchased will be for Member's “own
use,” within the meaning of the Nonprofit Institutions Act as interpreted by the U.S. Supreme Court in Abbott
Laboratories v. Portland Retail Druggists Association Inc., 425 U.S. 1 (1976), and its successor line of cases,
and will comply with the Prescription Drug Marketing Act of 1987, as applicable and amended. Member will
Indemnify and hold Vizient harmless from any and all manner of liability including, but not limited to, any and
all costs of defense resulting from any breach by Member of this section. Vizient will have the right o
immediately terminate this SOW should Member breach the foregoing representation and warranty.

5. Service Fess, Committed Purchases Requirement, and Fee Share.

51

5.2

Page 3

Service Fees. Vizient will provide the Services described herein to Member in consideration of the
Administrative Fees retained by Vizient hereunder (“Service Fees"), and Member acknowledges and agrees
the retained Administrative Fees represent the fair market value of such Services.

Committed Purchases Requirement. For each 12-month period, commencing on the Effective Date (each,
a “Contract Year”), Member's aggregate purchases reported by Suppliers, not acting in the capacity of a
distributor (“Manufacturer Purchases”), will equal or exceed the applicable spend amount (the “Committed
Purchases Reguirement” or "CPR"), as follows:

This is a limited ime offer which may expire if an executed SOW is not delivered to Vizient within 90 days of January 20, 2023.
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v08.20)
https:/ivizientinc.lightning.force.com/lightning/r/Opportunity/0062S00001 3 1NBAQAUview

GPO: 1015

| Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospital

 Deleted: Pajaro Health District



Pajaro Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville Community

Hospital—- Group Purchasing Program
(MID# 2624064)

53

54

55

Page 4

Contract Year Committed Purchases Requirement
January 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023 $2
January 1, 2024 — December 31, 2024 9.
January 1, 2025 ~ December 31, 2025 $.9.

In the event of a Renewal Term, the then-current CPR will increase by 3% for each Renewal Term. If Member
fails to mest the Committed Purchases Requirement for any Contract Year, Member will pay Vizient two point
six five percent (2.65%) of the difference between the Committed Purchases Requirement and total
Manufacturer Purchases made during such Contract Year.

Fee Share. Vizient will pay Member a percentage (‘Fee Share Percentage”) of Administrative Fees based on
Member's purchases reported by Suppliers (‘Fes Share”), within 120 days following the end of the calendar
quarter In which such purchases were reported. At the beginning of each Contract Year, the applicable Fee
Share Percentage will equal 2% until total purchases through Supplier Agreements, as reported by Suppliers
not acting in the capacity of a distributor, equal or exceed $10,000,000 (“Reported Purchases”). Thereatter,
the Fee Share Percentage will increase in accordance with the tier table below. For any calendar quarter
during a Contract Year in which Reported Purchases exceed a tier threshold, the higher Fee Share Percentage
will apply from dollar one ($1} of all Administrative Fees reported during the applicable Contract Year. At the
beginning of each Contract Year the Fee Share Percentage will reset to 2%.

Reported Purchases Foe Share Percentage
$0 - $9,999,999 2%
$10,000,000 - $12,499,999 20%
$12,500,000 - $14,499,999 25%
$14,500,000 and above 30%

Member Statement. After the end of each calendar quarter, Vizient will provide Member with a summary
account statement (*“Member Statement”) showing total Fee Share eamed, other cash payments, and any
other invoices offset for the respective calendar quarter. If the Member Statement reflects a total net due
amount owed from Vizient to Member, Vizient will pay Member such amounts within 120 days after the last
day of the applicable period. Ifthe Member Statement reflects a total net amount due from Member to Vizient,
Vizient will issue an invoice for such amounts and Member will pay all invoices within 30 days of receipt.
Vizlent reserves the right to offset any invoices for Service Fees, Reimbursable Expenses, or any other
amounts owed under the Master Agresment, past due 90 days, against amounts due to Member as reflacted
in the Member Statement. The Member Statement will provide a summary of any invoices for Service Fees,
Reimbursable Expenses, and other amounts offset by Vizient.

No Obligation. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated herein, Vizient will not be obligated to pay
Fee Share to the extent: i) Member breaches a material term of the Master Agreement or this SOW that
remains uncured; ii) Administrative Fees are received for which a Supplier has failed to provide sufficlent detail
to determine whether they are derived from purchases made by Member or a Covered Facility; lii) a Supplier
fails to pay Administrative Fees owed to Vizient based on purchases made by Member or a Covered Facility;
or iv) a change in law or regulation occurs which Vizient reasonably believes prohibits the sharing of such
Administrative Fees with its members.

This is a limited time offer which may expire if an executed SOW is not delivered to Vizient within 80 days of January 20, 2023.
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v08.20)
https:/ivizientinc.lightning.force.com/flightning/r/Opportunity/006250000131N6AQAUview

GPO: 1015

Deleted: Watsonville Community Hospltal
Deleted: Pajaro Health District

Deleted: 13,865,000 |
Deleted: $13,865,000 |
Deleted: 13,865,000



Pajaro Health Care District Hospital Corporation d/b/a Watsonville Community
Hospital—- Group Purchasing Program
(MID# 2624064)

5.6 Term Expiration. Following the expiration of the Temn, Vizient will pay Member Fee Share for purchases i)
made prior to the Term expiration date; and ii) reported to Vizient by a Supplier within 90 days of the Tem
expiration date. For purposes of clarification, Vizient will have no obligation to pay Fee Share for any
purchases made by Member following the expiration of the Term or reported by a Supplier more than 90 days
after the expiration of the Term. An early termination of this SOW, for any reason, will terminate Vizient's
obligation to pay any Fee Share to Member after the effective date of such termination.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this SOW to be executed by their duly authorized representatives
as of the Effective Date.

Pajaro Health Care District Hospital Corporation
A/b/a Watsonville Community Hospital,

Vizient, Inc.

By: By:

Printed Name: Printed Name:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Please sign, scan, and email fo executedagreements@vizientinc.com. Vizient will provide a fully executed
electronic copy to Member.

Page 5

This Is a limited time offer which may expire if an executed SOW is not delivered to Vizient within 90 days of January 20, 2023,
This information is proprietary and highly confidential. (v08.20)
https:/ivizientinc.lightning.force.com/lightning/r/Opportunity/0062S0000131NSAQAUview

GPO: 1015

Deleted: Wats

llle C unity Hospltal

| Defeted: Pajaro Hesith District

Deleted: Watsonville Community
Hospltal

Deleted: Palaro Health District



Iltem 13D

Hospital Board Memo

From: Steven Salyer, CEO

Subject: Approval of Amended and Restated Bylaws for Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital
Corporation
Meeting Date: January 25, 2023

Recommended Actions

Consider the Approval of the Amended and Restated Bylaws for the Pajaro Valley Health Care District
Hospital Corporation (PVHCDHC”).

Executive Summary

On May 11, 2022, the Hospital Board approved the Bylaws for the PVHCDHC in order to establish the
rules and regulations for the exercise of its powers and duties. The Bylaws were approved before the
transition of the Hospital to ownership by the Pajaro Valley Health Care District and operation by
PVHCDHC which occurred on August 31, 2022. After 4 months of operation, management is now
recommending that the composition of the committees as set forth in the bylaws be modified
somewhat to ensure a broader spectrum of representation on the committees. The committees will
include board members, executives, directors, physicians and front line employees. In addition, since the
entire board has responsibility for credentialing, the Board Credentialing Committee was removed as
was the Audit Committee whose tasks will instead be performed on an ad hoc basis as needed. The
Amended and Restated Bylaws will need final approval by the District, as the sole member of PVHCDHC.

Background/Analysis

The Hospital is operated by a nonprofit corporation which is governed by a set of bylaws which sets
forth the responsibilities of the Board of Directors, the conduct of business, selection of officers, the
establishment and composition of committees and a number of other topics. The Bylaws are largely
based on those used by similar organizations that have a similar governance structure. The District, as
the sole member of the nonprofit, has the right of final approval of any changes to the Bylaws. This
document as presented could act as the final version of the Amended and Restated Bylaws if it meets
with the Board’s approval, or it could be subject to revision after discussion and direction to staff.
Currently, staff recommends that the Board consider adoption of the attached Amended and Restated
Bylaws. Once approved by the PVHCDHC Board, the Bylaws will need final approval by the District, as
the sole member of PVHCDHC.

Financial Impact
There is no financial impact to the Hospital associated with the adoption of the Amended and Restated
Bylaws.

Attachment:

A. Redline of Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital
Corporation



Item 13D

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF

Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

ARTICLE I
NAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

1.1. Name. The name of the Corporation shall be as listed in the Articles of
Incorporation, namely, Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation (“PVHCDH”), a
nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the laws of the State of California.

1.2, Principal Office and Place of Business. PVHCDH shall have and continuously
maintain a registered office in Santa Cruz County and may have other offices within the State of
California, as the Board may from time to time determine.

ARTICLE II
PURPOSES

PVHCDH was formed for the purposes set forth in its Articles of Incorporation. The
property of PVHCDH is irrevocably dedicated to public, charitable, educational and hospital
purposes which meet the requirements of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
Sections 23701 and 214 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

ARTICLE IIT
MEMBERSHIP

3.1. Member. There shall be one member of PVHCDH who shall be the Pajaro Valley
Health Care District, a political subdivision of the State of California (the “Member”). The
Member, and only the Member, shall be entitled to exercise fully all rights and privileges of
members of nonprofit corporations under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
Law, and all other applicable laws. The rights and powers of the Member shall also include,
without limitation, the following: the limitation on liabilities described in Section 3.3 of these
Bylaws; the right to dissolve PVHCDH upon a majority vote in favor of dissolution; and the
exercise of all of the rights set forth in Article X and XI of these Bylaws. The Member may not
be expelled or suspended as the Member without its consent. Any reference in these Bylaws to
the “member,” “Member” or any similar such reference, shall mean the Pajaro Valley Health Care
District, a political subdivision of the State of California.

38182.00002\40967726.1



3.2 Exercise of Membership Rights. The Member shall exercise its membership rights
through its own Board of Directors. Subject to the provisions of the Member’s own bylaws, and
except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors of the Member may, by
resolution, authorize a person or committee of persons to exercise its vote on any matter to come
before the membership of PVHCDH. In addition, the Member may exercise its membership rights
at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Member. The functions required
by law or by these Bylaws to be performed at the annual membership meeting or any regular or
special meeting of the members of PVHCDH may be performed at any regular or special meeting
of the Member’s own Board of Directors.

3.3. Liabilities and Assessments. The Member shall not be liable for the debts of
PVHCDH. The Board of PVHCDH shall have no power to levy and collect assessments on the
Member. The provisions of this paragraph cannot be amended in any manner.

ARTICLEIV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.1. Responsibility. Except as otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation or
by these Bylaws, the management of the affairs of PVHCDH shall be vested in a Board of Directors
(the “Board”) composed of the persons described in Section 4.2 of these Bylaws (the “Directors”
and each a “Director”). Specifically, the Board of Directors shall be empowered as follows:

(a) To control and be responsible for the overall governance of Watsonville
Community Hospital, including the provision of management and planning.

(b)  To implement Compliance Program oversight consistent with Watsonville
Community Hospital wide compliance programs and procedures, including, responsibility for an
effective Compliance Program and adoption of related policies, review of routine and special
Compliance reports on a regular basis, appropriate delegation of implementation to senior
management, and Board training on Compliance Program oversight and implementation.

(c) To appoint a Chief Executive Officer and to define the powers and duties
of such appointee, and to delegate to such person overall responsibility for operations of the
Watsonville Community Hospital, and affiliated entities, as specified herein and consistent with
Board of Directors' Policies.

(d)  To determine policies and approve procedures for the overall operation and
affairs of Watsonville Community Hospital and its facilities according to the best interests of the
public health and to assure the maintenance of quality patient care.

(e) To evaluate the performance of Watsonville Community Hospital in
relation to its vision, mission and goals.

38182.00002\40967726.1



® To provide for coordination and integration among Watsonville Community
Hospital’s leaders to establish policy, maintain quality care and patient safety, and provide for
necessary resources.

(8 To be ultimately accountable for the safety and quality of care, treatment
and services at Watsonville Community Hospital.

(h) To review and approve annual operating and multi-year capital budgets.

@) To assure through implementation of appropriate processes that all
individuals who provide patient care services, but who are not subject to the Medical Staff privilege
delineation process, are competent to provide such services, and receive reports of quality
assurance information regarding competency of care providers not subject to the privilege
delineation process.

) To oversee the Medical Staff and the quality of professional services as
described in Article VII and Article VIII of these Bylaws.

(k)  To establish, maintain and support, through the Chief Executive Officer and
the Medical Staff and its designated committees, a comprehensive, hospital-wide program for
quality assessment and improvement, to receive reports of performance improvement information
on a regular basis from the Medical Staff, and to assure that all aspects of the program are
performed appropriately and that administrative assistance is available to the Medical Staff,

()] To oversee programs for continuing medical education for Medical Staff
members, and appropriate in-service education programs for hospital employees, for the purpose
of maintaining and improving clinical and employee performance.

(m) To make recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer regarding the
kinds and quality of service to be made available at Watsonville Community Hospital.

(n) To review and consult with the Chief Executive Officer concerning the
long-range plan for Watsonville Community Hospital.

(o)  To consult directly with the Chief of Staff or his/her designee, or through a
subcommittee by the Board to include the Chief of Staff, on no less than two occasions per year,
on matters including but not limited to: the scope and complexity of hospital services offered,
specific patient populations served by Watsonville Community Hospital and any issues of patient
safety and quality of care; promptly addressing any urgent request for consultation presented by
the Chief of Staff or his/her designee.

) To assist in the accreditation process, including participation in the
summation conference, and assist in maintaining compliance with current accreditation standards

-3-
38182.00002\40967726.1



set by The Joint Commission, in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer and the Medical
Staff.

(@  Toassistthe Chief Executive Officer in establishing medical record policies
respecting composition, retention, confidentiality and other aspects of recordkeeping, maintaining
confidentiality with respect to the records and affairs of Watsonville Community Hospital, except
as disclosure is authorized or required by law.

§9) To approve bylaws for Watsonville Community Hospital auxiliary
organizations or for any other similar organizations.

(s) To conduct an annual evaluation of its own activities and performance and
an annual evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer and to implement programs to improve such
activities and performance.

) To perform any other functions designated in these Bylaws but not
specifically referred to in this Section and to do any and all other act and things necessary to carry
out the provisions of these Bylaws or of the provisions of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law.

All powers of the Board of Directors, which are not otherwise restricted by law, agreement, or
herein, may be delegated by an employment agreement, policies, and by direction of the Board to
the Chief Executive Officer or to others employed or engaged by or with responsibilities to
PVHCDH, to be exercised in accordance with that delegation

4.2. Number, Designation, Term, Removal of Directors. The number of Directors shall
be five (5) and shall be comprised of the five (5) publicly elected Directors of the Board of the
Member. Directors who no -longer serve on the Member’s Board of Directors shall be
automatically removed as Directors of PVHCDH.

4.3, Voting Rights. Each Director shall be entitled to one vote on all matters before
the Board. There shall be no voting by proxy.

44. Organizational Meeting. As soon as reasonably possible after each January 1, the
Board of Directors shall meet for the purposes of organizing the Board, the election of officers,
and the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. The initial Board of
Directors shall meet for such purposes as soon as reasonably possible after such Board is first
constituted.

4.5. Regular Meetings. The Board shall hold meetings at least monthly at such time
and place as the Board shall from time to time determine.

38182.00002\40967726.1



4.6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board for any purpose or purposes shall
be called by the Secretary upon the request of the Chair, the Chief Executive Officer or any two

(2) Directors.

4.7. Notice and Conduct of Meetings: Brown Act. Notice of meetings and meeting
agendas shall be in conformance with the California Ralph M. Brown Act, and meetings of the
Board shall be conducted consistent with the Brown Act.

48.  Quorum. A majority of the members of the Board then serving shall constitute a
quorum at any meeting of the Board provided that the minimum number of members of the Board
which may constitute a quorum shall be three (3). The act of a majority of the voting power present
at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be considered the act of the Board.

4.9. Place. The Board shall hold its meetings at the principal office of the Member, or
such other place as the Chair or the Directors requesting the meeting may designate.

4.10.  Telephonic Meetings. Members of the Board may participate in a meeting through
use of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment, consistent with Brown Act
requirements.

4.11. Interested Directors. Not more than forty-nine percent (49%) of the persons
serving on the Board at any time may be interested persons. An “interested person” is (i) any
person being compensated, directly or indirectly, by PVHCDH for services rendered to it within
the previous twelve (12) months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent
contractor, or otherwise (excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a director for serving in
such capacity); and (ii) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-
law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. However, any violation of the provisions
of this paragraph shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any transaction entered into by
PVHCDH.

4.12.  Conflict of Interest Policy. The Board shall develop and adhere to a conflict of
interest policy that incorporates the provisions of Section 5233 of the California Nonprofit
Corporation Law. The initial Conflicts Policy shall be that adopted by the Member prior to
adoption of these Bylaws. PVHCDH’s Conflicts Policy shall be consistent with laws and
regulations applicable to California special districts.

4.13.  Self-Dealing. Prior to conducting a business session at a meeting of the Board,
Board members shall disclose and discuss their individual conflicts or potential conflicts and that
of other members of the Board. Actual conflicts shall be subject to resolution pursuant to the
Conflicts Policy, applicable federal and state non-profit corporation laws and conflict of interest
laws related to public agencies including, but not limited to, Gov’t Code 1090 and the Political
Reform Act. In the exercise of voting rights by members of the Board, no individual shall vote on
any issue, motion or resolution which directly or indirectly inures to his or her benefit financially

-5.
38182.00002\40967726.1



or with respect to which he or she has any other conflict of interest, except that such individual
may be counted in order to qualify a quorum and, except as the Board may otherwise direct, may
participate in the discussion of such an issue, motion or resolution if he or she first discloses the
nature of his or her interest and such discussion is allowed under conflict of interest laws applicable
to public agencies. Board members shall adhere to the Conflict of Interest Policy enacted pursuant
to section 4.12 of these Bylaws.

4.14.  Access to Board Records and Reports. Upon request, officers of the Member shall
have access to Watsonville Community Hospital documents for review (but not possession) that
have been reviewed by the Board of Directors. Such review shall be subject to the officer
executing an agreement to maintain the confidentiality (no disclosure beyond officers and Board
members of the Member) of information reviewed. Documents that are protected by legal
privileges and confidentiality (e.g., personnel, peer review, legal, vendor contractual
confidentiality), those containing pending competitive business transaction information, and
physician agreements, shall not be subject to review. Subject to the execution of an agreement to
maintain confidentiality, Board member and Board selected candidate conflict disclosure filings
shall be available for review at PVHCDHs offices only to the chief executive or designated legal
counsel of the Member upon request.

4.15. Bylaws Review. Consistent with regulatory and industry standards, the Board
shall periodically conduct a review of these Bylaws in order to update and improve them. At least
every two (2) years, commencing in January 2024, the Board shall seek the input of the Member
in connection with such a review.

ARTICLEV
OFFICERS

5.1. Officers of this Corporation. The officers of PVHCDH shall be a Chair, a Vice
Chair, a Chief Executive Officer, a Secretary, and a Treasurer (which office shall be separate from
PVHCDH’s Chief Financial Officer). No officer may hold more than one office at a time, with
the exception of cases in which there is a vacancy in the office due to death, resignation, removal,
disqualification or otherwise of a director pursuant to Section 4.2 above in which case more than
one office may be held by a single director until the vacancy on the Member Board had been filled.

5.2. Officers Elected by the Board. The Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary
shall be elected annually by the Board at its organizational meeting. Nominations shall be
submitted in advance of the selection by a nominating committee appointed by the Board. Each
officer elected by the Board shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board and until his or her
successor shall be elected and qualified to serve. A vacancy in any office because of death,
resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise of a director, may be filled by the Board for the
unexpired term at any meeting of the Board.

38182.00002\40967726.1



5.3. Resignation or Removal. Any officer of the Board may resign at any time or be
removed by the vote of the Board.

54. Vacancies in Office. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular
appointments.

5.5. Chair. The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Unless
the signature of the Chief Executive Officer is required by law, the Chair of the Board shall possess
the same power as the Chief Executive Officer to sign all certificates, contracts, or other
instruments of PVHCDH when he or she is so authorized by the Board. The Chair of the Board
shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board from
time to time. The Chair of the Board shall serve as the Board’s liaison to the Chief Executive
Officer.

5.6. Vice Chair. In the absence of the Chair of the Board or in the event of the Chair's
disability, inability, or refusal to act, the Vice Chair of the Board shall perform all of the duties of
the Chair and in so acting shall have all of the powers of the Chair. The Vice Chair shall have
such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the
Board or by the Chair.

5.7. Chief Executive Officer.

(a) Appointment and Removal. The Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH shall
be engaged by the Board and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board, which may terminate the
services of the Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH subject to any employment agreement.

(b)  Responsibilities and Authority. The Chief Executive Officer shall be the
general manager, administrator and Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH. The Chief Executive
Officer shall be given the necessary authority and responsibility to operate PVHCDH in all of its
activities, including without limitation, quality of services, safety matters, cost effectiveness and
economic performance, subject to the following: with respect to safety and quality of care,
treatment and services, policy development, program planning, employee and community
relations, the Chief Executive Officer shall be subject to such policies as may be adopted and such
orders as may be issued by the Board of PVHCDH or by any of its committees to which the Board
has delegated the power for such action; with respect to program execution and overall
management performance, the Chief Executive Officer shall be subject to the authority of and shall
report to the Board. The Chief Executive Officer shall act as the duly authorized representative of
the Board of PVHCDH in all matters in which the Board has not formally designated some other
person to so act.

5.8. Treasurer. The Treasurer of PVHCDH shall keep and maintain or cause to be kept
and maintained adequate and correct account of the properties and business transactions of

-7-
38182.00002\40967726.1



PVHCDH, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and losses.
The books of account shall at all times be open to inspection by any Board member. The Treasurer
shall be charged with safeguarding the assets of PVHCDH and he or she shall sign financial
documents on behalf of PVHCDH in accordance with the established policies of PVHCDH. He
or she shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the
Board from time-to-time. The Treasurer may fulfill these responsibilities and perform his or her
duties through appropriate delegation, with Board oversight, to individuals or firms charged with
the financial management of PVHCDH.

5.9. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a book of minutes at the
principal office or at such other place as the Board may order of all meetings of the Board with the
time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and if special how authorized, the notice
thereof given, the names of those present at the Board meetings, and the proceedings thereof. The
Secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of all the meetings of the Board required by these
Bylaws or by law to be given, and the Secretary shall keep the seal of PVHCDH in safe custody
and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board
from time to time.

ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES

6.1. Establishment of Committees. PVHCDH shall have the standing committees set
forth in Section 6.5 of these Bylaws, and such other standing committees or special committees as
may be established by the Board from time to time in accordance with these Bylaws.

6.2. Composition of Committees. Unless otherwise stated, standing committees shall
not be limited to members of the Board, but consistent with California Nonprofit Corporation Law
shall include at least two (2) members of the Board. Special committees and any subcommittees
of any standing committee or special committee that may be established from time to time shall
not be limited to members of the Board but may, by direction of the Board, include any number of
persons the majority of whom need not be Directors. The Chair of the Board shall recommend
committee members and Chairs of the committees to the Board, subject to the approval of the
Board. The Board shall create committees as deemed necessary. Member’s interests in
appointment to certain committees shall be considered by the Chair. The Board may appoint
alternate members of any committee who shall act on behalf of any committee member who is
absent from a committee meeting. The Board or the committee may select other persons, whether
or not members of the Board, to attend meetings of the committee and to participate in the
discussion and activities of the committee; provided, however, that such additional persons
attending the committee meeting shall not be entitled to vote and shall participate only at the
discretion of the committee.

38182.00002\40967726.1



6.3. Powers: Restrictions and Limitations.

(a) Standing Committees. Subject to the duty of the Board to exercise ultimate
direction over the activities and affairs of PVHCDH, the Board may delegate to any standing
committee the power, subject to applicable law, to manage or direct any activity of PVHCDH. In
addition to powers so delegated and the general duties of the standing committees described in the
provisions of these Bylaws, the standing committees shall undertake duties or specific tasks
assigned by the Board, or the Chair of the Board of Directors, and shall consider matters requested
by other committees or the Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH.

b) Special Committees. The Board may authorize any special committee to
carry out certain specified functions or responsibilities, or to provide such advice and
recommendation as the Board shall require, but no special committee shall have the authority to
determine PVHCDH policy or otherwise exercise any powers of the Board with respect to the
business and affairs of the PVHCDH. Internal conflicts concerning Medical Staff affairs shall be
referred to a special committee created and appointed by the Chair of the Board on an as needed
basis for resolution.

(c) Subcommittees. The Board or any standing or special committee may
authorize any subcommittee to carry out certain specified functions or responsibilities, or to
provide such advice and recommendation as the Board or any such committee shall require, but
no subcommittee shall have the authority to determine PVHCDH policy or otherwise exercise any
powers of the Board with respect to the business and affairs of PVHCDH.

6.4. Meetings and Actions of Committees.

(a) Meetings. Meetings and actions of any standing committee, special
committee or subcommittee shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the
provisions of these Bylaws concerning meetings of the Board, including, but not limited to Section
4.7, with such changes in the content of these Bylaws as are necessary to substitute the committee
or subcommittee and its members for the Board and its members, except a quorum of a committee
shall be a majority of the voting members of the committee. The time for regular meetings of any
committee or subcommittee may be determined either by direction of the Board or by direction of
such committee or subcommittee. Special meetings of any committee or subcommittee may also
be called by direction of the Board. Notice of special meetings of any committee or subcommittee
shall also be given to any and all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend such
meetings, subject to the discretion of the committee or subcommittee. Minutes shall be kept of
meetings of any committees and subcommittees and shall be filed with the corporate records. The
Board may adopt rules for the governing of any committee or subcommittee not inconsistent with
the provisions of these Bylaws.

b) Subcommittee membership. Subject to Board approval, each standing or
special committee may establish such subcommittees as it deems necessary, the members of which

-9-
38182.00002\40967726.1



need not be members of the Board. The Chair of the parent committee shall recommend to the
Board formation of any subcommittee and shall nominate initial membership and the proposed
chair of any new subcommittee to the Board for approval. Thereafter, the Chair of a subcommittee
shall recommend to the Chair of the parent committee annual appointments or reappointments to
the subcommittee, or recommend individuals to fill vacancies. The Chair of the parent committee
shall have discretion to accept or reject such recommendations, and shall submit nominations for
annual subcommittee membership (including appointment of the subcommittee chair), or
nominations to fill vacancies on subcommittees, to the Board of Directors for approval.

6.5.  Establishment of Standing Committees. Standing Committees of the Board of
Directors as established and appointed pursuant to these Bylaws shall be as follows:

(a) Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall consist of two (2) Board
members, with up to ten (10) persons, including, the Board Treasurer, two (2) senior executives;
two (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2) physicians with medical staff privileges at
Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital front line staff. The Finance Committee
shall oversee all financial matters for PVHCDH including operating and capital budgets,
borrowings and capital planning, audits, material contracts and leases, business plan development
and implementation, and facilities and equipment.

(b) Strategic Planning and Marketing Committee. The Strategic Planning and
Marketing Committee shall consist of two (2) Board members, with up to ten (10) persons
including two (2) senior executives; two (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2) physicians
with medical staff privileges at Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital front line
staff. The Strategic Planning and Marketing Committee shall oversee marketing and strategic
planning, integration of PVHCDH operations and facilities, service changes or adjustments,
physician development, facility planning, and strategic alliances and ventures. The Committee
shall oversee development and implementation of PVHCDH’s community benefit programs and
shall seek input into its work from the Member. The Committee shall also facilitate coordination
of its community benefit programs with similar programs undertaken by the Member.

(c) Employee Engagement Committee. The Employee Engagement
Committee shall consist of two (2) Board members, with up to ten (10) persons, including, two (2)

senior executives; two (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2) physicians with medical staff
privileges at Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital front line staff. The Employee
Engagement Committee shall consider human resource issues and policies as warranted and shall
review and recommend for Board approval employee compensation, pension and benefits
programs (other than executive officer level).

(d) Quality and Patient Safety Committee. The Quality and Patient Safety
Committee shall consist of two (2) Board members with up to ten (10) persons, including, two (2)
senior executives; two (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2) physicians with medical staff

-10 -
38182.00002\40967726.1



privileges at Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital front line staff. The
Committee will be assisted in its work by the Chief Executive Officer, the CNO (Chief Nursing
Officer), the Safety Officer, and the Medical Staff as needed and requested by the Committee. The
Quality and Patient Safety Committee shall oversee effective functioning of activities related to:
provision of quality patient care, patient and staff safety, performance improvement, risk
management, regulatory and accreditation standards, and strategic direction for quality
expenditures. The Quality and Patient Safety Committee shall forward Quality Reports and
recommendations to the Board of Directors. This Committee shall also be responsible for
developing and implementing the Board’s annual action plan for resolution of safety and quality
issues. In addition, the Committee shall:

(1)  Analyze data regarding safety and quality of care, treatment and
services and establish priorities for performance improvement.

(2)  Oversee the Medical Staff’s fulfillment of its responsibilities in
accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, applicable law and regulation, and accreditation
standards.

(3)  Ensure that recommendations from the Medical Executive
Committee and Medical Staff are made in accordance with the standards and requirements of the
Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations with regard to:

(i) completed applications for initial staff appointment, initial
staff category assignment, initial department/divisional affiliation, membership prerogatives and
initial clinical privileges;

(i)  completed applications for reappointment of medical staff,
staff category, clinical privileges;

(iii))  establishment of categories of Allied Health Professionals
permitted to practice at Watsonville Community Hospital, the appointment and reappointment of
Allied Health Professionals and privileges granted to Allied Health Professionals.

(4)  Provide a system for resolving conflicts that could adversely affect
safety or quality of care among individuals working within the hospital environment.

(5) Ensure that adequate resources are allocated for maintaining safety
and quality care, treatment and services.

(6) Analyze findings and recommendations from the Watsonville
Community Hospital’s administrative review and evaluation activities, including system or
process failures and actions taken to improve safety, both proactively and in response to actual
occurrences.

-11-
38182.00002\40967726.1



(7)  Assess the effectiveness and results of the quality review, utilization
review, performance improvement, and risk management programs.

®) Perform such other duties conceming safety and quality of care
matters as may be necessary.

6.6. AdHoc Committees. Adhoc committees may be appointed by the Chair with the
approval of the Board of Directors for special limited projects for such specific tasks as
circumstances warrant e.g. ad hoc audit committee. Ad hoc committees shall comply with the
Brown Act and no ad hoc committee so appointed shall have any power or authority to commit
the Board of Directors or Corporation in any manner, but may make recommendations to the
Board of Directors.

6.7.  Vacancies. Vacancies in any committee shall be filled for the unexpired portion
of the term in the same manner as provided in the case of original appointment.

6.8.  Expenditures. Except as expressly delegated, any expenditure of corporate funds
by a committee or any commitment by a committee to expend corporate funds shall require prior
approval of the Board.

ARTICLE vII
CREDENTIALED PRACTITIONERS

7.1.  Medical Staff Appointments and Clinical Privileges

(2) The Board shall appoint a Medical Staff and see that they are organized
into a responsible administrative unit and adopt such bylaws and rules and regulations for
government of their practice in Watsonville Community Hospital as the Board deems to be to
the greatest benefit of patients within Watsonville Community Hospital. In the case of the
individual patients, those appointed to the Medical Staff shall have full authority and
responsibility for the care of patients subject only to such limitations as the Board may
formally impose and to the bylaws and rules and regulations for the Medical Staff as adopted
by the Board. The Medical Staff shall adhere to the highest ethical principles of the medical
profession.

(b)  All applications for appointment to the Medical Staff shall be in writing
and addressed to the Medical Staff Office in such form as determined by Watsonville
Community Hospital and more specifically described in the Medical Staff Bylaws. The
application shall be complete and with required information relating to education, licensure,
practice, previous hospital experience, professional liability coverage and any history relative
to licensure, malpractice experience and/or hospital privileges.

-12 -
38182.00002\40967726.1



(c)  Atits next regular meeting after receipt of a completed application and
a recommendation from the Medical Staff concerning an applicant for Medical Staff
appointment, the Board shall act in the matter unless further investigation requires that action
be postponed to a later meeting, as provided in the following paragraph.

(d) At any time in its consideration of such recommendation, the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, defer final determination by referring the matter to a committee
of its choice for further consideration (any such referral shall state the reasons therefor, shall
set a time limit within which a subsequent recommendation to the Board shall be made, and
may include a directive that an additional meeting be conducted to clarify issues which are in
doubt). At its next regular meeting after receipt of such subsequent recommendation, the
Board shall act in the matter.

(e)  Appointments to the Medical Staff shall not exceed two (2) years,
renewable by the Board before the end of the appointment upon formal application.

® The Board shall delegate to the Medical Staff the responsibility and
authority to investigate and evaluate all matters relating to Medical Staff and AHP
membership status, clinical privileges and corrective action, and shall require that the Medical
Staff adopt and forward to it specific written recommendations with appropriate supporting
documentation that will allow the Board to take informed action. Such delegation, however,
does not relieve the Board of its responsibilities in appointing members of the Medical Staff
and overseeing the appointment and delineation of functions, responsibilities and prerogatives
of AHPs.

(g)  Final action on all Medical Staff matters shall be taken by the Board
after considering the Medical Staff recommendation, except that the Board shall act on its
own initiative if the Medical Staff fails to adopt and submit recommendations within the time
periods required by the Medical Staff Bylaws. Board action without a staff recommendation
shall be based on the same kind of documented investigation and evaluation of current ability,
Judgment and character as is required for Medical Staff recommendations.

(b)  The Chief Executive Officer shall make available to each applicant for
staff membership a copy of the Medical Staff Bylaws, including the Medical Staff Rules and
Regulations and Fair Hearing Plan. The applicant shall sign a statement on the application
form declaring that he/she has received and reviewed those documents and that he/she
specifically agrees:

(1)  to obligate himself/herself, as an appointee to the Medical Staff, to
provide continuous care and supervision as needed to all hospital patients for whom he/she has
responsibility;

-13 -
38182.00002\40967726.1



(2)  to abide by all such bylaws, policies and directives of Watsonville
Community Hospital and its Medical Staff as shall be in force during the time he/she is appointed
to the Medical Staff of Watsonville Community Hospital; and

(3)  to accept committee assignments and such other duties and
responsibilities as shall be assigned to him/her by the Board and the Medical Staff,

No appointment or reappointment shall take effect until such a statement has been signedby the
individual concerned.

@) The terms and conditions of membership status and clinical privileges
and the procedure to be followed in acting on same, shall be as specified in the Medical Staff
Bylaws or as more specifically defined in the notice of individual appointment.

G4) The Board shall make final decisions on all requests for corrective
action, and shall otherwise participate in the corrective action process as described in the
Medical Staff Bylaws.

(k)  No aspect of membership status nor specific clinical privileges shall be
limited or denied to a practitioner on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin or disability,
or on the basis of any other criterion unrelated to quality patient care at Watsonville
Community Hospital, to professional qualifications, to the hospital's purposes, needs and
capabilities, or to community needs. Members of the Medical Staff who also have hospital
administrative responsibilities shall be required to meet the same requirements and
qualifications for membership on the Medical Staff as do practitioners who do not have an
administrative relationship to Watsonville Community Hospital.

@ All administrative relationships with members of the Medical Staff and
others who are not members of the Medical Staff shall be reduced to written agreement
between the individual practitioner and Watsonville Community Hospital. These
administrative relationships may be terminated by the CEO following the same procedures
utilized for other hospital employees unless the written agreement provides another method
of termination. Should the written agreement provision for termination conflict with the
general procedures utilized for other employees, the written agreement shall control.

7.2. Medical Staff Governance

(2) The Board shall adopt bylaws and rules and regulations establishing the
organization and government of the Medical Staff. The bylaws and rules and regulations shall
be developed by the Medical Staff, but shall be effective only upon approval by the Board.
The power of the Board to adopt or amend Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations
shall be conditioned upon the Medical Staff’s failure to keep current, update or make

-14-
38182.00002\40967726.1



necessary modifications to its bylaws in a manner that will allow for the maximum possible
achievement of the purposes and objectives of the Medical Staff.

(b)  The Board retains the right to rescind any authority or procedures
delegated to the Medical Staff, and to recommend amendment or replacement of the Medical
Staff Bylaws as necessary for the operation of Watsonville Community Hospital.

() The Medical Staff shall review and revise all Medical Staff Rules and
Regulations, and, as applicable, departmental policies and procedures, when warranted,
provided that such review shall occur at least every two (2) years. The Medical Staff shall
recommend changes in such policies and procedures for approval by the Board.

7.3.  Categories of Staff Membership

The Medical Staff shall be organized into categories as outlined in the Medical Staff Bylaws. The
prerogatives and responsibilities of each staff category shall be outlined in the Medical Staff
Bylaws.

7.4.  Allied Health Professionals (“AHP”)

(2) The Board may approve specific clinical privileges for individuals who
are not part of the Medical Staff, but who may render patient care services within Watsonville
Community Hospital setting.

(b)  Each member of the AHP shall be assigned and made accountable to the
appropriate clinical section of the Medical Staff, although such assignment will not constitute
membership on the Medical Staff.

(c)  All applications for appointment to AHP status shall be in writing and
addressed to the Chief Executive Officer on such forms as determined by Watsonville
Community Hospital. The application shall be processed in the same manner as Medical Staff
applications.

(d)  The terms and conditions of AHP status, and of the exercise of clinical
privileges, shall be as specified in the appropriate section of Medical Staff Bylaws or as more
specifically defined in the notice of individual appointment. AHPs shall not be entitled to the
procedures set forth in the Fair Hearing Plan. They shall, however, be entitled to an
appearance before a Medical Staff committee designated within the Medical Staff Bylaws, as
well as a written appeal to the Board in the event of an adverse action.

-15-
38182.0000240967726.1



ARTICLE VIII
MEDICAL CARE EVALUATION

8.1.  Board Responsibility for the Quality of Professional Services

After considering the recommendations of the Medical Staff and the other health care professionals
providing patient care services, the Board shall implement specific review and evaluation activities
to assess, preserve and improve the overall quality and efficiency of patient care in Watsonville
Community Hospital. The Board, through the Chief Executive Officer, shall provide whatever
administrative assistance is reasonably necessary to support and facilitate activities contributing to
continuous quality assessment and improvement.

8.2. Medical Records

In order to facilitate the Medical Staff’s review and appraisal of the quality and efficiency of the
medical care rendered in Watsonville Community Hospital, the Board will assure that the Medical
Staff will have access to the services of the Medical Records Department and to any other
administrative or technical assistance deemed appropriate.

8.3.  Professional Accountability to the Board

The Medical Staff and the other health care professional staff providing patient care services shall
conduct, and be accountable to the Board for conducting, activities that contribute to the
preservation and improvement of the quality and efficiency of patient care provided in Watsonville
Community Hospital. These activities shall include these functions:

(a)  Providing effective mechanisms to monitor and evaluate the quality of
patient care and the clinical performance of individuals with delineated clinical privileges
within Watsonville Community Hospital,

(b)  Ongoing review, evaluation and monitoring of patient care practices
through a systematic process of overall quality assessment and improvement;

(¢)  Delineation of clinical privileges for Medical Staff members,
commensurate with individual credentials and demonstrated ability and judgment, and
assignment of patient care responsibilities to other health care professionals consistent with
individual qualification and demonstrated ability;

(d)  Establishing a process designed to assure that all individuals responsible
for the assessment, treatment, or care of patients are competent in the following, as appropriate
to the ages of the patients served:

-16 -
38182.00002\40967726.1



(1)  the ability to obtain information and interpret information in terms
of patient needs;

(2) a knowledge of cognitive, physical and emotional growth and
development in theparticular age group treated; and

3) an understanding of the range of treatment needed by the patients.

(e) Providing continuing professional education, shaped primarily by the needs
identified through the review and evaluation activities;

) Reviewing utilization of the hospital's resources to provide for their
allocation to patients in need of them;

(2)  Reviewing the competency of care providers who are not subject to the
Medical Staff privilege delineation process; and reporting to the governing body of findings with
regardto such care providers;

(h)  Establishing a process to support the efficient flow of patients, such as a
plan concerning the care of admitted patients who are in temporary bed locations; and

1) Such other measures as the Board may, after receiving and considering the
advice of the Medical Staff, the other professional services, and the CEO, deem necessary for the
preservation and improvement of the quality and efficiency of patient care.

8.4. Documentation

The Board shall consider and act upon the findings and recommendations from the required
review, evaluation, and monitoring activities. All findings and recommendations shall be in
writing, signed by the persons responsible for conducting the review activities, and supported and
accompanied by documentation upon which the Board can take informed action.

ARTICLE IX
THE VOLUNTEER SERVICES

9.1.  Organization. Auxiliary and other hospital service organizations may be formed
in Watsonville Community Hospital. The formation, constitution, bylaws, and operating
procedure of such organizations shall be subject to approval and control by the Board of Directors.
Each such organization shall cooperate with the Board and Chief Executive Officer in the best
interests of Watsonville Community Hospital and its patients. Periodic and annual reports shall
be made to the Board covering its activities by each organization.

-17-
38182.00002\40967726.1



9.2.  Funds and Fund Raising. No volunteer service organization may undertake any
fund raising or other project in the name of or for the benefit of Watsonville Community Hospital
which might impose a liability on Watsonville Community Hospital or any affiliated entity
without prior approval of the Board, nor undertake any activity on Watsonville Community
Hospital premises without the approval of the Chief Executive Officer.

Funds collected or otherwise acquired on behalf of Watsonville Community Hospital or by
any activities purporting to assist Watsonville Community Hospital or its patients, shall be reported
to and be subject to control by the Board. No funds, other than operating funds, shall be disbursed
without prior approval of the Board.

ARTICLE X
RESERVED HOSPITAL BOARD AUTHORITY

No approvals granted and no assignment, referral, or delegation of authority by the Board
of Directors to hospital management, the Medical Staff, volunteer service organizations, or anyone
else shall preclude the Board from exercising the authority required to meet its responsibility for
the conduct of Watsonville Community Hospital. The Board retains the right to rescind any such
approval or delegation.

ARTICLE XI
ACTIONS REQUIRING MEMBER APPROVAL

11.1. Approval or Action Requirement. Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to
the contrary, neither the Board nor any officer or employee of PVHCDH may take any of the
following actions, or approve a subsidiary or an affiliate taking any of the following actions,
without the prior approval of the Member:

(a) Any merger, consolidation, reorganization, or dissolution of PVHCDH that
would change the Member’s status as sole member or owner of the assets operated by PVHCDH.

(b)  Any transfer by sale, lease, debt or encumbrance, or other disposition, of
any of the assets of PVHCDH, real or personal, outside the ordinary course of Watsonville
Community Hospital business.

(c) Any transaction that, on a proforma basis, would cause PVHCDH to be in
violation of any financial loan or bond covenant, as they exist at the time of the transaction, or that
would cause PVHCDH’s Debt to Capitalization Ratio to exceed 50%.

(d)  Any Watsonville Community Hospital campus development plan that
restricts future land use options or requires regulatory changes to land use permits/designations.

-18 -
38182.00002\40967726.1



(e) Any transaction that causes or is anticipated to cause a downgrade in
Member or PVHCDH'S bond rating by a standard rating agency.

® Amendment or restatement of the Articles of Incorporation.
(g8 Amendment or restatement of these Bylaws.

(h)  Any changes to the Mission Statement of the Watsonville Community
Hospital.

@) Appointment of independent auditors.

11.2. Record of Approval or Disapproval. The Member's approval or disapproval of
matters described in Section 11.1 of these Bylaws shall be recorded in or filed with the minutes
of this Corporation.

ARTICLE XTI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1. Compensation of Board Members. The members of the Board shall receive no
compensation as such, except that they may be reimbursed from time to time for all expenses
incurred on behalf of PVHCDH.

12.2. Indemnification. PVHCDH shall indemnify any Director, officer, employee or
agent of PVHCDH for liability incurred by such person in the exercise of his or her duties with
respect to PVHCDH to the extent permitted by Section 5238 of the California Corporations Code
Or any successor statute.

12.3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of PVHCDH shall end on December 31 of each year.

12.4. Construction and Definitions. Unless the context requires otherwise, the general
provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law
shall govern the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the preceding
sentence, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular number includes
the plural, the plural number includes the singular and the term “person” includes both a legal
entity and a natural person.

ARTICLE XIII
AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may only be amended or restated by the Member.

-19 -
38182.00002\40967726.1



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I certify that I am the Secretary of Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, and that the attached Bylaws of Pajaro Valley
Health Care District Hospital Corporation are the current bylaws of this Corporation adopted by
the Board of Directors of Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation, and approved
by the Member, the Pajaro Valley Health Care District.

Dated: , 2022

[ ], Secretary

38182.00002\40967726.1



Item 13D

OF

Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

ARTICLE I
NAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

1.1. Name. The name of the Corporation shall be as listed in the Articles of
Incorporation, namely, Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation (“PVHCDH”), a
nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the laws of the State of California.

1.2. Principal Office and Place of Business. PVHCDH shall have and continuously
maintain a registered office in Santa Cruz County and may have other offices within the State of
California, as the Board may from time to time determine.

ARTICLE IT
PURPOSES

PVHCDH was formed for the purposes set forth in its Articles of Incorporation. The
property of PVHCDH is irrevocably dedicated to public, charitable, educational and hospital
purposes which meet the requirements of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
Sections 23701 and 214 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

ARTICLE III
MEMBERSHIP

3.1. Member. There shall be one member of PVHCDH who shall be the Pajaro Valley
Health Care District, a political subdivision of the State of California (the “Member”). The
Member, and only the Member, shall be entitled to exercise fully all rights and privileges of
members of nonprofit corporations under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
Law, and all other applicable laws. The rights and powers of the Member shall also include,
without limitation, the following: the limitation on liabilities described in Section 3.3 of these
Bylaws; the right to dissolve PVHCDH upon a majority vote in favor of dissolution; and the
exercise of all of the rights set forth in Article X and XI of these Bylaws. The Member may not
be expelled or suspended as the Member without its consent. Any reference in these Bylaws to
the “member,” “Member” or any similar such reference, shall mean the Pajaro Valley Health Care
District, a political subdivision of the State of California.



3.2 Exercise of Membership Rights. The Member shall exercise its membership rights
through its own Board of Directors. Subject to the provisions of the Member’s own bylaws, and
except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors of the Member may, by
resolution, authorize a person or committee of persons to exercise its vote on any matter to come
before the membership of PVHCDH. In addition, the Member may exercise its membership rights
at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Member. The functions required
by law or by these Bylaws to be performed at the annual membership meeting or any regular or
special meeting of the members of PVHCDH may be performed at any regular or special meeting
of the Member’s own Board of Directors.

3.3. Liabilities and Assessments. The Member shall not be liable for the debts of
PVHCDH. The Board of PVHCDH shall have no power to levy and collect assessments on the
Member. The provisions of this paragraph cannot be amended in any manner.

ARTICLEIV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.1. Responsibility. Except as otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation or
by these Bylaws, the management of the affairs of PVHCDH shall be vested in a Board of Directors
(the “Board”) composed of the persons described in Section 4.2 of these Bylaws (the “Directors”
and each a “Director”). Specifically, the Board of Directors shall be empowered as follows:

(a) To control and be responsible for the overall governance of Watsonville
Community Hospital, including the provision of management and planning.

(b) To implement Compliance Program oversight consistent with Watsonville
Community Hospital wide compliance programs and procedures, including, responsibility for an
effective Compliance Program and adoption of related policies, review of routine and special
Compliance reports on a regular basis, appropriate delegation of implementation to senior
management, and Board training on Compliance Program oversight and implementation.

(c) To appoint a Chief Executive Officer and to define the powers and duties
of such appointee, and to delegate to such person overall responsibility for operations of the
Watsonville Community Hospital, and affiliated entities, as specified herein and consistent with
Board of Directors' Policies.

(d  To determine policies and approve procedures for the overall operation and
affairs of Watsonville Community Hospital and its facilities according to the best interests of the
public health and to assure the maintenance of quality patient care.

(e) To evaluate the performance of Watsonville Community Hospital in
relation to its vision, mission and goals.



® To provide for coordination and integration among Watsonville Community
Hospital’s leaders to establish policy, maintain quality care and patient safety, and provide for
necessary resources.

(g)  To be ultimately accountable for the safety and quality of care, treatment
and services at Watsonville Community Hospital.

(h)  To review and approve annual operating and multi-year capital budgets.

@) To assure through implementation of appropriate processes that all
individuals who provide patient care services, but who are not subject to the Medical Staff privilege
delineation process, are competent to provide such services, and receive reports of quality
assurance information regarding competency of care providers not subject to the privilege
delineation process.

G) To oversee the Medical Staff and the quality of professional services as
described in Article VII and Article VIII of these Bylaws.

k) To establish, maintain and support, through the Chief Executive Officer and
the Medical Staff and its designated committees, a comprehensive, hospital-wide program for
quality assessment and improvement, to receive reports of performance improvement information
on a regular basis from the Medical Staff, and to assure that all aspects of the program are
performed appropriately and that administrative assistance is available to the Medical Staff,

() To oversee programs for continuing medical education for Medical Staff
members, and appropriate in-service education programs for hospital employees, for the purpose
of maintaining and improving clinical and employee performance.

(m) To make recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer regarding the
kinds and quality of service to be made available at Watsonville Community Hospital.

(n) To review and consult with the Chief Executive Officer concerning the
long-range plan for Watsonville Community Hospital.

(0)  To consult directly with the Chief of Staff or his/her designee, or through a
subcommittee by the Board to include the Chief of Staff, on no less than two occasions per year,
on matters including but not limited to: the scope and complexity of hospital services offered,
specific patient populations served by Watsonville Community Hospital and any issues of patient
safety and quality of care; promptly addressing any urgent request for consultation presented by
the Chief of Staff or his/her designee.

(p) To assist in the accreditation process, including participation in the
summation conference, and assist in maintaining compliance with current accreditation standards

-3-



set by The Joint Commission, in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer and the Medical
Staff.

(@)  Toassist the Chief Executive Officer in establishing medical record policies
respecting composition, retention, confidentiality and other aspects of recordkeeping, maintaining
confidentiality with respect to the records and affairs of Watsonville Community Hospital, except
as disclosure is authorized or required by law.

69) To approve bylaws for Watsonville Community Hospital auxiliary
organizations or for any other similar organizations.

(s) To conduct an annual evaluation of its own activities and performance and
an annual evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer and to implement programs to improve such
activities and performance.

) To perform any other functions designated in these Bylaws but not
specifically referred to in this Section and to do any and all other act and things necessary to carry
out the provisions of these Bylaws or of the provisions of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law.

All powers of the Board of Directors, which are not otherwise restricted by law, agreement, or
herein, may be delegated by an employment agreement, policies, and by direction of the Board to
the Chief Executive Officer or to others employed or engaged by or with responsibilities to
PVHCDH, to be exercised in accordance with that delegation

4.2, Number, Designation, Term, Removal of Directors. The number of Directors shall
be five (5) and shall be comprised of the five (5) publicly elected Directors of the Board of the
Member. Directors who no longer serve on the Member’s Board of Directors shall be
automatically removed as Directors of PVHCDH.

4.3, Voting Rights. Each Director shall be entitled to one vote on all matters before
the Board. There shall be no voting by proxy.

44. Organizational Meeting. As soon as reasonably possible after each January 1, the
Board of Directors shall meet for the purposes of organizing the Board, the election of officers,
and the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. The initial Board of
Directors shall meet for such purposes as soon as reasonably possible after such Board is first
constituted.

4.5. Regular Meetings. The Board shall hold meetings at least monthly at such time
and place as the Board shall from time to time determine.



4.6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board for any purpose or purposes shall
be called by the Secretary upon the request of the Chair, the Chief Executive Officer or any two
(2) Directors.

4.7.  Notice and Conduct of Meetings: Brown Act. Notice of meetings and meeting
agendas shall be in conformance with the California Ralph M. Brown Act, and meetings of the
Board shall be conducted consistent with the Brown Act.

4.8. Quorum. A majority of the members of the Board then serving shall constitute a
quorum at any meeting of the Board provided that the minimuym number of members of the Board
which may constitute a quorum shall be three (3). The act of a majority of the voting power present
at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be considered the act of the Board.

49. Place. The Board shall hold its meetings at the principal office of the Member, or
such other place as the Chair or the Directors requesting the meeting may designate.

4.10.  Telephonic Meetings. Members of the Board may participate in a meeting through
use of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment, consistent with Brown Act
requirements.

4.11. Interested Directors. Not more than forty-nine percent (49%) of the persons
serving on the Board at any time may be interested persons. An “interested person” is (i) any
person being compensated, directly or indirectly, by PVHCDH for services rendered to it within
the previous twelve (12) months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent
contractor, or otherwise (excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a director for serving in
such capacity); and (ii) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-
law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. However, any violation of the provisions
of this paragraph shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any transaction entered into by
PVHCDH.

4.12.  Conflict of Interest Policy. The Board shall develop and adhere to a conflict of
interest policy that incorporates the provisions of Section 5233 of the California Nonprofit
Corporation Law. The initial Conflicts Policy shall be that adopted by the Member prior to
adoption of these Bylaws. PVHCDH’s Conflicts Policy shall be consistent with laws and
regulations applicable to California special districts.

4.13.  Self-Dealing. Prior to conducting a business session at a meeting of the Board,
Board members shall disclose and discuss their individual conflicts or potential conflicts and that
of other members of the Board. Actual conflicts shall be subject to resolution pursuant to the
Conflicts Policy, applicable federal and state non-profit corporation laws and conflict of interest
laws related to public agencies including, but not limited to, Gov’t Code 1090 and the Political
Reform Act. In the exercise of voting rights by members of the Board, no individual shall vote on
any issue, motion or resolution which directly or indirectly inures to his or her benefit financially

-5-



or with respect to which he or she has any other conflict of interest, except that such individual
may be counted in order to qualify a quorum and, except as the Board may otherwise direct, may
participate in the discussion of such an issue, motion or resolution if he or she first discloses the
nature of his or her interest and such discussion is allowed under conflict of interest laws applicable
to public agencies. Board members shall adhere to the Conflict of Interest Policy enacted pursuant
to section 4.12 of these Bylaws.

4.14.  Access to Board Records and Reports. Upon request, officers of the Member shall
have access to Watsonville Community Hospital documents for review (but not possession) that
have been reviewed by the Board of Directors. Such review shall be subject to the officer
executing an agreement to maintain the confidentiality (no disclosure beyond officers and Board
members of the Member) of information reviewed. Documents that are protected by legal
privileges and confidentiality (e.g., personnel, peer review, legal, vendor contractual
confidentiality), those containing pending competitive business transaction information, and
physician agreements, shall not be subject to review. Subject to the execution of an agreement to
maintain confidentiality, Board member and Board selected candidate conflict disclosure filings
shall be available for review at PVHCDH’s offices only to the chief executive or designated legal
counsel of the Member upon request.

4.15. Bylaws Review. Consistent with regulatory and industry standards, the Board
shall periodically conduct a review of these Bylaws in order to update and improve them. At least
every two (2) years, commencing in January 2024, the Board shall seek the input of the Member
in connection with such a review.

ARTICLE V
OFFICERS

5.1. Officers of this Corporation. The officers of PVHCDH shall be a Chair, a Vice
Chair, a Chief Executive Officer, a Secretary, and a Treasurer (which office shall be separate from
PVHCDH’s Chief Financial Officer). No officer may hold more than one office at a time, with
the exception of cases in which there is a vacancy in the office due to death, resignation, removal,
disqualification or otherwise of a director pursuant to Section 4.2 above in which case more than
one office may be held by a single director until the vacancy on the Member Board had been filled.

5.2. Officers Elected by the Board. The Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary
shall be elected annually by the Board at its organizational meeting. Nominations shall be
submitted in advance of the selection by a nominating committee appointed by the Board. Each
officer elected by the Board shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board and until his or her
successor shall be clected and qualified to serve. A vacancy in any office because of death,
resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise of a director, may be filled by the Board for the
unexpired term at any meeting of the Board.




5.3. Resignation or Removal. Any officer of the Board may resign at any time or be
removed by the vote of the Board.

54. Vacancies in Office. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular
appointments.

5.5. Chair. The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Unless
the signature of the Chief Executive Officer is required by law, the Chair of the Board shall possess
the same power as the Chief Executive Officer to sign all certificates, contracts, or other
instruments of PVHCDH when he or she is so authorized by the Board. The Chair of the Board
shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board from
time to time. The Chair of the Board shall serve as the Board’s liaison to the Chief Executive
Officer.

5.6. Vice Chair. In the absence of the Chair of the Board or in the event of the Chair's
disability, inability, or refusal to act, the Vice Chair of the Board shall perform all of the duties of
the Chair and in so acting shall have all of the powers of the Chair. The Vice Chair shall have
such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the
Board or by the Chair.

5.17. Chief Executive Officer.

(a)  Appointment and Removal. The Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH shall
be engaged by the Board and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board, which may terminate the
services of the Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH subject to any employment agreement.

(b) Responsibilities and Authority. The Chief Executive Officer shall be the
general manager, administrator and Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH. The Chief Executive
Officer shall be given the necessary authority and responsibility to operate PVHCDH in all of its
activities, including without limitation, quality of services, safety matters, cost effectiveness and
economic performance, subject to the following: with respect to safety and quality of care,
treatment and services, policy development, program planning, employee and community
relations, the Chief Executive Officer shall be subject to such policies as may be adopted and such
orders as may be issued by the Board of PVHCDH or by any of its committees to which the Board
has delegated the power for such action; with respect to program execution and overall
management performance, the Chief Executive Officer shall be subject to the authority of and shall
report to the Board. The Chief Executive Officer shall act as the duly authorized representative of
the Board of PVHCDH in all matters in which the Board has not formally designated some other
person to so act.

5.8. Treasurer. The Treasurer of PVHCDH shall keep and maintain or cause to be kept
and maintained adequate and correct account of the properties and business transactions of

-7



PVHCDH, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and losses.
The books of account shall at all times be open to inspection by any Board member. The Treasurer
shall be charged with safeguarding the assets of PVHCDH and he or she shall sign financial
documents on behalf of PVHCDH in accordance with the established policies of PVHCDH. He
or she shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the
Board from time-to-time. The Treasurer may fulfill these responsibilities and perform his or her
duties through appropriate delegation, with Board oversight, to individuals or firms charged with
the financial management of PVHCDH.

5.9. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a book of minutes at the
principal office or at such other place as the Board may order of all meetings of the Board with the
time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and if special how authorized, the notice
thereof given, the names of those present at the Board meetings, and the proceedings thereof. The
Secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of all the meetings of the Board required by these
Bylaws or by law to be given, and the Secretary shall keep the seal of PVHCDH in safe custody
and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board
from time to time.

ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES

6.1. Establishment of Committees. PVHCDH shall have the standing committees set
forth in Section 6.5 of these Bylaws, and such other standing committees or special committees as
may be established by the Board from time to time in accordance with these Bylaws.

6.2. Composition of Committees. Unless otherwise stated, standing committees shall
not be limited to members of the Board, but consistent with California Nonprofit Corporation Law
shall include at least two (2) members of the Board. Special committees and any subcommittees
of any standing committee or special committee that may be established from time to time shall
not be limited to members of the Board but may, by direction of the Board, include any number of
persons the majority of whom need not be Directors. The Chair of the Board shall recommend
committee members and Chairs of the committees to the Board, subject to the approval of the
Board. The Board shall create committees as deemed necessary. Member’s interests in
appointment to certain committees shall be considered by the Chair. The Board may appoint
alternate members of any committee who shall act on behalf of any committee member who is
absent from a committee meeting. The Board or the committee may select other persons, whether
or not members of the Board, to attend meetings of the committee and to participate in the
discussion and activities of the committee; provided, however, that such additional persons
attending the committee meeting shall not be entltled to vote and shall participate only at the
discretion of the comnmttee 4¢ sid-the Exect : all-eae




6.3. Powers: Restrictions and Limitations.

(a) Standing Committees. Subject to the duty of the Board to exercise ultimate
direction over the activities and affairs of PVHCDH, the Board may delegate to any standing
committee the power, subject to applicable law, to manage or direct any activity of PVHCDH. In
addition to powers so delegated and the general duties of the standing committees described in the
provisions of these Bylaws, the standing committees shall undertake duties or specific tasks
assigned by the Board, or the Chair;-erthe Executive-Committee- of the Board of Directors, and
shall consider matters requested by other committees or the Chief Executive Officer of PVHCDH.

(b) Special Committees. The Board may authorize any special committee to
carry out certain specified functions or responsibilities, or to provide such advice and
recommendation as the Board shall require, but no special committee shall have the authority to
determine PVHCDH policy or otherwise exercise any powers of the Board with respect to the
business and affairs of the PVHCDH. Internal conflicts concerning Medical Staff affairs shall be
referred to a special committee created and appointed by the Chair of the Board on an as needed
basis for resolution.

(©) Subcommittees. The Board or any standing or special committee may
authorize any subcommittee to carry out certain specified functions or responsibilities, or to
provide such advice and recommendation as the Board or any such committee shall require, but
no subcommittee shall have the authority to determine PVHCDH policy or otherwise exercise any
powers of the Board with respect to the business and affairs of PVHCDH.

6.4. Meetings and Actions of Committees.

(a) Meetings. Meetings and actions of any standing committee, special
committee or subcommittee shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the
provisions of these Bylaws concerning meetings of the Board, including, but not limited to Section
4.7, with such changes in the content of these Bylaws as are necessary to substitute the committee
or subcommittee and its members for the Board and its members, except a quorum of a committee
shall be a majority of the voting members of the committee. The time for regular meetings of any
committee or subcommittee may be determined either by direction of the Board or by direction of
such committee or subcommittee. Special meetings of any committee or subcommittee may also
be called by direction of the Board. Notice of special meetings of any committee or subcommittee
shall also be given to any and all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend such
meetings, subject to the discretion of the committee or subcommittee. Minutes shall be kept of
meetings of any committees and subcommittees and shall be filed with the corporate records. The
Board may adopt rules for the governing of any committee or subcommittee not inconsistent with
the provisions of these Bylaws.



(b) Subcommittee membership. Subject to Board approval, each standing or
special committee may establish such subcommittees as it deems necessary, the members of which
need not be members of the Board. The Chair of the parent committee shall recommend to the
Board formation of any subcommittee and shall nominate initial membership and the proposed
chair of any new subcommittee to the Board for approval. Thereafter, the Chair of a subcommittee
shall recommend to the Chair of the parent committee annual appointments or reappointments to
the subcommittee, or recommend individuals to fill vacancies. The Chair of the parent committee
shall have discretion to accept or reject such recommendations, and shall submit nominations for
annual subcommittee membership (including appointment of the subcommittee chair), or
nominations to fill vacancies on subcommittees, to the Board of Directors for approval.

6.5. Establishment of Standing Committees. Standing Committees of the Board of
Directors as established and appointed pursuant to these Bylaws shall be as follows:

(a Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall consist of &-minimum
oftwo (2) Board members, with up to fiveten (510) persons, including, the Board Treasurer, two
(2) senior executives; two (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2) physicians with medical staff

p r1v11eges at Wataon ille Community HOSQ_II:LI and lwo [21 hospltal front ling § staff The Fmance

mcludmg operatmg and capltal budgets borrowmgs and capital planning, audits, material
contracts and leases, business plan development and implementation, and facilities and equipment.

(b) Strategic Planning and Marketing Committee. The Strategic Planning and
Marketing Comm1ttee shall consist of a—mumum—ef—two (2) Board members with up to fiveten

(510) persons: - including two (2)

senior executives; two LZ]_osmtal d1rectors or managers, two (21 gh; sicians with medical staff

privileges at Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital front line staff, The Strategic

Planning and Marketing Committee shall oversee marketing and strategic planning, integration of
PVHCDH operations and facilities, service changes or adjustments, physician development,
facility planning, and strategic alliances and ventures. The Committee shall oversee development
and implementation of PVHCDH’s community benefit programs and shall seek input into its work
from the Member. The Committee shall also facilitate coordination of its community benefit
programs with similar programs undertaken by the Member.

(c) HumanReseureesEmplovee Engagement Committee. The Human
ResoureesEmplovee Engagement Committee shall consist of a—minimum—eftwo (2) Board
members, vsnth up to feurten (410) persons—TFhe-HumanReseurees, including, two (2) senior
executive o (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2) physicians with medical staff privilege

at Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital front line staff. The Employee
Engagement Committee shall consider human resource issues and policies as warranted and shall

-10 -
38182.00001135026968-638182.00002140967726.1



review and recommend for Board approval employee compensation, pension and benefits
programs (other than executive officer level).

(d) Quality and Patient Safety Committee. The Quality and Patient Safety
Committee shall consist of a-minimum-—of-two (2) Board members;- with up to nineten (210)
persons:,_including, two (2) senior executives; two (2) hospital directors or managers, two (2)
physicians with medical staff privileges at Watsonville Community Hospital and two (2) hospital
front line staff. The Committee will be assisted in its work by the Chief Executive Officer, the
CNO (Chief Nursing Officer), the Safety Officer, and the Medical Staff as needed and requested
b)[ the Comm1tte; The Quahty and Patlent Safety Comrmttee shall—lﬂelude—&t—a—mﬂmﬂum—twe

Fficer—and ; : ality—-and PatientSafet s shall oversee effectlve
functlomng of act1v1t1es related to prov151on of quahty patlent care, patient and staff safety,
performance improvement, risk management, regulatory and accreditation standards, and strategic
direction for quality expenditures. The Quality and Patient Safety Committee shall forward
Quality Reports and recommendations to the Board of Directors. This Committee shall also be
responsible for developing and implementing the Board’s annual action plan for resolution of
safety and quality issues. In addition, the Committee shall:

(1)  Analyze data regarding safety and quality of care, treatment and
services and establish priorities for performance improvement.

(2)  Oversee the Medical Staff’s fulfillment of its responsibilities in
accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, applicable law and regulation, and accreditation
standards.

(3) ) —Ensure that recommendations from the Medical Executive
Committee and Medical Staff are made in accordance with the standards and requirements of the
Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations with regard to:

@) completed applications for initial staff appointment, initial
staff category assignment, initial department/divisional affiliation, membership prerogatives and
initial clinical privileges;

(i)  completed applications for reappointment of medical staff,
staff category, clinical privileges;

-11-
38182.00001135026968-638182.00002\40967726.1



(iii)  establishment of categories of Allied Health Professionals
permitted to practice at Watsonville Community Hospital, the appointment and reappointment of
Allied Health Professionals and privileges granted to Allied Health Professionals.

(4)  )-Provide a system for resolving conflicts that could adversely
affect safety or quality of care among individuals working within the hospital environment.

(5)  (6)-Ensure that adequate resources are allocated for maintaining
safety and quality care, treatment and services.

(6)  H-Analyze findings and recommendations from the Watsonville
Community Hospital’s administrative review and evaluation activities, including system or
process failures and actions taken to improve safety, both proactively and in response to actual
occurrences.

(7)  8)-Assess the effectiveness and results of the quality review,
utilization review, performance improvement, and risk management programs.

(8)  (9)Perform such other duties concerning safety and quality of care
matters as may be necessary.

6.6. AdHoc Committees. Ad hoc committees may be appointed by the Chair with the
approval of the Board of Directors for special limited projects for such specific tasks as
circumstances warrant ¢.g. ad hoc audit committee. Ad hoc committees shall comply with the

Brown Act and no ad hoc committee so appointed shall have an wer or authority to commit

he Board of Directors or Corporation in any manner, but may make recommendations to the
Board of Directors.

-12-
38182.00001\35026968.638182,00002\40967726.1



-13 -

38182:00001\35026968.638182.00002\40967726.1



6-6—Vacancies. Vacancies in any committee shall be filled for the unexpired
portion of the term in the same manner as provided in the case of original appointment.

Expenditures. Except as expressly delegated, any expenditure of corporate
funds by a committee or any commitment by a committee to expend corporate funds shall require
prior approval of the Board.

ARTICLE VII
CREDENTIALED PRACTITIONERS

7.1.  Medical Staff Appointments and Clinical Privileges

(@  The Board shall appoint a Medical Staff and see that they are organized
into a responsible administrative unit and adopt such bylaws and rules and regulations for
government of their practice in Watsonville Community Hospital as the Board deems to be to
the greatest benefit of patients within Watsonville Community Hospital. In the case of the
individual patients, those appointed to the Medical Staff shall have full authority and
responsibility for the care of patients subject only to such limitations as the Board may
formally impose and to the bylaws and rules and regulations for the Medical Staff as adopted
by the Board. The Medical Staff shall adhere to the highest ethical principles of the medical
profession.

(b)  All applications for appointment to the Medical Staff shall be in writing
and addressed to the Medical Staff Office in such form as determined by Watsonville
Community Hospital and more specifically described in the Medical Staff Bylaws. The
application shall be complete and with required information relating to education, licensure,
practice, previous hospital experience, professional liability coverage and any history relative
to licensure, malpractice experience and/or hospital privileges.

(¢)  Atits next regular meeting after receipt of a completed application and
a recommendation from the Medical Staff concerning an applicant for Medical Staff
appointment, the Board shall act in the matter unless further investigation requires that action
be postponed to a later meeting, as provided in the following paragraph.

(d) At any time in its consideration of such recommendation, the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, defer final determination by referring the matter to a committee
of its choice for further consideration (any such referral shall state the reasons therefor, shall
set a time limit within which a subsequent recommendation to the Board shall be made, and
may include a directive that an additional meeting be conducted to clarify issues which are in
doubt). At its next regular meeting after receipt of such subsequent recommendation, the
Board shall act in the matter.

-14 -



(¢)  Appointments to the Medical Staff shall not exceed two (2) years,
renewable by the Board before the end of the appointment upon formal application.

® The Board shall delegate to the Medical Staff the responsibility and
authority to investigate and evaluate all matters relating to Medical Staff and AHP
membership status, clinical privileges and corrective action, and shall require that the Medical
Staff adopt and forward to it specific written recommendations with appropriate supporting
documentation that will allow the Board to take informed action. Such delegation, however,
does not relieve the Board of its responsibilities in appointing members of the Medical Staff
and overseeing the appointment and delineation of functions, responsibilities and prerogatives
of AHPs.

(g)  Final action on all Medical Staff matters shall be taken by the Board
after considering the Medical Staff recommendation, except that the Board shall act on its
own initiative if the Medical Staff fails to adopt and submit recommendations within the time
periods required by the Medical Staff Bylaws. Board action without a staff recommendation
shall be based on the same kind of documented investigation and evaluation of current ability,
judgment and character as is required for Medical Staff recommendations.

(h)  The Chief Executive Officer shall make available to each applicant for
staff membership a copy of the Medical Staff Bylaws, including the Medical Staff Rules and
Regulations and Fair Hearing Plan. The applicant shall sign a statement on the application
form declaring that he/she has received and reviewed those documents and that he/she
specifically agrees:

(1)  to obligate himself/herself, as an appointee to the Medical Staff, to
provide continuous care and supervision as needed to all hospital patients for whom he/she has
responsibility;

2) to abide by all such bylaws, policies and directives of Watsonville
Community Hospital and its Medical Staff as shall be in force during the time he/she is appointed
to the Medical Staff of Watsonville Community Hospital; and

(3) to accept committee assignments and such other duties and
responsibilities as shall be assigned to him/her by the Board and the Medical Staff.

No appointment or reappointment shall take effect until such a statement has been signedby the
individual concerned.

(i) The terms and conditions of membership status and clinical privileges
and the procedure to be followed in acting on same, shall be as specified in the Medical Staff
Bylaws or as more specifically defined in the notice of individual appointment.

-15 -



)] The Board shall make final decisions on all requests for corrective
action, and shall otherwise participate in the corrective action process as described in the
Medical Staff Bylaws.

(k)  No aspect of membership status nor specific clinical privileges shall be
limited or denied to a practitioner on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin or disability,
or on the basis of any other criterion unrelated to quality patient care at Watsonville
Community Hospital, to professional qualifications, to the hospital's purposes, needs and
capabilities, or to community needs. Members of the Medical Staff who also have hospital
administrative responsibilities shall be required to meet the same requirements and
qualifications for membership on the Medical Staff as do practitioners who do not have an
administrative relationship to Watsonville Community Hospital.

@ All administrative relationships with members of the Medical Staff and
others who are not members of the Medical Staff shall be reduced to written agreement
between the individual practitioner and Watsonville Community Hospital. These
administrative relationships may be terminated by the CEO following the same procedures
utilized for other hospital employees unless the written agreement provides another method
of termination. Should the written agreement provision for termination conflict with the
general procedures utilized for other employees, the written agreement shall control.

7.2.  Medical Staff Governance

(a) The Board shall adopt bylaws and rules and regulations establishing the
organization and government of the Medical Staff. The bylaws and rules and regulations shall
be developed by the Medical Staff, but shall be effective only upon approval by the Board.
The power of the Board to adopt or amend Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations
shall be conditioned upon the Medical Staff’s failure to keep current, update or make
necessary modifications to its bylaws in a manner that will allow for the maximum possible
achievement of the purposes and objectives of the Medical Staff.

(b)  The Board retains the right to rescind any authority or procedures
delegated to the Medical Staff, and to recommend amendment or replacement of the Medical
Staff Bylaws as necessary for the operation of Watsonville Community Hospital.

(c) The Medical Staff shall review and revise all Medical Staff Rules and
Regulations, and, as applicable, departmental policies and procedures, when warranted,
provided that such review shall occur at least every two (2) years. The Medical Staff shall
recommend changes in such policies and procedures for approval by the Board.

7.3.  Categories of Staff Membership

-16 -



The Medical Staff shall be organized into categories as outlined in the Medical Staff Bylaws. The
prerogatives and responsibilities of each staff category shall be outlined in the Medical Staff
Bylaws.

7.4.  Allied Health Professionals (“AHP”)

(a) The Board may approve specific clinical privileges for individuals who
are not part of the Medical Staff, but who may render patient care services within Watsonville
Community Hospital setting,

(b)  Each member of the AHP shall be assigned and made accountable to the
appropriate clinical section of the Medical Staff, although such assignment will not constitute
membership on the Medical Staff.

(¢)  All applications for appointment to AHP status shall be in writing and
addressed to the Chief Executive Officer on such forms as determined by Watsonville
Community Hospital. The application shall be processed in the same manner as Medical Staff
applications.

(d)  The terms and conditions of AHP status, and of the exercise of clinical
privileges, shall be as specified in the appropriate section of Medical Staff Bylaws or as more
specifically defined in the notice of individual appointment. AHPs shall not be entitled to the
procedures set forth in the Fair Hearing Plan. They shall, however, be entitled to an
appearance before a Medical Staff committee designated within the Medical Staff Bylaws, as
well as a written appeal to the Board in the event of an adverse action.

ARTICLE VIII
MEDICAL CARE EVALUATION

8.1.  Board Responsibility for the Quality of Professional Services

After considering the recommendations of the Medical Staff and the other health care professionals
providing patient care services, the Board shall implement specific review and evaluation activities
to assess, preserve and improve the overall quality and efficiency of patient care in Watsonville
Community Hospital. The Board, through the Chief Executive Officer, shall provide whatever
administrative assistance is reasonably necessary to support and facilitate activities contributing to
continuous quality assessment and improvement,

8.2. Medical Records

-17-



In order to facilitate the Medical Staff’s review and appraisal of the quality and efficiency of the
medical care rendered in Watsonville Community Hospital, the Board will assure that the Medical
Staff will have access to the services of the Medical Records Department and to any other
administrative or technical assistance deemed appropriate.

8.3.  Professional Accountability to the Board

The Medical Staff and the other health care professional staff providing patient care services shall
conduct, and be accountable to the Board for conducting, activities that contribute to the
preservation and improvement of the quality and efficiency of patient care provided in Watsonville
Community Hospital. These activities shall include these functions:

(2)  Providing effective mechanisms to monitor and evaluate the quality of
patient care and the clinical performance of individuals with delineated clinical privileges
within Watsonville Community Hospital,;

(b)  Ongoing review, evaluation and monitoring of patient care practices
through a systematic process of overall quality assessment and improvement;

(¢)  Delineation of clinical privileges for Medical Staff members,
commensurate with individual credentials and demonstrated ability and judgment, and
assignment of patient care responsibilities to other health care professionals consistent with
individual qualification and demonstrated ability;

(d)  Establishing a process designed to assure that all individuals responsible
for the assessment, treatment, or care of patients are competent in the following, as appropriate
to the ages of the patients served:

(1)  the ability to obtain information and interpret information in terms
of patient needs;

(2) a knowledge of cognitive, physical and emotional growth and
development in theparticular age group treated; and

(3)  anunderstanding of the range of treatment needed by the patients.

(e) Providing continuing professional education, shaped primarily by the needs
identified through the review and evaluation activities;

® Reviewing utilization of the hospital's resources to provide for their
allocation to patients in need of them;

- 18-



(g)  Reviewing the competency of care providers who are not subject to the
Medical Staff privilege delineation process; and reporting to the governing body of findings with
regardto such care providers;

(h) Establishing a process to support the efficient flow of patients, such as a
plan concerning the care of admitted patients who are in temporary bed locations; and

(1) Such other measures as the Board may, after receiving and considering the
advice of the Medical Staff, the other professional services, and the CEO, deem necessary for the
preservation and improvement of the quality and efficiency of patient care.

8.4. Documentation

The Board shall consider and act upon the findings and recommendations from the required
review, evaluation, and monitoring activities. All findings and recommendations shall be in
writing, signed by the persons responsible for conducting the review activities, and supported and
accompanied by documentation upon which the Board can take informed action.

ARTICLE IX
THE VOLUNTEER SERVICES

9.1.  Organization. Auxiliary and other hospital service organizations may be formed
in Watsonville Community Hospital. The formation, constitution, bylaws, and operating
procedure of such organizations shall be subject to approval and control by the Board of Directors.
Each such organization shall cooperate with the Board and Chief Executive Officer in the best
interests of Watsonville Community Hospital and its patients. Periodic and annual reports shall
be made to the Board covering its activities by each organization.

9.2.  Funds and Fund Raising. No volunteer service organization may undertake any
fund raising or other project in the name of or for the benefit of Watsonville Community Hospital
which might impose a liability on Watsonville Community Hospital or any affiliated entity
without prior approval of the Board, nor undertake any activity on Watsonville Community
Hospital premises without the approval of the Chief Executive Officer.

Funds collected or otherwise acquired on behalf of Watsonville Community Hospital or by
any activities purporting to assist Watsonville Community Hospital or its patients, shall be reported
to and be subject to control by the Board. No funds, other than operating funds, shall be disbursed
without prior approval of the Board.

ARTICLE X
RESERVED HOSPITAL BOARD AUTHORITY

-19-



No approvals granted and no assignment, referral, or delegation of authority by the Board
of Directors to hospital management, the Medical Staff, volunteer service organizations, or anyone
else shall preclude the Board from exercising the authority required to meet its responsibility for
the conduct of Watsonville Community Hospital. The Board retains the right to rescind any such
approval or delegation.

ARTICLE XI
ACTIONS REQUIRING MEMBER APPROVAL

11.1. Approval or Action Requirement. Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to
the contrary, neither the Board nor any officer or employee of PVHCDH may take any of the
following actions, or approve a subsidiary or an affiliate taking any of the following actions,
without the prior approval of the Member:

(a) Any merger, consolidation, reorganization, or dissolution of PVHCDH that
would change the Member’s status as sole member or owner of the assets operated by PVHCDH.

(b)  Any transfer by sale, lease, debt or encumbrance, or other disposition, of
any of the assets of PVHCDH, real or personal, outside the ordinary course of Watsonville
Community Hospital business.

(c) Any transaction that, on a proforma basis, would cause PVHCDH to be in
violation of any financial loan or bond covenant, as they exist at the time of the transaction, or that
would cause PVHCDH’s Debt to Capitalization Ratio to exceed 50%.

(d  Any Watsonville Community Hospital campus development plan that
restricts future land use options or requires regulatory changes to land use permits/designations.

(e) Any transaction that causes or is anticipated to cause a downgrade in
Member or PVHCDH'S bond rating by a standard rating agency.

® Amendment or restatement of the Articles of Incorporation.
(2 Amendment or restatement of these Bylaws.

(h)  Any changes to the Mission Statement of the Watsonville Community
Hospital.

@) Appointment of independent auditors.

-20-



11.2. Record of Approval or Disapproval. The Member's approval or disapproval of
matters described in Section 11.1 of these Bylaws shall be recorded in or filed with the minutes
of this Corporation.

ARTICLE XHII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1. Compensation of Board Members. The members of the Board shall receive no
compensation as such, except that they may be reimbursed from time to time for all expenses
incurred on behalf of PVHCDH.

12.2. Indemnification. PVHCDH shall indemnify any Director, officer, employee or
agent of PVHCDH for liability incurred by such person in the exercise of his or her duties with
respect to PVHCDH to the extent permitted by Section 5238 of the California Corporations Code
Or any successor statute.

12.3.  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of PVHCDH shall end on December 31 of each year.

12.4. Construction and Definitions. Unless the context requires otherwise, the general
provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law
shall govern the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the preceding
sentence, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular number includes
the plural, the plural number includes the singular and the term “person” includes both a legal
entity and a natural person.

ARTICLE XIII
AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may only be amended or restated by the Member.

-21-



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I certify that I am the Secretary of Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, and that the attached Bylaws of Pajaro Valley
Health Care District Hospital Corporation are the current bylaws of this Corporation adopted by
the Board of Directors of Pajaro Valley Health Care District Hospital Corporation, and approved
by the Member, the Pajaro Valley Health Care District.

Dated: , 2022

[ ], Secretary




Summary report:

1/18/2023 12:55:20 PM

Litera Compare for Word 11.3.0.46 Document comparison done on

Style name: Default Style

Intelligent Table Comparison: Active

Original DMS: iw://bbklaw-mobility.imanage.work/IMANAGE/35026968/6

Modified DMS: iw://bbklaw-mobility.imanage.work/IMANAGE/40967726/1

Changes:

30

Add
Delete

36

WoveFrem

| Move To

Table Insert

SIo|IC

Table-Delete

| Table moves to

Fable-movesfrom

Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.)

Embedded Excel

Format changes

Total Changes:

RNVIQCICIQ|IC|D|O




ltem 13E

ko =

Board Memo

_———

Executive Sponsor: Steven Salyer

Agenda ltem: Approval of Engagement Agreement with The Chartis Group —
PVHCDHC Strategic Planning Consulting Services

Meeting Date: January 25, 2023

Recommended Action

Request the Board’s approval to execute engagement agreement with The Chartis Group for
strategic planning development of prioritized set of strategic imperatives, key tactics, and related
measures.

Background/Situation/Rationale

The Board od Directors of PVHCD and WCH'’s Executive Team seek to embark on a strategic
planning process that elevates the hospital and healthcare district's health equity impact and
preserves access to quality services for the community under a financially sustainable
trajectory. Primary deliverable from this project will be a 3 to 5 year strategic plan for WCH with
the PVHCD's overall objectives and needs in mind. The strategic plan will include a clear
articulation of organizational goals and metrics by which success will be defined.

Financial Impact: Anticipated expense for this proposed agreement will be $480,000.
Attachment:
A. The Chartis Group Strategic Planning Proposal

|Approved: XYZA 00, 20 xxi




item 13E

lf\
&) cHARTIS

December 20, 2022

Steven Salyer

Chief Executive Officer

Watsonville Community Hospital

75 Nielson Street, Watsonville, CA 95076

Cecilia Montalvo

Interim Chief Financial Officer
Watsonville Community Hospital

75 Nielson Street, Watsonville, CA 95076

Re: Watsonville Community Hospital and Pajaro Valley Healthcare District Strategic
Planning

Dear Steven and Cecilia,

Thank you for the opportunity for The Chartis Group (Chartis) to provide Watsonville
Community Hospital (WCH) and the Pajaro Valley Healthcare District (PVHCD) with our proposal
for strategic planning consulting services. Chartis has been privileged to work with community
safety net hospitals like WCH and community health planning bodies like PHVCD to improve
community health outcomes and economic sustainability. Our collective experience across many
organizations provides us with a deep knowledge base, client network, and perspective on what
it takes to create meaningful and sustainable change. As you review our proposal, please keep in
mind the following attributes that we believe differentiate Chartis:

® We have led transformative engagements resulting in material improvements to
the health of underserved communities. Through our work across communities such
as Chicago's South Side, Southwest Houston, West Texas, New Jersey, and beyond,
Chartis has supported strategy development and implementation for healthcare
organizations tackling community health challenges and inequities in local contexts. This
includes work supporting the creation of the South Side Health Community
Organization, a nonprofit organization dedicated to transforming health outcomes on
Chicago’s South Side, that resulted in the creation of an unprecedented collaboration of
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), safety net hospitals, and health systems and
that received $150 million in state funding.

Boston | Chicago | Nashville | NewYork | SanFrancisco | Washington, D.C.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 2

® We have extensive strategic and operational planning experience with community
safety net hospitals. Our work with safety net hospitals such as Kaweah Health in
California, Lawrence General Hospital in Massachusetts, Cook County Health & Hospitals
in Chicago, and more provides us with a grounding of the value that safety net hospitals
provide to their communities, as well as with clarity about the financial and operational
challenges and risks facing these essential institutions. Our work with these clients, which
has spanned strategic planning, operations and access, and financial performance
improvement, has resulted in demonstrably improved patient experience, operating
margins, and service quality / scope, leading to better and more equitable care for
vulnerable and underserved patient and community segments.

® We have a deep regional understanding of the northern California market. We have
worked with many of the region’s health systems, including UCSF Health, Stanford
Medicine, John Muir Health, Providence Health, and El Camino Health. We understand
the unique market, competitive, and partnership dynamics in which WCH will need to
chart its future course.

® We have significant community engagement and communications expertise
through our partner Jarrard - a top-10 strategic communications consulting firm. We
have provided trusted strategic communications counsel to healthcare leaders guiding
their organizations through high-stakes times of change, challenge, and opportunity. We
have served more than 600 leading healthcare companies and health systems of all
genres — notably, publicly-owned community and regional providers such as Singing
River Health System, Broward Health, Erlanger Health System, Lee Health, and Anniston
Health Care Authority.

This letter of engagement, based on our conversations over the past several weeks, outlines our
understanding of your situation, our project approach, and associated staffing and professional
fees to complete this critical endeavor. If any modifications are required to better meet your
needs, we would be pleased to work collaboratively to make the necessary adjustments.

Sincerely,

O

Cindy Lee

Chief Strategy Officer and Director
415.254.7743

clee@chartis.com




WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 3

Our Understanding and Engagement Objectives

WCH is a 100-bed community hospital in Santa Cruz County that has operated under multiple
for-profit owners for several decades. In December 2021, WCH filed for bankruptcy, creating the
threat that the rural, under-resourced Watsonville community would be left without access to
critical emergency, inpatient, and other hospital-based services. In response, a historic,
grassroots effort of community advocacy and legislation led to the creation of a new public
entity — the PHVCD - which went on to raise $66 million to acquire WCH and operational. This
represented the largest public fundraising campaign in the history of Santa Cruz County —
reflecting the community's conviction that the most meaningful way to address the region’s
health disparities is by preserving access to healthcare.

With the achievement of this historic milestone, the Board of Directors of PVHCD and WCH’s
Executive Team now seek to embark on a strategic planning process that elevates the hospital
and healthcare district's health equity impact and preserves access to quality services for the
community under a financially sustainable trajectory. This process will be grounded in the
development of a shared mission, vision, values and guiding principles for the two entities,
guided by internal and external stakeholders, including forums for diverse community input. The
primary deliverable from this project will be a 3-to-5 year strategic plan for WCH with the
PVHCD's overall objectives and needs in mind. The strategic plan will include a clear articulation
of organizational goals and metrics by which success will be defined; supporting strategies and
major tactics; a high-level roadmap with key milestones; and estimated financial projections
building on the baseline financial assumptions in place today.

Our Approach

Our approach will ground WCH'’s strategic plan in a robust understanding of the internal and
external environments, including an analytical and qualitative assessment of the community’s
healthcare needs and desires; external market dynamics (e.g., payers, providers, employers); and
the operational realities in which WCH must operate. While our primary focus will be in the
development of a robust strategic plan for WCH, we understand that this must include
considerations for PVHCD's objectives. While we expect the “aspirations” or goals and
mission/vision/values of these two entities to be similar and mutually reinforcing, there will be
some differences. For example, PVHCD's broader focus will be to consider how to engage all of
the capabilities available in the region to improve the health of the communities; whereas
WCH'’s focus will be more centered on its specific role in improving the health of the
communities it serves. We have highlighted the major components of the strategic planning
framework as illustrated in Figure 1 below.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning

Page 4

Figure 1: Strategic Planning Framework

Internal & External Assessment

Community External &

Heatlth Neads

Stakeholder Interests,
Perceptions & Beliefs

Market Dynamics

n, Values,

Aspirations

Strategies

Strategies

Success Measures

What do we want to be?

What do we want to do?

What is our path to achieving this?
What efforts and initiatives mark
our path?

How will we know that we've
succeeded?

What do we need to undertake
this, and how will we fund it?

Who will be responsible for
getting us there, and when?

How will we engage key
stakeholders

The process for crafting WCH and PVHCD's aspirations, as well as WCH's strategies and
roadmap, will rest on deep engagement from leadership and extensive input from clinicians, the
broader workforce, and members of the Watsonville community. We will utilize interviews,
workshops, community/employee listening sessions, and surveys to engage WCH's broad
stakeholders and reflect the grassroots, public effort to keep the hospital open. In Figure 2
below, we have summarized the key phases and activities of the strategic planning effort.

Figure 2: Phases and Key Activities (12 Weeks Total)

Phase 1

Phase 2

Current State Assessment and Articulation of
Aspirations

Key Activities
® Conduct high level market / internat
assessment
¢ 10-15 individual interviews, to be
supplemented with listening sessions targeting
up to 100 additional stakeholders
* Assessment of regional community need,
health equity needs, and provider landscape,
with community input to reflect needs
* Internal assessment (operating / quality /
financial performance, service line mix,
provider workforce)
® Work with internal & external stakeholders
(including diverse community input) to initiaily
articulate mission, vision, values, and strategic
aims
* “Design & deliver” workshops to develop
themes & ideas
- Comprehensive focus group listening sessions
-2 internal, 2 external, with up to 30
participants per session
* Determine 3-5 year goals
Deliverable
Current state assessment; stakeholder
engagement, and initial articulation of mission,
vision, aims

Strategy and Tactics Development

Key Activities
* Develop criteria to prioritize services
for growth and focus vs. areas for
deemphasis
* Develop strategic imperatives and
goals key priorities, e.g.,
« Clinical services and network
* Partnerships
+ Quality and outcomes
* Access and experience
® Finalize articulation of mission, vision,
values
= Continue comprehensive listening
sessions
* Launch community & employee
online survey

* Shape a comprehensive plan with
imperatives, actions, key measures
and timing

Deliverable

Prioritized set of strategic imperatives,
actions, and measures; initial strategic
plan

Roadmap and Synthesized Plan

Develop high level roadmap for
execution, including key
accountabilities and timelines,
working closely with WCH leadership
Finalize high level financial impact
analyses of key strategies

Finalize communications materials
articulating the strategic plan for
internal and external stakeholders

High-level roadmap, financial
projections, and strategic plan with
communication for internal & external
audiences



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 5

. 1. Current State Assessment and Articulation of Aspirations

OVERVIEW

The objective of Phase 1 is to craft a compelling vision for WCH and PHVCD that rests on a clear
understanding of the internal and external current state, as well as of stakeholder engagement.
To do so, Phase 1 is structured around information gathering, external market analysis, internal
financial/operational performance assessment, interviews, and broader stakeholder
engagement.

TASKS

® Conduct 10 - 15 individual interviews with executive leaders and members of the Board
to understand to best understand strengths, needs, and opportunities, how they would
like to see the organizations evolve, and what existing barriers may impact the success of
this work; these interviews will be supplemented by broader listening sessions targeting
up to 100 participants as detailed below

® Conduct “design” workshop with a small working group of internal executives, leaders
and long-term employees to identify themes, sentiments, and ideas that would resonate
most with WCH's internal and external audiences as we shape statements of mission,
vision and values

® Conduct listening sessions, based on the themes identified in the “design” workshop, to
capture critical feedback on potential mission, vision and values language from WCH’s
internal and external audiences

® Launch community and employee online survey to expand engagement beyond those
able to participate in listening sessions

® Assess regional community need, health equity needs, employer landscape, payer
landscape and provider landscape (inclusive of FQHCs)

® Review internal operating, quality, and financial performance
® Synthesize the current state and begin to form statements of mission, vision, values, and
goals, with initial takeaways for internal and external communications
DELIVERABLES

® Synthesized current state assessment of the community's healthcare needs broadly, from
the PVHCD perspective

® Synthesized current state assessment of the community needs that WCH would be best
positioned to meet (quantitative and qualitative)



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 6

® Initial articulation of mission, vision and values based on interviews, focus groups and
online survey

® Initial identification of top 3 to 5 strategic goals for WCH and PVHCD (some goals may
overlap)

. 2. Strategy and Tactics Development

OVERVIEW

Phase 2 will build on the emerging insights from Phase 1 to create actionable, measurable
strategies and key tactics. Strategies will focus on identifying the core aspects of WCH’s
healthcare delivery model (e.g., service line priorities, provider and facility network, payer
strategies, partnerships, quality and outcomes, and patient access). In doing so, we will keep in
mind the broader community health aims of PVHCD (community health, social determinants of
health, community-based partnerships). The result will be a set of prioritized strategic
imperatives, related key tactics, and measures for WCH. In this phase, we will also begin to
develop a financial model that will identify key requirements to achieve financial sustainability.
TASKS
® Develop criteria / guiding principles to evaluate strategies to pursue
® Develop strategic imperatives, key tactics, and goals around:
Clinical services
Provider/Facility network
Partnerships
Quality and outcomes
Access and experience
Others, to be determined
® Prioritize strategies to pursue

® For priority strategies, develop tactics and metrics for success

® Initiate financial modeling of key strategies to pursue

DELIVERABLES
® (Criteria / Guiding principles for prioritizing strategies

® Prioritized set of strategic imperatives, key tactics, and related measures



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 7

@ Finalized mission/values/vision

. 3. Roadmap and Synthesized Plan

OVERVIEW

Phase 3 will support WCH in the transition from strategy to implementation. We will take the
inputs from Phase 2 to develop high-level financial projections and sensitivities for WCH,
deriving an estimate of resource requirements and financial performance under relevant
scenarios. Additionally, we will develop a high-level roadmap that lays out key measures, the
sequencing and phasing of strategies and key tactics, with assigned owners or points of
responsibility, working closely with WCH leadership. In this phase, we will also identify key risks
and key enablers necessary for successful execution.

Finally, we will develop communications materials that synthesize the strategic plan for internal
and external audiences with engaging, accessible key visuals, bringing the strategic plan to life
and ensuring early awareness, understanding, and adoption. Figure 3 provides an example of
what such communications materials could look like.

Figure 3: Example Strategic Plan Visual
Health System Vision & Strategy Compass

We have a strategy for achieving our vision of being a national leader for the advancemant of health and healing - tiy achieving
exceptional patient experience, excellent heaith cutcomes, strong financial results and a coordinated care model. We will get there by
advancing tha right culture, and by providing tha right care at the right cost, and at the right time and place,

Exceptional Patient Experience P 9 Excetlent Health O $
We will deliver a caring and | ! We wili provide safe, effective
compassionate experience care ta ensure the best health
every time. results for those we serve,

MEASURES : MEASURES
* System-wWide RolkUg of “Overatl J J \ « Pavent impact
Rate” Patient Experence Scori ! 1 - Faclines Medicare Payor

our vlsion ! 30 doy Readmission Rate

Qur vizsion i to Insplre
hopae, and be a national
landar tor the advancemunt
ef health and healing,

Coordinated Care Madel

We will empower healthier ! \ y / We will assure financiat
lives through personalized L) - viability by lowering cost
coordinated care. — and growing revenues.

4

MEASURES HEASURLS

* Increase the LPG Pnmary Care 4 = i Covnr o Frienrendging
Patient Base o CRRPAtbet Part Hewrtys Tl

- Covered Lives e o » Dimtivtag Margin &




WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 8
TASKS
@ Develop high level implementation roadmap, working closely with WCH leadership
® Complete financial impact analysis related to prioritized strategies identified in Phase 2

® Develop materials articulating the strategic plan for internal and external audiences

DELIVERABLES
® High-level roadmap for implementing strategic plan
@ High-level financial projections, building on existing assumptions

@ Synthesized strategic plan with communication for internal & external audiences,
including final mission/vision/values statements

Project Structure

Our approach to working with you will involve significant engagement with leaders, governance,
employees, and stakeholders through interviews, community listening sessions, and surveys. The
primary vehicle for developing the WCH strategy will be the Project Sponsor team that will
include include Steven Salyer, Cecilia Montalvo as well as 1-2 additional leaders as desired. In
addition to the Project Sponsor team, there will be two touchpoints with the Board of Directors
of PVHCD / WCH. Figure 4 below illustrates this structure.

Figure 4: Project Structure

WCH and PVHCD BOD Two touchpaints
Two meetings for the Board to review
an interim update on current state,
mission / vision / values, and emerging
priorities as well as to review and
approve the final the final strategic

plan
Project Weekly meetings
Sponsor Team Small core team meeting weekly to test

emerging findings, navigate internal requests
‘(\—S’ and mitigate risks to a successful project
outcome. Membership includes:
@ « Executive Sponsors
« 1-2 Additional Members for Project
Support
Additional leaders to join as needed for
pre-wires in advance of the BOD meetings

| ] l
Design & Deliver (€)) Interviews & Ad Hoc Listening Sessions
@ Workshops CD Stakeholder { & Sgrveys

= Engagement
Test key messages and identify Understand perspective of executive e/ Receive diverse community 8
themes, sentiments, and ideas BOD leaders to help shape the strategic employee input to help shape
that would resonate with external plan; pericdically engage leaders / mission, vision, values and to
and internal audiences - bringing subject matter experts on key facets of determine messaging of the
together executives, leaders, the plan strategic plan

long-term employees




WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning

Page 9
Figure 5 below captures the timeline for project phases and key touchpoints.
Figure 5: Project Timeline
Month 1 Month 2 Month 3
Week 1 Week 2 Wieek 3 Week 4 W & Week £ Week 7 Week 8 WeekS ' Week10 Week 11 Week 12
Vi
£
3
E ,
=
Project Sponsor
Meetings | &,
£
1
@
Board Touchpoint =
Our Team

To support this engagement, we will staff an experienced project team of senior-level
professionals with extensive healthcare consulting experience and requisite facilitation skills to
garner consensus in a complex project such as this. An overview of our proposed project team is
outlined in the table below. Please see Appendix C for detailed team member profiles.

l

Project Team Member Project Role Time Commitment
Cindy Lee Ensures the project is meeting all 1 day per week
Chief Strategy Officer, Head objectives and client expectations;
of Strategy Practice provides oversight and senior input,

participating in all key meetings

Amy Woodrum As the engagement leader, Amy will 2-3 days per week
Principal, Strategy Practice provide direction and thought leadership

to the engagement and team on a day-to-

day basis, as well as support and guidance

in all key meetings

Letitia Fecher Leads the communications workstreams 1 day per week
Vice President (Jarrard), around mission, vision and values

Public & Community Health ~ development and strategic plan

System Practice Lead communications



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning

Page 10
Project Team Member Project Role Time Commitment
Courtney Kelsey Supports Communications Team Lead and  As needed
Associate Vice President the mission, vision and values workstream
Uarrard), Regional Health strategy, execution and deliverables
Systems Practice
Associate Consultant Will be responsible for developing and Full-time
(To Be Assigned) synthesizing analytics and content, day-to-

day project management, financial
modeling, and meeting materials

Professional Fees and Expenses

Based on the description of the Proposed Services, our professional fees will be $480,000 for this
12-week project, which reflects a material discount off our commercial rates. In addition to our
professional fees, we bill for direct expenses including travel to the client site and/or Chartis
offices for team work sessions, lodging, meals and a 5% administrative fee for production and
engagement support. Expenses generally do not exceed 15% of professional fees under normal
travel circumstances and will be less with a reduced travel model. We will work closely with you
to aggressively manage our expenses.

Key Assumptions for Project Success

® The following resources will be provided to support the project team:
Q A point of contact(s) that will act as the sponsor for this engagement.

O Appropriate personnel from executive, clinical, operations and community leadership
to participate as needed.

Q Access to staff and subject matter experts as needed.

O Sufficient administrative support for document collection; scheduling interviews,
project briefings, working sessions and conference calls; arranging special meetings;
and other activities as needed.

® Appropriate workspace will be provided for Chartis consultants when onsite work is
needed. Safety measures will be discussed with you in advance to ensure workspace and
planned interactions between the Chartis team and client leaders/staff follow your and
Chartis’ policies/protocols.

® The following items will be managed in a timely manner. Delays in project work due to
access or scheduling may result in project delays and additional fees, which will be
discussed in advance.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 11

Q Scheduling of interviews and meetings.

O Response to data requests.

QO Review and feedback of draft deliverables.
O Appropriate system and vendor access.

This proposal is subject to and incorporates the Chartis Commercial Terms and
Conditions attached to this proposal as Appendix _.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 12

The parties have executed this proposal as of the date first set forth below.

Watsonville Community Hospital The Chartis Group, LLC
Authorized Party Cindy Lee
Director
Date ) Date
Name
Title

Please scan/email a copy of this signature page as your authorization to proceed.

The Chartis Group, LLC
220 W. Kinzie Street, 3rd Floor
Chicago, IL 60654
Email: finance@chartis.com
Telephone: 877.667.4700




APPENDICES




WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 14

Appendix A: Relevant Experience

Chartis has been privileged to partner with clients across the nation on a broad range of
engagements. All Chartis colleagues are committed to providing each client with excellent
service and results such that the patients and communities served by our clients are better off in
meaningful ways.

Below are examples of clients we have served in the areas of interest to WCH Additional
information and project team member references are available upon request.

i omil South Side Health Connected Care Platform Development ‘

For decades, the 900,000 residents of the South Side of Chicago

have experienced health disparities ranging from materially

higher disease incidence and comorbidities to significantly lower

‘ life expectancy, reflecting a history of racial inequities and

[ underinvestment, and a fragmented healthcare delivery landscape with limited resources. In response to
a new state initiative, a group of providers engaged Chartis to develop a proposal for transforming
health outcomes. Upon successfully receiving a $150 million funding commitment from the state, Chartis
supported the coalition through integrated implementation management.

Action Results

The first phase of this work was focused on proposal @ The coalition submitted and
development for the State of Illinois. Key actions successfully received a funding
included: commitment of up to $150 million
from the State of Illinois. With the
support of this funding, the coalition
launched the South Side Healthy
Community Organization (SSHCO).
Thus far, with project management
support from Chartis, the SSHCO has
selected care coordination partners,
finalized criteria for provider
deployment across coalition sites,

SOUTH SIDE HEALTHY

COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION

® Grew the coalition from the 3 original sponsors
to 13 community providers.

® Engaged over 900 South Side providers,
community/faith-based leaders, elected officials,
and residents to develop a proposal shaped by
deep community input.

The second phase was focused on implementing the
planned changes. This included:

@ Supported rapid stand up of a new governing

approved an IT capabilities roadmap,

board. and launched an RFP process to
e Took ownership of four workstreams: design a Connected Care Technology
1. Administration & Finance platform to enhance connectivity
2. Provider Operations & Deployment and reduce fragmentation of care.
3. Care Coordination Design & Care Team
Recruitment
4. IT Design & Strategy



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 15

# Organized, managed, and facilitated the work
over 200 clinical, finance, operations, IT and care
management leaders, supporting critical
milestones and decision points across the above
workstreams.

® Presented updates and recommendations to the
new Board of Directors on a weekly basis.

Kaweah Health - Community Safety Net Operations

Kaweah Health is an $800M public health system in
/ K h H lth California. The Chartis group partnered with Kaweah
, awea ea iealtF 10 Ident unities and initiatives £
MORE THAN MEDICINE. LIFE. ea O.l entify opportunities and initiatives to
- improve patient throughput starting in the Emergency
Department through discharge, including transitions to post-acute care services.

Action : Results

® On-going areas for opportunity coalesce ~ ® Average length of stay (ALOS) was at 6.31 days

around the following themes: during baseline period. Early results

o Expand existing patient progression demonstrate improvement to ALOS of 6.03
facilitation and inpatient throughput days within 2 months post-implementation,
structure and augment active daily huddle ahead of benefit realization schedule, which
participation with providers has an overall ALOS goal of 5.64 days within 18

months. The corresponding potential bed
availability is 29 beds with backfill volume
opportunity represents $8.6M in annualized
incremental contribution margin.

o Integrate CM, SW, RNs, and MD/APPs, etc.
to create a robust and multidisciplinary
care facilitation team

o Optimize existing technology resources to
enhance clinicians’ efficiency



NERNMANN

|

Memorial Hermann Southwest Community Impact-Based Hospital Strategy

WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 16

Memorial Hermann Southwest Hospital (MHSW) is a 543-bed

hospital located in Southwest Houston serving as a vital anchor
institution to a diverse and vibrant but also underserved
community. It is part of the Memorial Hermann Health System (MH),
a $5 billion health system in the Southeast Texas region with a

¢

network of 17 hospitals and over 250 care delivery sites.

While MHSW had made notable clinical quality achievements and financial performance improvements

over the prior three years, it continued to face significant financial challenges, including a high

uninsured/underinsured payor mix and regulatory uncertainties, as well as community health disparities.

Given these pressures, the client engaged Chartis to develop a strategy to elevate the health and
community impact of MHSW while also enhancing its financial sustainability

Action

Results

The engagement focused on three areas:

@ Service Mix: What will be the healthcare

service needs for the future-state
Southwest Houston population and how
should they be prioritized?

Community Impact: How can MHSW
best meet the health and wellbeing needs
of Southwest Houston residents based on
best practices and innovative models from
across the country?

Financial Impact: How can MH balance
its mission to serve the community while
addressing the financial challenges that

MHSW faces? How can MH both meet the

most pressing needs of the community
and also achieve financial sustainability?

Chartis worked with the client to develop:

Optimal service mix
Community-based solutions
Prioritized partnership list

Strategic communications approach

Financial model and implementation
roadmap

Chartis delivered a prioritized list of 11
initiatives across four solution sets with
financial impacts, key considerations,
accountability, and timing of impact for each
initiative



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 17

Appendix B: About Chartis

At Chartis, our mission is to materially improve healthcare in the world. The insights and services
we provide support healthcare organizations in achieving their highest objectives.

We are at a moment of tremendous change and disruption in the healthcare industry. Today's
healthcare needs, economics, and disparities demand the next set of solutions.

We're helping healthcare organizations navigate this new era to not just survive, but to thrive.
We're guiding clients as they reimagine care delivery, redefine the patient journey, transform
clinical and operating models for financial sustainability, and position for growth as new health
ecosystems emerge.

Through bold thinking, incisive leadership, and powerful collaboration, we help our clients pivot
to new strategies and operating models. We call this Next Intelligence, where leading-edge data,
analytics, and technology meet human ingenuity and judgment. It's how we help our clients
build a healthier world.

Uniquely Positioned to Serve

The Chartis Group is the nation’s largest healthcare advisory firm, with a unique breadth and
depth of capabilities to meet healthcare’s most pressing issues. The Chartis Group comprises
Chartis Consulting, The Greeley Company, and Jarrard Phillips Cate & Hancock. We operate
under our unique brands in the market but share a singular focus on improving healthcare.

At Chartis, we draw upon our key areas of expertise to develop highly customized solutions to
meet our clients’ needs and deliver measurable, sustainable results. We deliver healthcare
thought leadership and expertise across the following domains:

@ Strategy

Performance

Informatics & Technology
Revenue Cycle

Oncology

Digital Transformation
Analytics

Clinical Quality & Safety

Strategic Communications & Change Management



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 18

Our Clients

The Chartis Group works with leading healthcare organizations across the country. We are
continually moved and inspired by the clients we serve. Our clients include:

OUR REACH
AND IMPACT

of academic medicat centers,
integrated delivery networks,
and children's hospitals

rural health networks across 30+ states

organizations in healthcare
services, payors, and private equity

Mission and Values
Our mission: To materially improve the delivery of healthcare in the world.

We are lucky to have extraordinarily talented people working in our firm - all brought together
around our unifying mission, a shared dedication to our core values, and the emphasis we place
on creating an environment that enriches the experiences of our clients, our colleagues and our
communities. In this way, we find that we are remarkably aligned with our clients. And that has
made for achieving some truly great things.

The Chartis Group is guided by a simple set of core values that dictate our actions both as
individuals and collectively as a firm:

Deep Commitment to

OIEIER

? $21433 ﬁtlixaﬁza;\uh

W
c
o

ol
=8
T
oL
it

w

b
c
-]

3

'
o
c
=
T
Q

Z 4

|



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 19

Industry Recognition

For five consecutive years, Chartis has been recognized as one of Forbes “America’s Best
Management Consulting Firms” by our peers and clients.

In 2021, Chartis was recognized in the following categories:
@ [T Strategy
@ Qrganization
® Strategy

For more than a decade, Chartis has consistently been recognized as Best in KLAS by KLAS
Research, a national healthcare IT data and insights company.

This year, Chartis was rated #1 in four Best in KLAS categories
and was among the top 3 in two additional categories:

HEALTHEARE
HMANAGEMENT
EONSULTING

® Best Overall Healthcare Management

#1 Digital Transformation Consulting
#1 HIT Advisory Consulting
#1 Financial Improvement Consulting

#3 Clinical Optimization

#3 Strategy, Growth, and Consolidation Consulting

This is the 12 year Chartis has ranked among the Top 10 HIT
Advisory Services Firms.

Attracting colleagues passionate about healthcare and fostering a
positive environment for top talent is something that also makes
Chartis stand apart and has drawn attention from the industry. We
are consistently recognized by Vault among its top-ranking
consulting firms and have been ranked by Modern Healthcare among
the top 20 “Best Places to Work in Healthcare” for nine consecutive
years.*

*Note: Chartis Did not participate in 2020 due to the pandemic and the timing of the survey.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 20

Appendix C: Team Member Profiles

Cindy Lee

Chief Strategy Officer and Director, Strategy Practice

Cindy Lee is a Director with The Chartis Group. She serves as Chief Strategy Officer for the firm
and Strategy Practice. Cindy advises healthcare leaders throughout the country in crafting their
futures through scenario planning that considers how the healthcare environment is likely to
evolve in the coming years and the transformation journey that may be required, including
partnership formation, financial strength, value-based care strategies, and alignment/funds flow.
She has worked with nationally leading academic health systems, children’s hospitals, and
healthcare focused companies over the last 20 years.

Cindy has been privileged to serve leading healthcare systems throughout California including
several of the University of California Health Systems (UCSF Health, UC Davis Health, UC Irvine
Health); Stanford Medicine including Stanford Children’s Health, Stanford Health Care and
Stanford School of Medicine; John Muir Health; and CHOC Children’s.

In addition, Cindy has served healthcare companies throughout the U.S. in developing creative
partnerships to improve community health, including a confidential partnership consideration
between an academic health system in the Midwest and a district hospital; a confidential growth
strategy for a national physician group focused on serving ex-urban and rural communities
focused on innovative care models and community partnerships; and a confidential clinically
integrated network development strategy in the West focused on physician and community
center partnerships.

Before joining Chartis, Cindy was a partner at Stockamp & Associates, Inc. (now part of Huron
Consulting), a national healthcare consulting firm focused on revenue improvement and patient
flow solutions. Prior to that, she was a consultant at CSC Healthcare and its predecessor, APM
Management Consultants.

Cindy has authored and been featured in numerous articles and webcasts including: “Beyond
the Second Curve: Revisioning Value-Based Care”; “The New World of Partnerships: Technology
Companies”; “Leading the Conversation: New Channels for Provider Contracting”; “Consortium
Model Networks: Evaluating the Potential of Collaboration”; and “Delivering Value through Post-
Acute Care.”

Cindy holds a Bachelor of Science degree in journalism and economics from Northwestern
University.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 21

Amy Woodrum

Principal

Amy Woodrum is a Principal with The Chartis Group. Amy has over six years of healthcare
consulting experience and over ten years of experience in the healthcare industry. At Chartis, her
primary focus has been advising academic and community health systems on strategic planning
initiatives and strategic advisory services to support health system partnerships. She has advised
academic health systems, community hospitals, integrated delivery networks, and children’s
hospitals on service line planning, ambulatory network development, enterprise strategy, and
physician alignment.

Amy’s most recent engagements include enterprise strategic planning for nationally ranked
academic health systems, partnership development between leading academic and community
health systems, service line planning for nationally recognized children’s hospitals and academic
health systems, and physician alignment and medical group planning.

Amy has recent experience in California including advising multiple health systems in the Bay
Area and an engagement with an independent community hospital on the Gold Coast.

Prior to her work with Chartis, Amy served as a Program Associate with the Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation (RWJF), the largest foundation in the United States dedicated solely to
health. At RWJF, she oversaw a portfolio of grants exceeding $2.5M, facilitated the
organization's annual strategic assessment, and produced an annual impact scorecard.

Amy serves as a board member of the Yale Healthcare Conference.

Amy received her Master of Business Administration and her Master of Public Health, both from
Yale University, and her Bachelor of Arts in Health & Society from the University of Pennsylvania.

Letitia Fecher

Vice President, Public & Community Health Systems Practice Lead, Jarrard

Letitia Fecher leads the Public & Community Health Systems practice for Jarrard. A seasoned
communications strategist, she has significant expertise in messaging, branding and reputation
management.

Letitia has played key roles in steering clients through mergers and integration; launching
physician, employee and community engagement initiatives; spearheading public perception
campaigns and creating branding and image strategies. She brings more than 15 years of
marketing and strategic communications experience in the healthcare industry to Jarrard,
including seven years of work as an in-hospital marketing and communications professional.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 22

Prior to joining Jarrard in 2014, Letitia led the marketing and communications for an investor-
backed, healthcare services start-up. There, she implemented an organization-wide employee
engagement effort, oversaw relationship and business development with provider organizations
and physician practices, and launched the company’s brand, marketing and communications
strategy. Additionally, she served as director of marketing for a Tenet-owned hospital and
facilities in Atlanta; and marketing and customer relationship manager for a Catholic Health
Partners nine-hospital system in Knoxville, Tenn.

Letitia earned a Bachelor of Arts in communications with a public relations specialization from
Michigan State University and a Master of Business Administration from the University of
Tennessee, Knoxville.

COURTNEY KELSEY

ASSOCIATE VICE PRESIDENT, JARRARD

A strategic engagement and development expert, Courtney Kelsey uses her background in team
optimization and people-focused change management to help healthcare leaders enhance the
entire employee experience.

Since first joining the firm in 2016, Courtney has played a critical role in the expansion of its
organizational development capabilities. Her issue navigation, experience design and strategic
communications work has helped the firm'’s clients maintain trust through crises, accelerate their
growth, improve engagement and retention of top performers and create marquee moments for
leaders, teams and communities. Kelsey’s approach is also informed by her extensive policy and
public health training, which enables her to bring our clients a thorough understanding of their
sociopolitical environments during times of significant change and opportunity.

Previously, Courtney served as a director of corporate communications at Baylor Scott & White
Health, where she led HR, well-being, DEI and culture communications.

A Nashville native, Courtney is a former representative of public universities to the Tennessee
Student Assistant Corporation. She earned a Bachelor of Arts in religious studies and political
science from Rhodes College and a Master of Public Health in health policy and management
from the University of Tennessee at Knoxville.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 23

Appendix D: Chartis Commercial Terms & Conditions

1. Performance of Services; Data Flow

a) Performance of Services. The Chartis Group, LLC (“Chartis”) will perform
professional services for Watsonville Community Hospital (“Client”) as described in the letter of
engagement or proposal(s) to which these terms and conditions are attached (“Services”) in
compliance with such letter or engagement or proposal, these Chartis Commercial Terms &
Conditions (“Terms & Conditions”) and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. Such letter of
engagement or proposal shall hereinafter be referred to as the “LOE.”

b) Data Flow. Client shall give Chartis access to documents, data and information
that are reasonably requested by Chartis and that (i) are necessary for the performance of the
Services; and (ii) may lawfully be shared by Client with Chartis. Chartis will use such documents,
data and information only to perform the Services, using commerecially reasonable efforts to
prevent underlying Confidential Information (as defined below) of Client from being used or
disclosed to any third party in violation of these Terms & Conditions.

2. Invoicing, Reimbursement of Expenses, Remittance, IRS Regulation, Legal Process.

a) Invoicing. Client shall compensate Chartis for the performance of the Services in
accordance with the LOE. At the end of each month during which Services are performed by
Chartis, Chartis will submit an invoice to Client for its professional fees and reimbursable travel
and business-related expenses (as set forth in Section 2.b. below) to the billing contact person
for Client listed below. At the end of the final month in which Chartis performs Services, Chartis
will submit an invoice for its final professional fees and its reimbursable travel and business-
related expenses to Client. In the event that there are reimbursable travel and business-related
expenses that are documented in the invoice submitted at the end of the final month in which
Chartis performed Services, Chartis will provide Client with a reimbursable travel and business-
related expense only invoice as soon as commercially practicable, but in any event, no more
than two months after the completion of the Services.

Billing Contact Person for Client: Steven Salyer, Watsonville Community Hospital, 75 Nielson
Street, Watsonville, CA 95076, Steven_Salyer@watsonvillehospital.com, 831.763.6040

b) Travel and Business-Related Expense Reimbursement. If Chartis is required to
travel to perform the Services under the LOE, Client shall reimburse Chartis for all travel and
business-related expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the performance of the
Services, including the following expenses:

i. all air, auto, or other transit related travel expenses related to the Services;
ii. meal expenses;
iii. lodging expenses if the Services require overnight stays; and

iv. miscellaneous travel-related expenses (taxi, parking and tolls, etc.).



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 24

c) Remittance. Client shall pay Chartis the amount stated on each invoice for its
professional fees and reimburse all travel and business-related expenses within thirty days of the
date of the invoice. All payments due of amounts not reasonably disputed shall be made by
check, bank wire transfer, or ACH transaction to a bank account designated by Chartis on the
invoice. If Client in good faith, disputes the amount of an invoice issued by Chartis, Client shall
pay Chartis the undisputed portion of the invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of the
invoice, and provide Chartis with written notice of the portion of the invoice in dispute and the
reasons for such dispute within fifteen (15) days of the date of the invoice. The parties shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to reconcile the disputed amounts as soon as commercially
practicable. If the parties agree that Client owes some or all of the disputed amount, then Client
shall pay such amount within thirty (30) days from the date of the parties’ agreement. All
payments shall be made in U.S. dollars. Overdue amounts shall bear interest at an annual rate
equal to 1.5% per month or the highest rate permitted by applicable law (whichever is lower)
from thirty (30) days after the applicable due date until the date full payment is received by
Chartis. In the event that the due date of any payment subject to this Section is a Saturday,
Sunday or national holiday, such payment may be paid on the previous business day.

d) IRS Regulation on Deduction Limitation for Meals and Entertainment. In
addition to Section 2.b. above, Client shall abide by the Internal Revenue Service regulations on
reporting and deduction limitations set forth in Section 1.274-2, paragraphs (f)(2)(iv)(a) through
(A(2)(iv)(e) (the “IRS Regulations”). Client shall reimburse Chartis for 100% of the cost of meals
and, if allowable under Client’s travel and expense policy, entertainment expenses. Client agrees
that they are responsible to account for the 50% deduction limitation on meals and the 100%
deduction limitation on entertainment expenses as defined in the IRS Regulations. Chartis will
provide the Client with adequate documentation to support the meals and, if allowable under
Client’s travel and expense policy, entertainment expenses subject to the limitation in the IRS
Regulations.

e) Legal Process. If Chartis is requested by Client or any third-party, by subpoena,
court order, investigation, or other legal or regulatory proceeding to produce documents or
testimony pertaining to Client or the Services, and Chartis is not named as a party in the
proceeding, Client will pay Chartis for its professional time, plus out-of-pocket expenses, costs,
and fees, as well as reasonable attorney fees, incurred by Chartis in responding to such request.

3. Client Delays

In addition to the events described under Section 10.d below, there are two specific situations
that are beyond Chartis’ control and that may cause Chartis to spend more time and incur more
expenses to perform of the Services. The two situations are:

a) Insufficient resources. Client provides insufficient personnel, information, and
other resources to fulfill its obligations under the LOE. Chartis will notify Client as soon as
reasonably possible upon Chartis becoming aware that it appears that the Client-provided
resources are, or will be, below agreed upon levels.

b) Unforeseen schedule slippage. Client fails to stay within the timeline agreed to
in the LOE. Chartis will notify Client as soon as reasonably possible upon Chartis becoming



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 25

aware that it appears that the Client is not keeping, or will not keep, pace with the agreed
timeline.

The types of situations set forth above are not typically encountered during an engagement
between Chartis and its clients. However, if such a situation arises, Chartis will notify and work
with Client to determine if Chartis will be required to provide any additional time or resources as
a result of a situation under Sections 3.a or 3.b above. In the event that the parties determine
that Chartis will be required to provide additional time or resources, then upon written
agreement between Chartis and Client, Client shall pay Chartis the amount agreed upon for such
additional time or resources.

4. Termination.

a) Completion of Services. Unless earlier terminated under Section 4.b below, the
LOE shall terminate upon the completion of the Services by Chartis in accordance with the LOE.

b) Material Breach. If either party (the “Non-Breaching Party") believes that the
other party (the "Breaching Party") has materially breached one or more of its obligations under
the LOE or these Terms & Conditions, then the Non-Breaching Party shall deliver written notice
of such material breach to the Breaching Party specifying the nature of the alleged breach in
reasonable detail (a "Default Notice"). The Non-Breaching Party shall have the right to terminate
a LOE upon written notice to the Breaching Party if the breach set forth in the Default Notice has
not been cured within thirty (30) days after Breaching Party receives the Default Notice.
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, if such material breach, by its nature, cannot be
remedied within such thirty (30) day cure period, but can be remedied over a longer period not
expected to exceed sixty (60) days, then such thirty (30) day period shall be extended for up to
an additional thirty (30) days, provided that the Breaching Party supplies the Non-Breaching
Party with a reasonable written plan for curing the material breach and uses commercially
reasonable efforts to cure the material breach in accordance with such written plan.

) Termination of the Services of a Member of the Team. If Client judges the
performance of the Services by a member of Chartis’ team unsatisfactory for any reason other
than reasons that violate applicable law, Client may request in writing the immediate removal of
that member from the engagement, and Client shall not be liable for any fees for the
performance of Services by that member after the date of such removal.

d) Effect of Termination. Upon termination of the LOE:

. Client shall promptly pay Chartis for Services provided and reimburse for
expenses incurred through the date of termination; and

. the Receiving Party will (a) return to the Disclosing Party all of the
Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information in its possession; or (b) destroy such Confidential
Information; provided that the Receiving Party may retain one (1) copy of such Confidential
Information solely for purposes of ensuring compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the above, the Receiving Party may retain any of Disclosing Party's Confidential
Information that is contained or embedded in Receiving Party’s archived computer back-up
systems in accordance with automated document retention, security, or disaster recovery



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 26

procedures, provided such Confidential Information shall remain subject to the terms of Section
8.a of these Terms and Conditions as long as it is retained by Receiving Party.

e) Survival. The provisions of Sections 2 (Invoicing, Reimbursement of Expenses,
Remittance, IRS Regulation, Legal Process), 4.d (Effect of Termination), 4.e (Survival), 5
(Solicitation or Hiring of Employees), 6 (Indemnification and Insurance), 7 (Limitation of Liability),
8 (Confidentiality and Proprietary Information; Intellectual Property), 9 (Benchmarking) and 10
(Miscellaneous) of these Terms & Conditions will survive the expiration or termination of the
LOE.

5.  Solicitation or Hiring of Employees.

During the term of the LOE and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter, neither party will
knowingly employ or solicit for employment any employee, contractor or consultant of the other
party who performed any of such party’s obligations under the LOE without the prior written
consent of the other party. This Section shall not restrict either party from offering employment
or employing any employees, contractors or consultants of the other party who responds to any
general advertisement or other general recruiting method used in the ordinary course of
business.

6. Indemnification and Insurance.

Chartis shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Client from and against any against any third-
party claims, demands, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, costs and expenses (including
reasonable attorney’s fees) (each, a “Claim”) arising from (a) the negligence or willful misconduct
of Chartis in the performance of the Services, or (b) a violation of the LOE, Terms 8 Conditions
or any applicable regulations or laws by Chartis.

Client shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Chartis from and against any Claim arising
from (a) the negligence or willful misconduct of Client, (b) a violation of the LOE, Terms &
Conditions or any applicable regulations or laws by Client, or (c) Client's use of any Deliverables
(as defined in Section 8.b).

Each party must notify the other party within thirty (30) days after learning of any Claim made
for which the other party is obligated to provide indemnification as set forth above. The
indemnifying party will have the sole right to defend, negotiate, and settle any such Claim. The
indemnified party will be entitled to participate in the defense of such Claim and to employ
counsel at its expense to assist in such defense; provided, however, that the indemnifying party
will have final decision-making authority regarding all aspects of the defense of any Claim for
which it is providing indemnification. The indemnified party will provide the indemnifying party
with such information and assistance as the indemnifying party may reasonably request, at the
expense of the indemnifying party. Neither party will be responsible or bound by any settlement
of any Claim made without its prior written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed. Further, the indemnifying party may not admit liability on the part of the indemnified
party without the indemnified party’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 27

Each party shall maintain sufficient insurance or a program of self-insurance to cover its
indemnification obligations set forth above. Upon written request, each party will provide
evidence of such insurance to the other party.

7.  Limitation of Liability.

Excluding any liability resulting from a party’s indemnification obligations under Section 6 of
these Terms & Conditions or a party’s breach of Section 8 of these Terms & Conditions, neither
party shall be responsible or liable to the other party with respect to the subject matter of the
LOE for any indirect, incidental, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to,
loss of profits, loss of revenues, or loss of business opportunity. With the exception of injunctive
relief and specific performance, monetary damages shall be Client's exclusive remedy for any
claims arising from the LOE and these Terms & Conditions. Chartis' liability to Client arising from
the LOE and these Terms & Conditions shall be limited to actual damages and shall not exceed
the total amount paid by Client to Chartis for the Services under which such liability arises.

8. Confidentiality and Proprietary Information; Intellectual Property.

a) Confidential Information. For purposes of these Terms & Conditions,
“Confidential Information” means confidential or proprietary information furnished by a party
(“Disclosing Party”) to the other party (“Receiving Party”) pursuant to the LOE, including, without
limitation, such information relating to the Disclosing Party's business strategy, information
systems, patients, software and hardware. The Receiving Party shall treat all Confidential
Information of the Disclosing Party as proprietary and confidential and will use such Confidential
Information only to perform its obligations under the LOE. The Receiving Party shall not disclose
the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information to any third party except to (i) those third parties
who have entered into confidentiality agreements that provide the same protection that
disclosing party’s Confidential Information has under these Terms & Conditions, and (ii) those
employees and third parties that have a need to know disclosing party’s Confidential
Information in order to perform Receiving Party’s obligations under the LOE. The obligations of
confidentiality and non-use set forth herein shall not apply to any Confidential Information that:

i. at the time of disclosure or after disclosure is generally known by the
public other than as a result of a breach of this Section 8.a by the Receiving Party;

ii. is generally known to Receiving Party prior to the disclosure hereunder as
evidenced by Receiving Party’s written records;

iii. is disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party having no obligation of
confidentiality to the disclosing party;

iv. is developed by Receiving Party independent of the LOE or these Terms &

Conditions and without any use of or reliance upon the Disclosing Party’s Confidential
Information; or

V. is approved in writing for disclosure by Disclosing Party.

In the event that the Receiving Party is required by applicable regulation or law to disclose any
of the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information to a third party, the Receiving Party shall, if



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 28

legally permitted to do so, promptly notify the Disclosing Party in writing of such requirement.
Upon the written request of the Disclosing Party, the Receiving Party shall cooperate in any
lawful efforts by the Disclosing Party to seek a protective order or otherwise limit or prevent
such disclosure, and if no such order or prevention is obtained, the Receiving Party shall only
disclose such portion of the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information that it is legally required
disclose.

The confidentiality obligations set forth above shall survive for five (5) years after the expiration
or termination of the LOE.

If any of Client’s Confidential Information is "Protected Health Information" as defined by the
U.S. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA"), as amended from
time to time, Chartis’ duties and obligations relating to such information shall be governed by a
separate business associate agreement entered into by Client and Chartis, and not the LOE
and/or these Terms & Conditions.

Except for the immediately preceding paragraph, to the extent that these provisions conflict with
the terms of any confidentiality agreement between the parties previously entered into in
connection with the Services, these terms will govern.

b) Deliverables. All data, information and reports generated by Chartis solely in the
performance of the Services in accordance with the LOE (“Deliverables”) shall be owned by
Client.

Q) Pre-Existing Property. Notwithstanding any other provision of the LOE or these
Terms & Conditions, Chartis’ pre-existing solutions, methodologies, processes, tools, and
materials ("Chartis Pre-Existing Property”} are and shall remain the sole and exclusive
property of Chartis. Chartis may use, for itself or others, without permission from Client,
all pre-existing solutions, methodologies, processes, tools, and materials that may be
included in, or be a basis for the Deliverables. Further, the Chartis Pre-Existing Property is
proprietary to Chartis, and Client shall not disclose any Chartis Pre-Existing Property to
any third party without Chartis’ prior written consent. If Chartis uses any Chartis Pre-
Existing Property in any of the Deliverables, Chartis agrees to grant to Client, as of the
date Client receives such Deliverables from Chartis and Chartis receives payment for such
Deliverables in accordance with the LOE and these Terms & Conditions, a non-exclusive,
non-transferable license to use such Chartis Pre-Existing Property in the form included in
the Deliverables in order to use such Deliverables for their intended purpose.

9. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. Modification or Amendment. No modification or amendment of the LOE will be
valid unless it is in writing and signed by the authorized representatives of both parties.

b. Insurance. Chartis shall carry, at its own cost and expense, commercial general
liability insurance coverage in an amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 29

C. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, or other communications required or
permitted by the applicable LOE or these Terms & Conditions will be given in writing and
delivered to the respective party at the following addresses:

For The Chartis Group, LLC:
Attn: Cindy Lee

The Chartis Group, LLC

220 West Kinzie Street, 3" floor
Chicago, IL 60654

For Client:

Watsonville Community Hospital

Attn: Steven Salyer, Chief Executive Officer
75 Nielson Street, Watsonville, CA 95076

or to such other address as either party may from time to time notify the other party in
writing and will be deemed to be properly delivered (i) immediately upon being served
personally, (i) two days after being deposited with the postal service if served by registered mail,
or (i) the following day after being deposited with an overnight courier.

d. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for any failure or delay in
performing its obligations under this Agreement if such failure or delay is due to circumstances
beyond its control, including but not limited to, governmental actions or restrictions, war,
terrorism or insurrections, strikes, fires, floods, work stoppages, embargoes, pandemics,
equipment, telecommunications, power, or electrical failures; provided that, if possible, the
affected party promptly notifies the other party of the cause and its effects on the obligations to
be performed hereunder by the affected party. The affected party shall use its reasonable efforts
to mitigate the effect of the event of force majeure upon its performance of its obligations
under the LOE. Upon conclusion of the event of force majeure the affected party shall as soon as
reasonably practicable notify the other party of such conclusion and recommence the
performance of its obligations under the LOE. In the event that the affected party fails to
recommence the performance of its obligations under the LOE, the other party may terminate
the LOE upon thirty (30) days written notice to the affected party.

e. Independent Contractor. Chartis will perform the Services in its capacity as an
independent contractor for Client. Chartis and employees are not employees of Client and are
not entitled to participate in health or disability insurance, retirement benefits, or pension
benefits to which employees of Client may be entitled. Neither party will not hold itself out as a
partner, agent, employee or joint venture partner of the other party.

f. Entire Agreement. The LOE, these Terms & Conditions and any attachments, as
well as any separate business associate agreement between the parties, constitute the entire
agreement between the parties regarding the Services and supersedes any prior and



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 30

contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings of the parties regarding the
Services.

g. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. The LOE and these Terms & Conditions will be
governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of lllinois, without regard
to its conflict of laws rules. Chartis and Client specifically consent and agree that the courts of
the State of lllinois and/or the federal courts located in Chicago, lllinois will have exclusive
jurisdiction over each of the Parties in any proceedings arising from the LOE or these Terms &
Conditions.

h. Taxes. Client shall pay all taxes relating to the LOE and the Services, including any
sales or gross receipts taxes, but excluding any taxes measured by the income of Chartis and
excluding any employment taxes relating to employees of Chartis. Notwithstanding the
preceding sentence, if Client is a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of the United States, as amended, Chartis shall take all reasonable actions to
cause the provision of the Services under the LOE to be treated as a tax-exempt transaction.
Upon written request, Client shall provide Chartis with certificates evidencing its tax-exempt
status.

i. Assignment; Binding Effect. Neither party may assign any of its rights or
delegate any of its respective obligations under the LOE or these Terms & Conditions without
the prior written consent of the other party. A LOE and these terms and conditions shall be
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their permitted successors
and assignees.

J- Section and Other Headings. Section and other headings in the LOE and these
Terms & Conditions are for reference purposes only and shall not be used in any way to govern,
limit, modify, construe, or otherwise affect the LOE or these Terms & conditions.

k. Counterparts; Delivery by Facsimile or Email. The LOE and/or these Terms &
Conditions may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as if both
parties had signed the same document. All counterparts shall be construed together and shall
constitute one and the same agreement. The LOE and these Terms & Conditions and any
amendments, to the extent signed and delivered by means of a facsimile machine or email, shall
be treated in all manner and respects as an original agreement or instrument and shall be
considered to have the same binding legal effect as if it were the original signed version
delivered in person.



WCH and PVHCD Strategic Planning
Page 31

Signature Page

By signing below, both parties acknowledge that they have read, understood, and agree to
these Terms & Conditions.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

The Chartis Group, LLC

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

Watsonville Community Hospital

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:




The information contained in this document is intended only for the entity or person to which it is addressed and

contains confidential and/or proprietary material. Dissemination to third parties, copying, or use of this information
without the prior written consent of The Chartis Group, LLC is strictly prohibited.

@9 CHARTIS



